
District Staff 
Justin McDonald 

Fire Chief 
Becky Schuette 

Clerk of the Board 

District Board Members 
Blane Maynor 
Division 1 
Nicole Johnson - President 
Division 2 
Randy Mendosa - Vice President 
Division 3 
Elena David 
Division 4 
David Rosen 
Division 5 

Regular Board Meeting 
August 10, 2021 

5:30 PM  
Location: Remote Via Zoom 

To meet the State required Shelter in Place mandate, this Regular Board Meeting of the Board 
of Directors for the Arcata Fire Protection District will be held via remote access using Zoom.  

You may join from a smart device or computer by copy and pasting this link into your web 
browser:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/551748203 
Meeting ID: 551 748 203 

AGENDA 
CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Suspended for virtual meetings 

ATTENDANCE & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENT/ASSOCIATION REPORTS      Pg. 4  
Any person may address the District Board on any subject pertaining to District business, 
which is not listed on the agenda. This comment is provided by the Ralph M. Brown Open 
Meeting Act (Government Code § 54950 et seq.) and may be limited to three (3) minutes 
for any person addressing the Board. Any request that requires Board action may be set 
by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff. 

▪ Senior Management Group
▪ Local 4981
▪ Arcata Volunteer Firefighters Association Pg. 5 

1

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/551748203&sa=D&ust=1586875776329000&usg=AOvVaw07LV6BPGA-iaU89QN4C37P


CONSENT CALENDAR         Pg. 6   
Consent calendar items are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board with a 
single action. Members of the audience wishing to provide public input may request that 
the Board remove the item from the Consent Calendar. Comments may be limited to three 
(3) minutes.

1. Minutes from July 13, 2021, Regular Meeting Pg. 7 
2. July 2021 Financial Report Pg. 11 
3. Accept the Fiscal Year End 2021 GASB 75 Actuarial Report Pg. 23 

o Attachment – FYE 2021 GASB 75 Report Pg. 25 
4. Adopt Resolution 21-241 Approving Exemptions to Specific Parcels for the 2006 Benefit

Assessment and the New 2020 Special Tax (Measure F) Pg. 60 
o Attachment – Resolution 21-241 with Exhibit A Pg. 61 

5. Adopt Resolution 21-242 Approving Disposal of Surplus Equipment and Supplies Pg. 66

CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS Pg. 68 

1. Public Correspondence
a. Thank you note to Battalion Chief Campbell Pg. 69 
b. Notice of rent increase from the AVFA for the Arcata Station Pg. 70 

2. Committee Reports
a. Arcata Station Rent Committee
b. Fire Chief’s Evaluation Committee

3. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report Pg. 71 
4. Director Matters

DISTRICT BUSINESS Pg. 78 

1. Update from Weist Law Regarding Interest Rates and Savings for Public or Private
Offering (Matter Set for Time Certain - 5:45 p.m.) Pg. 79 

o Informational Memo – Private Placement vs. Public Offering Pg. 80 
2. Receive the Classification and Total Compensation Report from CPS HR (Matter Set for

Time Certain – 6:05 p.m.) Pg. 83 
o CPS HR Classification and Total Compensation Report Pg. 84 

3. Approve the Expenditure of Funds to Repair the Mad River and McKinleyville Station
Parking Lots Pg. 239 

CLOSED SESSIONS 
At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to 
consider existing or anticipated litigation, liability claims, real property negotiations, 
license and permit determinations, threats to security, public employee appointments, 
personnel matters, evaluations and discipline, labor negotiations, or to discuss with legal 
counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege. 

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Gov. Code Section 54956.8)
Property: 1127 Bayside Road, Arcata, California 
Agency Negotiators:  Chief McDonald 
Agency designated representative: John Duncan 
(Matter Set for Time Certain – 6:30 p.m.) 

2. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Gov. Code Section 54957.6)
Employee Organization: Local 4981 
Agency designated representative: District Counsel Jack Hughes 

3. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Gov. Code Section 54957.6)
Employee Organization: Senior Management Group 
Agency designated representative: District Counsel Jack Hughes 

2



4. Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Gov. Code Section 54956.8) 
Property:  631 9th Street, Arcata, California 
Agency Negotiators:  Director Nicole Johnson and Director Randy Mendosa 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Next Regular Board Meeting is scheduled for September 14, 2021, at 5:30 pm.  
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Becky Schuette, Clerk of the Board 
 
The Arcata Fire Protection District ("District"), in compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act ("ADA"), individuals who require special accommodations to access, attend 
and/or participate in District board meetings due to a disability, shall make their request by 
calling (707)825-2000, no later than 48 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time. In 
compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt writings that are distributed 
to a majority of, or all, the Board in advance of a meeting may be viewed at 2149 Central 
Avenue, McKinleyville, California or at the scheduled meeting. In addition, if you would like a 
copy of any record related to an item on the agenda, please contact the Board Secretary, at 
(707) 825-2000.   
The meeting agenda is posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular scheduled meetings, at 
the following locations: 
● District's Headquarters’ Building, 2149 Central Avenue, McKinleyville, CA 95519 
● Arcata Downtown Station, 631 9th Street, Arcata, CA 95521 
● Mad River Station, 3235 Janes Road, Arcata, CA 95521 
● The Arcata Fire Protection District website:  www.arcatafire.org  

3



Public Comment 
& Association 

Reports

4



ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC.

2149 Central Avenue 
McKinleyville, California 95519 

(707) 825-2000

Date: 8/10/2021 MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT    
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From: Arcata Volunteer Firefighters’ Association 

Mission: We exist to provide support, advocacy, and a social network for those 
volunteering to contribute to the mission of the Arcata Fire District. 

Volunteering 
 Volunteer hours of support for July was about 79 hours. Some concern of all volun-

teer hours not being captured in ERS. Some of the documented activities were as
follows.

o Responded to July fires
o Various Association meetings
o CPR and First Aid Classes

Grants; Recent Grants Activity 

 For the Wildland Web Gear, we have received $5900 from the Berg Foundation and
will be reimbursed by Coast Central for $4500 to cover the $10,400 needed.

 The California Fire Foundation approved $10,000 for the color-coded rural house
number signs project.

 Filing to PG&E for a $10,000 grant to address issues on the grant priority list.

 Still Pending

 The FEMA SAFER Grant to District staffing of 10 positions for 3 years.

 The FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) for 50 portable radios, 20
mobile, and 3 base stations and new extrication equipment.

Membership 
 The July AVFA Business meeting was held at the Hatch House Throwing Club in Ar-

cata for an activity-based meeting followed by a pizza and beverage and discussion
of association business. This was well attended and actually very fun. The Arcata
crew also attended.

AVFA Properties 
 Awaiting a follow-up meeting with Board Members Johnson and Mendosa as well as

Chief McDonald to discuss the possibility of the Arcata Fire District’s purchasing the
9th Street property from the association.

 Formal notification has been sent to the Arcata Fire District concerning the 9th street
property rent increase starting on January 1, 2022.

5



Consent 

Calendar 

6



MINUTES 

Regular Board Meeting 
July 13, 2021 

5:30 p.m. 
Location: Remote Via Zoom 

Board of Directors 
Nicole Johnson (Division 2) – President, Randy Mendosa (Division 3) - Vice-President, 

Blaine Maynor (Division 1) – Director, Elena David (Division 4) – Director  
David Rosen (Division 5) – Director 

CALL TO ORDER 
The regular session of the Board of Directors for the Arcata Fire District was called to order 
by President Nicole Johnson at 5:31 pm.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The Pledge of Allegiance has been suspended during Shelter in Place. 

ATTENDANCE AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
The meeting continued with a quorum and the following were present remotely via zoom: 
President Nicole Johnson, Vice President Randy Mendosa, Director Blaine Maynor, and 
Director David Rosen. Director Elena David was absent. 
Additional District administrative staff included Fire Chief Justin McDonald, Battalion Chief 
Sean Campbell, and Board Secretary Becky Schuette. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
It was moved to approve the agenda. 
Motion: Mendosa; Second: Maynor    
Roll Call: Ayes; Maynor, Mendosa, and Johnson. Nays; Rosen. Absent; David. 
Motion Carries 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Senior Management Group – Nothing to report 
Local 4981 – Nothing to report 
Arcata Volunteer Firefighters Association (AVFA) – Dave White reviewed the staff note. 
There were no comments from members of the public.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Minutes from June 8, 2021, Regular Meeting
2. June 2021 Financial Report
3. Approval of the Senior Management Side Letter for the Business Manager Classification
Incentive Stipend

CONSENT Item 1

7



Page 2 of 4 

4. Adoption of Revised Covid Prevention Program
5. Adoption of Resolution 21-240 Approving Disposal of Surplus Equipment and Supplies
There were no comments from the Directors or the public.
It was moved to approve the consent calendar.
Motion: Mendosa; Second: Maynor 
Roll Call: Ayes; Maynor, Mendosa, Rosen and Johnson. Absent; David 
Motion Carries 

CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Public Correspondence – There was no correspondence received.
2. Committee Reports

a. Arcata Station Rent Committee – President Johnson advised there is nothing new
to report. The group has not met since the last meeting. Director Mendosa
concurred.
b. Fire Chief’s Evaluation Committee – Directors Maynor and Mendosa advised
there was nothing to report.

3. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report – Chief McDonald reviewed his staff report aloud.
4. Director Matters – Directors Mendosa and Maynor offered a welcome to the recruit
firefighters. Director Maynor asked about the Citizen oversight committee for Measure F.

DISTRICT BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointing an Ad Hoc Committee to Act as District Representatives for
the Possible Acquisition of the Arcata Fire Station:  Chief McDonald reviewed his staff
report aloud.
Director Rosen queried if there has been a formal offer by AFVA for the sale of the building
or if it has yet been put on the market. Is it jumping the gun to create a committee if the
property is not for sale? Chief McDonald explained that forming the committee was the
process that had been lined out by District Council as the process to proceed to closed
session.
During public comment, Dave White spoke on behalf of the AVFA, indicating that there is a 
willingness to discuss the sale of the Arcata Station to the District.  
There were no further public comments. 
It was moved to appoint President Johnson and Vice President Mendosa to an Ad Hoc 
Committee to act as the District’s representatives for the possible acquisition of the Arcata 
Fire Station.     
Motion: Mendosa; Second: Maynor    
Roll Call: Ayes; Maynor, Mendosa, and Johnson. Nays; Rosen. Absent; David. 
Motion Carries 

2. Consider Approval to Modify the Master Contract with CPS HR for Recruitment and
Promotional Services:  Chief McDonald reviewed his staff note aloud. He explained a little
further the process that CPS HR would be doing in that there would be three simultaneous
recruitments occurring for all rank levels, including the possibility of outside recruitment,

8



Page 3 of 4 

which has never been done by the District.  This process is more than the current staff can 
handle.  He went on further to explain the timeline for the process and that CPS HR will 
likely be using the current FCTC list as the District has used in the past.  They will take the 
applications and help facilitate the interview process.  
There were several questions asked by the Directors which were discussed or explained by 
Chief McDonald. Based on queries about the length and termination of the contract as well 
as indemnification language, Chief McDonald read portions of the contract aloud, which 
satisfied the Directors queries.  
Director Mendosa also request that staff make phone calls to agencies that have worked 
with CPS HR in the past, to obtain references for their performance specific to recruitment; 
seek out strong points, week points and any experiences these other agencies may have 
had.  
There were no further questions or comments from the Board and no comments from the 
public.  
It was moved to authorize the Chief to contract with CPS HR for recruitment and selection 
services with a not to exceed $50,000 limit stipulation.    
Motion: Rosen; Second: Mendosa    
Roll Call: Ayes; Maynor, Mendosa, Rosen and Johnson. Absent; David 
Motion Carries 

3. Consider the Soft Opening of the Third Fire Station: Chief McDonald reviewed his
staff note aloud.
Director Maynor asked about the difficulty in relocating staff if the need to brown out arose 
due to lack of staffing. Chief McDonald advised the impact will likely only be on one person. 
Director Mendosa asked for input from the floor staff and Anthony Benelisha spoke on 
behalf of the Local. He advised that he and Captain Lillard had discussed the possibility of 
the soft opening with the Chief, and they all felt that it was important enough to present the 
idea to the Board, for the community.  
President Johnson confirmed with the Chief that the $224,000 is the maximum amount that 
would be utilized and that it would be less if the brown outs became necessary.  
Director Mendosa requested a press release if the decision is made to move forward. 
There were no comments from the public.   
It was moved to authorize the allocation of $224,000 in rollover funds toward staffing and 
authorize the soft opening of the third station.  
Motion: Mendosa; Second: Maynor    
Roll Call: Ayes; Maynor, Mendosa, Rosen and Johnson. Absent; David 
Motion Carries 

4. Consider Returning to In-Person Board Meetings: Chief McDonald briefly reviewed
his staff note and explained the accessibility and posting requirements for the Brown Act in
terms of continuing teleconferenced meetings after the Governor’s deadline date.
Director Maynor advised he is looking forward to being person and both he and Director 
Mendosa added their desire to continue Zoom meetings to reach more public. Director 
Mendosa offered several examples of possible locations with the technology to hold both in 

9



Page 4 of 4 

person and Zoom meetings. On query from the Chief, the Board Secretary offered 
examples from the Humboldt Clerk’s Association for other special district or counsels 
experiences having already returned to in person meetings. Some agencies have hired 
techs, some purchased equipment, some are social distancing and masking. Overall, there 
has not yet been any good answer to both in person and remote attendance and most 
continue to work out quirks.  
There were no further questions or comments from the board and no public comments. 
Absent a motion, no action was taken.   

CLOSED SESSIONS 
Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Gov. Code Section 54956.8) 

Property:  631 9th Street, Arcata, California 
Agency Negotiators:  Director Nicole Johnson and Director Randy Mendosa 

President Johnson adjourned to closed session at 6:35 pm. 
The meeting resumed at 7:38 pm. 
Report out of closed session by President Johnson; The Board gave direction to the ad hoc 
committee.  

ADJOURNMENT 
Following a motion, President Johnson adjourned the meeting at 7:38 pm. 
Motion: Maynor; Second: Mendosa  

The next Regular Meeting is scheduled for August 10, 2021, at 5:30 pm. 

Respectfully submitted,  

Becky Schuette, 
Clerk of the Board 

10



Jul 31, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
C.T. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 2013 188,630.22
C.T. CONTINGENCY DESIGNATN 2011

TRAINING RESERVE 17,000.00
C.T. CONTINGENCY DESIGNATN 2011 - Other 39,596.13

Total C.T. CONTINGENCY DESIGNATN 2011 56,596.13

C.T. PERS DESIGNATION 2012 30,333.00
CCCU CHECKING 119,227.39
CCCU LIQUID ASSETS 100,172.87
COAST CENTRAL SAVINGS 15,777.36
COUNTY TREASURY 2,752,127.95

Total Checking/Savings 3,262,864.92

Accounts Receivable
1200 ꞏ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 49,562.12

Total Accounts Receivable 49,562.12

Other Current Assets
Accounts Receivable 2 -45,847.12
ACCT RECV -  COUNTY TREASURY -119,840.44
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 13,500.00
PREPAID EXPENSE 32,193.52

Total Other Current Assets -119,994.04

Total Current Assets 3,192,433.00

Fixed Assets
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION -3,129,428.00
BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS 2,329,696.91
EQUIPMENT 4,268,796.56
LAND 224,630.00

Total Fixed Assets 3,693,695.47

Other Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS-OPEB 640,710.00
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS-PENSION 1,565,869.00

Total Other Assets 2,206,579.00

TOTAL ASSETS 9,092,707.47

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 ꞏ ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 58,036.91

Total Accounts Payable 58,036.91

11:26 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

08/05/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2021

Page 1

CONSENT Item 2

11



Jul 31, 21

Credit Cards
US BANK 1,395.33

Total Credit Cards 1,395.33

Other Current Liabilities
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 2 32,193.52
ACCRUED EXPENSES - OTHER 30,190.13
ACCRUED INTEREST EXPENSE 3,794.79
COMPENSATION TIME OFF 8,574.12
Current portion of L/T Debt 152,095.39
WAGES PAYABLE 67,526.60
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES

457 DEDUCTION 3,000.00
CA WITHHOLDING 3,381.67
FEDERAL WITHHOLDING 7,143.46
MEDICARE - BOTH 1,859.08
SOCIAL SECURITY - BOTH 352.02
SURVIVOR BENEFIT 33.48
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES - Other 2,924.71

Total 2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES 18,694.42

Total Other Current Liabilities 313,068.97

Total Current Liabilities 372,501.21

Long Term Liabilities
ACCRUED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 105,291.21
DEFERRED INFLOWS-OPEB 2,314,811.00
DEFERRED INFLOWS-PENSION 162,788.00
Less-Cur Portion of L/T Debt -152,095.39
NET PENSION LIABILITY 5,734,896.00
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BEN. LIAB 9,197,641.00
WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FINANCE # 152,095.39

Total Long Term Liabilities 17,515,427.21

Total Liabilities 17,887,928.42

Equity
INVESTMENT IN FIXED ASSETS 3,541,600.08
3900 ꞏ RETAINED EARNINGS -11,523,669.23
Net Income -813,151.80

Total Equity -8,795,220.95

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 9,092,707.47

11:26 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

08/05/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2021

Page 2

12



Jul 21

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income -813,151.80
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

1200 ꞏ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 2,389.00
2000 ꞏ ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 30,956.18
US BANK -2,794.92
US BANK:CAMPBELL 128.50
US BANK:EVENSON 452.12
US BANK:J. MCDONALD 5.15
US BANK:SCHUETTE 346.11
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES 4,277.56
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:457 DEDUCTION 3,000.00
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:CA WITHHOLDING 3,381.67
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:FEDERAL WITHHOLDING 7,143.46
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:MEDICARE - BOTH 1,859.08
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:SOCIAL SECURITY - BOTH 352.02
2100 ꞏ PAYROLL LIABILITIES:SURVIVOR BENEFIT 16.74

Net cash provided by Operating Activities -761,639.13

Net cash increase for period -761,639.13

Cash at beginning of period 4,024,504.05

Cash at end of period 3,262,864.92

11:27 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

08/05/21 Statement of Cash Flows
July 2021

Page 1

13



Jul 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

TAX REVENUE
101117 ꞏ PROPERTY TAX-CURRENT-SECURED 0.00 193,000.00 -193,000.00 0.0%
102500 ꞏ PROPERTY TAX-CURRENT-UNSECURED 0.00 7,050.00 -7,050.00 0.0%
800030 ꞏ PROPERTY TAX-PRIOR YEARS 0.00 2,167.00 -2,167.00 0.0%
800040 ꞏ SUPPLEMENTAL TAXES- CURRENT 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
800041 ꞏ SUPPLEMENTAL TAXES-PRIOR YEARS 0.00 375.00 -375.00 0.0%
113100 ꞏ STATE TIMBER TAX 0.00 530.00 -530.00 0.0%
800050 ꞏ PROPERTY ASSESSMENTS 0.00 141,346.00 -141,346.00 0.0%

Total TAX REVENUE 0.00 345,468.00 -345,468.00 0.0%

USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY
800190 ꞏ INTEREST INCOME 35.80 2,415.00 -2,379.20 1.5%

Total USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY 35.80 2,415.00 -2,379.20 1.5%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
525110 ꞏ HOMEOWNERS PROP. TAX REL 0.00 2,177.00 -2,177.00 0.0%
800600 ꞏ OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES

BLFD Contract for Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
HR Reimbursment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
HSU Contract for Services 37,000.00 37,000.00 0.00 100.0%
Measure Z Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCUAQMD 1,242.00 700.00 542.00 177.4%
Prop 172 Disbursement 0.00 9,783.00 -9,783.00 0.0%

Total 800600 ꞏ OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 38,242.00 47,483.00 -9,241.00 80.5%

800944 ꞏ GRANT REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

800950 ꞏ FIREFIGHTING REIMBURSEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total INTERGOVERNMENTAL 38,242.00 49,660.00 -11,418.00 77.0%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
800155 ꞏ PREVENTION FEES 750.00 834.00 -84.00 89.9%
800156 ꞏ R1/R2 INSPECTION FEES 2,082.50 2,917.00 -834.50 71.4%
800700 ꞏ OTHER SERVICES 4,200.00 0.00 4,200.00 100.0%

800946 ꞏ INCIDENT REVENUE RECOVERY FEES 945.00 417.00 528.00 226.6%

Total CHARGES FOR SERVICES 7,977.50 4,168.00 3,809.50 191.4%

OTHER REVENUE
800920 ꞏ SALE OF FIXED ASSETS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
800940 ꞏ OTHER REVENUE

Donations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Revenue Unclassified 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
800940 ꞏ OTHER REVENUE - Other 4.50 0.00 4.50 100.0%

Total 800940 ꞏ OTHER REVENUE 4.50 0.00 4.50 100.0%

800941 ꞏ REFUNDS 5.24 1,300.00 -1,294.76 0.4%
800942 ꞏ INCIDENT REPORTS 10.00 200.00 -190.00 5.0%

Total OTHER REVENUE 19.74 1,500.00 -1,480.26 1.3%

Total Income 46,275.04 403,211.00 -356,935.96 11.5%

Gross Profit 46,275.04 403,211.00 -356,935.96 11.5%

11:26 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

08/05/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2021

Page 1

14



Jul 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Expense
SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

5010 ꞏ SALARIES AND WAGES *
5010.1 ꞏ Full-Time 146,052.84 94,965.50 51,087.34 153.8%
5010.2 ꞏ CTO Payout 30,257.45 19,000.00 11,257.45 159.2%
5010.3 ꞏ Settlement Pay/Vacation 4,055.10 30,000.00 -25,944.90 13.5%
5010.4 ꞏ Holiday Pay 72.76 0.00 72.76 100.0%
5010.5 ꞏ Deferred Compensation 3,800.00 4,117.00 -317.00 92.3%
5010.6 ꞏ Part-Time (Hourly) 32,124.50 6,917.25 25,207.25 464.4%
5010.8 ꞏ CalFire/OES Pay 0.00 53,888.00 -53,888.00 0.0%

Total 5010 ꞏ SALARIES AND WAGES * 216,362.65 208,887.75 7,474.90 103.6%

5020 ꞏ RETIREMENT
5020.1 ꞏ CalPERS Retirement 31,886.64 28,841.17 3,045.47 110.6%
5020.3 ꞏ Social Security 498.58 334.92 163.66 148.9%
5020.4 ꞏ Medicare 3,160.63 1,895.00 1,265.63 166.8%
5020.5 ꞏ CalPERS Section 218 Admin Fee 0.00 300.00 -300.00 0.0%

Total 5020 ꞏ RETIREMENT 35,545.85 31,371.09 4,174.76 113.3%

5030-GROUP INSURANCE
5030.1 ꞏ Health Insurance (Employees) 36,478.99 39,714.00 -3,235.01 91.9%
5030.2 ꞏ Health Insurance (Retirees) 45,400.82 27,815.25 17,585.57 163.2%
5030.3 ꞏ Retiree Health Admin Fees 58.68 339.00 -280.32 17.3%
5030.4 ꞏ Dental & Life Insurance 4,972.68 2,745.00 2,227.68 181.2%
5030.5 ꞏ Air Ambulance Insurance 0.00 1,100.00 -1,100.00 0.0%
5030.6 ꞏ Vision 0.00 3,500.00 -3,500.00 0.0%
5030.7 ꞏ Long Term Disability Insurance 1,044.00 495.00 549.00 210.9%
5030.8 ꞏ Medical Reimbursement-Chief 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

Total 5030-GROUP INSURANCE 87,955.17 78,708.25 9,246.92 111.7%

5033 ꞏ UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE FUND
5033.1 ꞏ Unemployment Insurance Fund 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
5033 ꞏ UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE FUND - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5033 ꞏ UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE FUND 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

5035 ꞏ WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE
5035.1 ꞏ Primary 0.00 65,355.00 -65,355.00 0.0%
5035.2 ꞏ EXCESS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5035.3 ꞏ Administrative Fee 0.00 16,339.00 -16,339.00 0.0%

Total 5035 ꞏ WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURAN... 0.00 81,694.00 -81,694.00 0.0%

Total SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 339,863.67 405,661.09 -65,797.42 83.8%

SERVICE & SUPPLIES
5050 ꞏ CLOTHING & PERSONAL SUPPLIES

5050.1 ꞏ Uniforms 0.00 18,000.00 -18,000.00 0.0%
5050.2 ꞏ Station Boots 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

Total 5050 ꞏ CLOTHING & PERSONAL SUPPLIES 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%

5060 ꞏ COMMUNICATIONS
5060.1 ꞏ Phones & Internet 2,901.38 2,917.00 -15.62 99.5%
5060.2 ꞏ Alarm Monitoring 423.83 250.00 173.83 169.5%
5060.3 ꞏ Communication - Miscellaneous 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5060.4 ꞏ HCFCA  Radio System Annual Fee 0.00 1,600.00 -1,600.00 0.0%
5060.5 ꞏ Cable TV 0.00 167.00 -167.00 0.0%

Total 5060 ꞏ COMMUNICATIONS 3,325.21 5,434.00 -2,108.79 61.2%

5080 ꞏ FOOD
5080.1 ꞏ Food/Rehab Supplies 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%
5080.2 ꞏ Drinking Water 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

Total 5080 ꞏ FOOD 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

11:26 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

08/05/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2021

Page 2

15



Jul 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5090 ꞏ HOUSEHOLD EXPENSE
5090.1 ꞏ Station Supplies

Arcata 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mad River 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
McK 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5090.1 ꞏ Station Supplies - Other 0.00 275.00 -275.00 0.0%

Total 5090.1 ꞏ Station Supplies 0.00 275.00 -275.00 0.0%

5090.2 ꞏ Garbage Service
Arcata 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mad River 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
McK 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5090.2 ꞏ Garbage Service - Other 0.00 334.00 -334.00 0.0%

Total 5090.2 ꞏ Garbage Service 0.00 334.00 -334.00 0.0%

Total 5090 ꞏ HOUSEHOLD EXPENSE 0.00 609.00 -609.00 0.0%

5100 ꞏ INSURANCE
5100.1 ꞏ Liability Insurance 35,221.00 23,335.00 11,886.00 150.9%

Total 5100 ꞏ INSURANCE 35,221.00 23,335.00 11,886.00 150.9%

5120 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT
5120.1 ꞏ Fire Apparatus

8211 ꞏ E8211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8215 ꞏ E8215 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8216 ꞏ E8216 5,972.88 0.00 5,972.88 100.0%
8217 ꞏ E8217 693.64 0.00 693.64 100.0%
8258 ꞏ WT8258 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8283 ꞏ T8283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8291 ꞏ L8291 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5120.1 ꞏ Fire Apparatus - Other 113.63 90,000.00 -89,886.37 0.1%

Total 5120.1 ꞏ Fire Apparatus 6,780.15 90,000.00 -83,219.85 7.5%

5120.2 ꞏ Officers Vehicles
8205 ꞏ U8205 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8206 ꞏ U8206 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8207 ꞏ U8207 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8208 ꞏ U8208 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5120.2 ꞏ Officers Vehicles - Other 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Total 5120.2 ꞏ Officers Vehicles 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

5120.3 ꞏ Hose & Ladder Testing 0.00 6,800.00 -6,800.00 0.0%
5120.4 ꞏ Hose Repair 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5120.5 ꞏ Truck 8283 Aerial Inspection 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5120.6 ꞏ Truck 8283 Aerial Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5120.7 ꞏ SCBA 1,269.44 6,000.00 -4,730.56 21.2%
5120.8 ꞏ Hydraulic Rescue Tool Service 0.00 3,500.00 -3,500.00 0.0%
5120.9 ꞏ Power Tools Maintenance 60.05 350.00 -289.95 17.2%
5120.10 ꞏ AED Annual Maintenance 0.00 8,100.00 -8,100.00 0.0%
5120.11 ꞏ Fire Extinguisher Maintenance 0.00 1,200.00 -1,200.00 0.0%
5120.12 ꞏ Equipment Maintenance - Misc 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

Total 5120 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT 8,109.64 121,950.00 -113,840.36 6.6%

5121 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-ELECTRONICS
5121.1 ꞏ Computers 2,450.00 1,000.00 1,450.00 245.0%
5121.2 ꞏ Radios, Pagers, & FireCom 59.22 400.00 -340.78 14.8%
5121.3 ꞏ Batteries 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%

Total 5121 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-ELECTRONICS 2,509.22 2,900.00 -390.78 86.5%

5122 ꞏ FUEL
5122.1 ꞏ Fuel 0.00 2,917.00 -2,917.00 0.0%

11:26 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

08/05/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2021

Page 3

16



Jul 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5122 ꞏ FUEL - Other 928.09 0.00 928.09 100.0%

Total 5122 ꞏ FUEL 928.09 2,917.00 -1,988.91 31.8%

5126 ꞏ UTILITIES
5126.1 ꞏ P G & E

Arcata 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mad River 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
McK 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5126.1 ꞏ P G & E - Other 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

Total 5126.1 ꞏ P G & E 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

5126.2 ꞏ Water & Sewer
Arcata 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mad River 162.73 0.00 162.73 100.0%
McK 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5126.2 ꞏ Water & Sewer - Other 160.03 500.00 -339.97 32.0%

Total 5126.2 ꞏ Water & Sewer 322.76 500.00 -177.24 64.6%

Total 5126 ꞏ UTILITIES 322.76 3,000.00 -2,677.24 10.8%

5130 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-STRUCTURE
5130.1 ꞏ General Structure Maintenance

Arcata 5.41 0.00 5.41 100.0%
Mad River 229.50 0.00 229.50 100.0%
McK 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5130.1 ꞏ General Structure Maintenance - Other 13.43 1,000.00 -986.57 1.3%

Total 5130.1 ꞏ General Structure Maintenance 248.34 1,000.00 -751.66 24.8%

5130.2 ꞏ Grounds Maintenance
Arcata 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5130.2 ꞏ Grounds Maintenance - Other 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

Total 5130.2 ꞏ Grounds Maintenance 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

5130.3 ꞏ Emergency Power Maintenance
Arcata 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
McK 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5130.3 ꞏ Emergency Power Maintenance - Other 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

Total 5130.3 ꞏ Emergency Power Maintenance 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

5130.4 ꞏ Pest Control 0.00 121.00 -121.00 0.0%

Total 5130 ꞏ MAINTENANCE-STRUCTURE 248.34 3,621.00 -3,372.66 6.9%

5140 ꞏ MEDICAL SUPPLIES
5140.1 ꞏ Medical Supplies 473.55 500.00 -26.45 94.7%
5140 ꞏ MEDICAL SUPPLIES - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5140 ꞏ MEDICAL SUPPLIES 473.55 500.00 -26.45 94.7%

5150 ꞏ DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
5150.2 ꞏ Scheduling Program Annual Fee 2,808.00 2,674.00 134.00 105.0%
5150.4 ꞏ Parcel Quest Annual Fees 0.00 1,800.00 -1,800.00 0.0%
5150.6 ꞏ Dues 1,245.00 2,000.00 -755.00 62.3%
5150.7 ꞏ Subscriptions -299.00 1,900.00 -2,199.00 -15.7%
5150.8 ꞏ Google Services 436.19 0.00 436.19 100.0%
5150.9 ꞏ Emergency Reporting Software 0.00 3,700.00 -3,700.00 0.0%
5150.10 ꞏ eDispatches Software 0.00 1,750.00 -1,750.00 0.0%
5150.11 ꞏ Humboldt Co. Fire Chiefs' Assoc 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
5150 ꞏ DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS - Other 187.50

Total 5150 ꞏ DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 4,377.69 14,624.00 -10,246.31 29.9%

5160 ꞏ MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

11:26 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

08/05/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2021

Page 4

17



Jul 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5170 ꞏ OFFICE SUPPLIES
5170.1 ꞏ Office Supplies 4.20 375.00 -370.80 1.1%
5170 ꞏ OFFICE SUPPLIES - Other 31.70 0.00 31.70 100.0%

Total 5170 ꞏ OFFICE SUPPLIES 35.90 375.00 -339.10 9.6%

5171 ꞏ POSTAGE & SHIPPING
5171.1 ꞏ Postage & Shipping 0.00 84.00 -84.00 0.0%
5171 ꞏ POSTAGE & SHIPPING - Other 124.87 0.00 124.87 100.0%

Total 5171 ꞏ POSTAGE & SHIPPING 124.87 84.00 40.87 148.7%

5180 ꞏ PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES
5180.1 ꞏ Dispatch Services 0.00 34,645.00 -34,645.00 0.0%
5180.2 ꞏ Legal Services 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
5180.3 ꞏ Audit Services 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
5180.4 ꞏ Accountant/Bookkeeping 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
5180.5 ꞏ Shredding Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5180.6 ꞏ CAD Interface Maintenance Fee 0.00 1,750.00 -1,750.00 0.0%
5180.8 ꞏ OPEB Report (GASB) 1,950.00 7,000.00 -5,050.00 27.9%
5180.9 ꞏ Medical exam/Drug Screening 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
5180.11 ꞏ Background Checks 8,958.60 8,000.00 958.60 112.0%
5180.12 ꞏ IT Services 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%
5180.15 ꞏ Miscellaneous Services 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5180.16 ꞏ Human Resource Services 0.00 57,100.00 -57,100.00 0.0%
5180.17 ꞏ Web Page Hosting 300.00 125.00 175.00 240.0%

Total 5180 ꞏ PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES 11,208.60 146,620.00 -135,411.40 7.6%

5190 ꞏ PUBLICATIONS & NOTICES
5191.1 ꞏ Publications & Notices 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
5190 ꞏ PUBLICATIONS & NOTICES - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5190 ꞏ PUBLICATIONS & NOTICES 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

5200 ꞏ LEASES-EQUIPMENT
5200.1 ꞏ Copier 575.39 625.00 -49.61 92.1%

Total 5200 ꞏ LEASES-EQUIPMENT 575.39 625.00 -49.61 92.1%

5210 ꞏ RENT
5210.1 ꞏ Arcata Station 0.00 8,000.00 -8,000.00 0.0%
5210 ꞏ RENT - Other 16,000.00 0.00 16,000.00 100.0%

Total 5210 ꞏ RENT 16,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 200.0%

5230 ꞏ SPECIAL DISTRICT EXPENSE
5230.1 ꞏ Property Tax Admin Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5230.2 ꞏ Tax Roll Direct Charge Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5230.3 ꞏ LAFCO Annual Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5230.5 ꞏ Assessment Adjustments/Refunds 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
5230.6 ꞏ Public Education Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5230.7 ꞏ Fire Prevention Supplies 0.00 400.00 -400.00 0.0%
5230.8 ꞏ Certifications 115.00 1,000.00 -885.00 11.5%
5230.10 ꞏ Recruitment 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
5230.11 ꞏ Bank Fees 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
5230.14 ꞏ Recognition, Shields, Badges 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
5230.15 ꞏ Health & Wellness 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
5230.16 ꞏ Public Outreach 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
5230.17 ꞏ HFB Truck Contract 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
5230.4 ꞏ Greenway Partners 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5230 ꞏ SPECIAL DISTRICT EXPENSE 115.00 25,900.00 -25,785.00 0.4%

5234 ꞏ TRAINING
5234.1 ꞏ Staff Training 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%
5234.2 ꞏ Training Supplies 231.52 10,000.00 -9,768.48 2.3%

Total 5234 ꞏ TRAINING 231.52 11,500.00 -11,268.48 2.0%

11:26 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

08/05/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2021

Page 5

18



Jul 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5280 ꞏ OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES
5280.2 ꞏ HCFCA  Air Trailer Annual Fee 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

Total 5280 ꞏ OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

5370 ꞏ EQUIPMENT PURCHASES
5370.1 ꞏ PPE - Structural 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5370.2 ꞏ PPE - Wildland 331.19 0.00 331.19 100.0%
5370.3 ꞏ PPE - VLU 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5370.4 ꞏ Fire Hose 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5370.5 ꞏ Equipment Fabrication 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5370.6 ꞏ Firefighting Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5370.8 ꞏ Computer Systems Upgrade 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 5370 ꞏ EQUIPMENT PURCHASES 331.19 0.00 331.19 100.0%

Total SERVICE & SUPPLIES 84,137.97 396,994.00 -312,856.03 21.2%

OTHER BUDGET FUNDING REQUIRED
EQUIPMENT LOAN DEBT SERVICE

5300 ꞏ LONG TERM DEBT - INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5290 ꞏ LONG TERM DEBT - PRINCIPAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total EQUIPMENT LOAN DEBT SERVICE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPERATING FUND TRANSFERS
CalPERS Unfunded Liability 431,548.00 435,434.00 -3,886.00 99.1%
PERS Rate Contingency Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total OPERATING FUND TRANSFERS 431,548.00 435,434.00 -3,886.00 99.1%

Total OTHER BUDGET FUNDING REQUIRED 431,548.00 435,434.00 -3,886.00 99.1%

6560 ꞏ PAYROLL EXPENSES 3,852.20
66910 ꞏ Bank Service Charges 25.00

Total Expense 859,426.84 1,238,089.09 -378,662.25 69.4%

Net Ordinary Income -813,151.80 -834,878.09 21,726.29 97.4%

Net Income -813,151.80 -834,878.09 21,726.29 97.4%

11:26 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT

08/05/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2021

Page 6

19



Type Date Memo Account Amount

ADVANCED SECURITY
Bill 07/02/2021 Arcata and MR monitoring 07/01/21 to 09/30/21 5060.2 ꞏ Alarm Monitoring 279.00
Bill 07/09/2021 MR Station Site visit and battery 5060.2 ꞏ Alarm Monitoring 144.83

Total ADVANCED SECURITY 423.83

ALADTEC,  INC
Bill 07/13/2021 Employee Scheduling Program - Fire Manager 5150.2 ꞏ Scheduling Program... 2,808.00

Total ALADTEC,  INC 2,808.00

AMAZON
Credit Card Charge 07/15/2021 Firefighters Handbook on Wildland Firefighting Strategy... 5234.2 ꞏ Training Supplies 35.45
Credit Card Charge 07/16/2021 Two cases of nitrile gloves, one med one large 5140.1 ꞏ Medical Supplies 452.12
Credit Card Charge 07/28/2021 Adhesive remover for apparatus number removal 5120.1 ꞏ Fire Apparatus 100.73
Credit Card Charge 07/28/2021 plastic razor blades to remove numbering system on the engines 5120.1 ꞏ Fire Apparatus 12.90

Total AMAZON 601.20

ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS ASSOC.
Bill 07/01/2021 July 5210 ꞏ RENT 8,000.00
Bill 07/09/2021 August 2021 5210 ꞏ RENT 8,000.00

Total ARCATA VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS ASSOC. 16,000.00

AT&T- CAL NET 3
Bill 07/19/2021 Service Period 06-19-21 to 07-18-21 5060.1 ꞏ Phones & Internet 162.07

Total AT&T- CAL NET 3 162.07

BAUER COMPRESSORS, INC.
Bill 07/19/2021 Annual Compressor Maintenance 5120.7 ꞏ SCBA 1,269.44

Total BAUER COMPRESSORS, INC. 1,269.44

CAL PERS
Bill 07/01/2021 Plan Identifier 15040 UAL Payment CalPERS Unfunded Liability 2,821.00
Bill 07/01/2021 Plan Identifier 27345 UAL Payment CalPERS Unfunded Liability 205.00
Bill 07/01/2021 Plan Identifier 25801 UAL Payment CalPERS Unfunded Liability 2,715.00
Bill 07/01/2021 Plan Identifier 798 UAL Payment CalPERS Unfunded Liability 419,356.00
Bill 07/01/2021 Plan Identifier 797 UAL Payment CalPERS Unfunded Liability 6,451.00
Liability Check 07/09/2021 Employer Contributions PP 05-30-21 to 06-12-21 5020.1 ꞏ CalPERS Retirement 15,444.52
Liability Check 07/23/2021 Employer Contributions PP 06-13-21 to 06-26-21 (Payments incl... 5020.1 ꞏ CalPERS Retirement 16,442.12

Total CAL PERS 463,434.64

CALIFORNIA FIRE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION
Bill 07/01/2021 Tier 2 Member Renewal 5150.6 ꞏ Dues 960.00

Total CALIFORNIA FIRE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION 960.00

CalPERS 457 PLAN
Liability Check 07/09/2021 Employer Match PP 06-13-21 to 06-26-21 5010.5 ꞏ Deferred Compensa... 1,900.00
Liability Check 07/23/2021 Employer Match PP 06-27-21 to 07-10-21 5010.5 ꞏ Deferred Compensa... 1,900.00

Total CalPERS 457 PLAN 3,800.00

CITY OF ARCATA
Bill 07/28/2021 Service Period 06-28-21 to 07-27-21 5126.2 ꞏ Water & Sewer 160.03

Total CITY OF ARCATA 160.03

CJ'S FIRE SUPPORT
Bill 07/15/2021 Deferred maintenance repairs 8216 ꞏ E8216 5,972.88

Total CJ'S FIRE SUPPORT 5,972.88

COASTAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC
Bill 07/13/2021 Sharp, Lexmark and Aquos Board 5200.1 ꞏ Copier 575.39

Total COASTAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC 575.39

DR ASSOCIATES INTERNATIONAL
Bill 07/01/2021 Background investigations 5180.11 ꞏ Background Checks 8,958.60

Total DR ASSOCIATES INTERNATIONAL 8,958.60

EUREKA OXYGEN
Bill 07/31/2021 Oxygen cylander rental 5140.1 ꞏ Medical Supplies 21.43

Total EUREKA OXYGEN 21.43

11:27 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT
08/05/21 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis July 2021

Page 1

20



Type Date Memo Account Amount

EVAN GIBBS
Bill 07/26/2021 Wildland boots reimbursement 5370.2 ꞏ PPE - Wildland 331.19

Total EVAN GIBBS 331.19

FAIRA
Bill 07/16/2021 Effective Coverage 07-01-21 to 06-30-22 5100.1 ꞏ Liability Insurance 35,221.00

Total FAIRA 35,221.00

FDAC
Bill 07/22/2021 2021/22 Membership Dues 5150 ꞏ DUES & SUBSCRIPTI... 187.50

Total FDAC 187.50

FDAC EBA
Bill 07/01/2021 July Coverage 5030.4 ꞏ Dental & Life Insura... 2,698.32
Bill 07/09/2021 August Premiums 5030.4 ꞏ Dental & Life Insura... 2,274.36

Total FDAC EBA 4,972.68

FIREHALL BOOKSTORE
Credit Card Charge 07/15/2021 Firefighters Handbook on Wildland Firefighting Strategy...x4 5234.2 ꞏ Training Supplies 173.47

Total FIREHALL BOOKSTORE 173.47

GOOGLE LLC
Credit Card Charge 07/01/2021 G Suite June 5150.8 ꞏ Google Services 218.20
Credit Card Charge 07/21/2021 Google storage 5150.8 ꞏ Google Services 1.99
Credit Card Charge 07/31/2021 Google workspace July 5150.8 ꞏ Google Services 216.00

Total GOOGLE LLC 436.19

HENSELS
Bill 07/09/2021 Grounding Plug Arcata 5.41
Bill 07/29/2021 Invoice 196200 5130.1 ꞏ General Structure M... 13.43

Total HENSELS 18.84

INFINITE CONSULTING SERVICES
Bill 07/01/2021 Monthly Service Fee 5121.1 ꞏ Computers 2,450.00

Total INFINITE CONSULTING SERVICES 2,450.00

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIRE CHIEF'S
Bill 07/01/2021 Membership Dues 06/01/21 to 05/31/22 5150.6 ꞏ Dues 285.00

Total INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIRE CHIEF'S 285.00

KME FIRE APPARATUS
Bill 07/15/2021 Bezel Headlight Outer 8217 ꞏ E8217 408.78
Bill 07/19/2021 Gasket Inferno Headlight 8217 ꞏ E8217 110.04
Bill 07/28/2021 Red light and chrome flange 8217 ꞏ E8217 174.82

Total KME FIRE APPARATUS 693.64

MACLEOD WATTS, INC
Bill 07/14/2021 Prepare GASB 75 actuarial report for FYE 06-30-21 5180.8 ꞏ OPEB Report (GASB) 1,950.00

Total MACLEOD WATTS, INC 1,950.00

MCKINLEYVILLE ACE HARDWARE
Bill 07/03/2021 WD-40, Padlock, drill bit 5121.2 ꞏ Radios, Pagers, & Fi... 59.22
Bill 07/09/2021 Marking Paint 5234.2 ꞏ Training Supplies 22.60

Total MCKINLEYVILLE ACE HARDWARE 81.82

MCKINLEYVILLE OFFICE SUPPLY
Credit Card Charge 07/09/2021 Dry Erase Markers 5170 ꞏ OFFICE SUPPLIES 5.15
Credit Card Charge 07/22/2021 Shipping cost - Kunkle Valve repair - Arcata Bauer compressor 5171 ꞏ POSTAGE & SHIPPING 14.87

Total MCKINLEYVILLE OFFICE SUPPLY 20.02

MIDAMERICA HRA
Bill 07/01/2021 Retiree HRA July 5030.2 ꞏ Health Insurance (R... 21,016.99
Bill 07/13/2021 August Retireee HRA 5030.2 ꞏ Health Insurance (R... 21,016.99

Total MIDAMERICA HRA 42,033.98

MILLER FARMS NURSERY
Bill 07/09/2021 Chainsaw repairs 5120.9 ꞏ Power Tools Mainte... 60.05

Total MILLER FARMS NURSERY 60.05

11:27 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT
08/05/21 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis July 2021

Page 2

21



Type Date Memo Account Amount

OFFICE DEPOT
Bill 07/16/2021 Label tapes 5170 ꞏ OFFICE SUPPLIES 26.55
Bill 07/23/2021 Staples & tax 5170.1 ꞏ Office Supplies 4.20
Bill 07/23/2021 Stamps 5171 ꞏ POSTAGE & SHIPPING 110.00

Total OFFICE DEPOT 140.75

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
Bill 07/22/2021 Service Period 06-16-21 to 07-15-21 Mad River 162.73

Total PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC 162.73

PERS / HEALTH
Liability Check 07/09/2021 Active Employee Premiums 5030.1 ꞏ Health Insurance (E... 36,390.50
Liability Check 07/09/2021 Retiree Premiums 5030.2 ꞏ Health Insurance (R... 3,366.84
Liability Check 07/09/2021 Active Employee Admin Fee 5030.1 ꞏ Health Insurance (E... 88.49
Liability Check 07/09/2021 Retiree Admin Fee 5030.3 ꞏ Retiree Health Admi... 58.68

Total PERS / HEALTH 39,904.51

RYAN DIXON
Bill 07/12/2021 EMT Recertification 5230.8 ꞏ Certifications 77.00
Bill 07/12/2021 Additional Fee from NCEMS (non-local) 5230.8 ꞏ Certifications 38.00

Total RYAN DIXON 115.00

STREAMLINE
Bill 07/01/2021 July Webpage hosting 5180.17 ꞏ Web Page Hosting 300.00

Total STREAMLINE 300.00

SUDDENLINK
Bill 07/06/2021 Service Period 07-04-21 to 08/03/21 5060.1 ꞏ Phones & Internet 1,179.31

Total SUDDENLINK 1,179.31

THE MILL YARD
Bill Pmt -Check 07/09/2021 Invoice 305600 800941 ꞏ REFUNDS -5.24

Total THE MILL YARD -5.24

THE STANDARD
Bill 07/01/2021 LTD July 2021, adding 5 recruits 5030.7 ꞏ Long Term Disability... 522.00
Bill 07/20/2021 August LTD Premiums 5030.7 ꞏ Long Term Disability... 522.00

Total THE STANDARD 1,044.00

THOMAS HOME CENTER
Bill 07/30/2021 Toilet replacement Mad River 229.50

Total THOMAS HOME CENTER 229.50

VALLEY PACIFIC
Bill 07/28/2021 McK Station 5122 ꞏ FUEL 928.09

Total VALLEY PACIFIC 928.09

WIX.COM
Credit Card Credit 07/06/2021 Web hosting cancellation 5150.7 ꞏ Subscriptions -299.00

Total WIX.COM -299.00

TOTAL 637,762.54

11:27 AM ARCATA FIRE DISTRICT
08/05/21 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis July 2021

Page 3

22



STAFF REPORT 
Consent Calendar Item 3 

Date: August 10, 2021  
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Justin McDonald, Fire Chief 
Subject: Accept the Fiscal Year End 2021 GASB 75 Actuarial Report 

Background 
The primary objective of this GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board) 75 
Report is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments 
for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or 
OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental 
employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This 
Report results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards 
of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits (pensions and 
OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of 
accountability and inter-period equity, and creating additional transparency.  
The scope of this Report addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is 
provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers. GASB 75 
establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of 
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit 
OPEB, this Report identifies the methods and assumptions that are required to be used 
to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial 
present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. Note 
disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about defined benefit 
OPEB also are addressed.  
In addition, this Report details the recognition and disclosure requirements for 
employers with payables to defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through 
trusts that meet the specified criteria and for employers whose employees are provided 
with defined contribution OPEB. This Report also addresses certain circumstances in 
which a non-employer entity provides financial support for OPEB of employees of 
another entity.  
In this Report, distinctions are made regarding the particular requirements depending 
upon whether the OPEB plans through which the benefits are provided are administered 
through trusts that meet the following criteria: 

• Contributions from employers and non-employer contributing entities to the
OPEB plan and earnings on those contributions are irrevocable.

• OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in
accordance with the benefit terms.

OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, non-employer 
contributing entities, the OPEB plan administrator, and the plan members. 

23



The other purpose of this Report is to provide information required by GASB 75 to our 
accountant and auditor so that the findings may be reported in the District’s financial 
statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.  
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board the Board accept the FYE 2021 GASB 75 Report for as 
prepared by MacLeod Watts, Inc. 

District Funds Requested/Required 
☒ No Fiscal Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Included in Budget
☐ Additional Appropriation Requested

Alternatives
Board Discretion 

Attachments 
Attachment 1 - FYE 2021 GASB 75 Report 

24



Attachment 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



STAFF REPORT 
Consent Calendar Item 4 

Date: August 10, 2021 
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Justin McDonald, Fire Chief  
Subject: Adopt Resolution 21-241 Approving Exemptions to Specific Parcels 

for the 2006 Benefit Assessment and the New 2020 Special Tax 
(Measure F)  

Discussion 
District staff has completed the review of parcels assessed by the County within the 
Arcata Fire District and with the passing of Measure F, taken the opportunity to do some 
updates with our assessments. The new 2020 Special Tax will allow the District to 
utilize the County Treasurer-Tax Collector’s office to issue Property Tax Assessment 
bills to many of the property owners who previously were billed directly by the Fire 
District. This is a bonus, not only as a time saver for staff, but more importantly as a 
more efficient method of collection. The Treasurer-Tax Collector has mechanisms in 
place for past due and non-payment of property taxes, whereas the District is not able 
to collect on past or overdue invoices for our special taxes. The District will, however, 
still be invoicing, or Direct Billing, the government entities as has been done in the past.  
Staff also used this time to double check and reassess previously exempted parcels, 
remove those that no longer exist and thoroughly document the purpose for the 
exemption as it pertains to both the special tax and the benefit assessment. The 
attached Resolution 21-241 will memorialize the exempted parcels; however, District 
staff will continue to review them annually to confirm that there have indeed been no 
changes and add to or remove from the list as needed.  A separate list is kept for 
properties that may always have questions, are duplicate parcel numbers, or a property 
owner is unknown. This will also be checked annually.  
Recommendation 
It is staff’s recommendation that the Board adopt Resolution 21-241 with Exhibit A, 
approving the exemption to the listed parcels for the 2006 Benefit Assessment and new 
2020 Special Tax (Measure F).  

District Funds Requested/Required 
☒ No Fiscal Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Included in Budget
☐ Additional Appropriation Requested

Alternatives 
Board Discretion 

Attachments 
Resolution 21-241with Exhibit A 

60



Page 1 of 5 

Resolution Number: 21-241 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
APPROVING EXEMPTIONS TO SPECIFIC PARCELS FOR THE 2006 BENEFIT 

ASSESSMENT AND 2020 SPECIAL TAX (MEASURE F) 

WHEREAS, annually the Humboldt County Assessor provides the District with a list of 
over 13,000 parcels, that make up the Arcata Fire Protection District; and 

WHEREAS, all the parcels within the Arcata Fire District are reviewed and verified by 
District staff for actual land use and fire tax applicability before, the parcel list is 
sent to the Assessor’s Office; and  

WHEREAS, each year, parcel ownership can change, new construction built, or 
parcels become exempt for a variety of reasons; and 

WHEREAS, properties identified by District staff as split parcels, undevelopable, 
unimproved, or government owned properties should not be assessed the District 2006 
Benefit Assessment or the 2020 Special Tax; and  

WHEREAS, a list of these parcels has been attached, herein, as Exhibit A. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Arcata Fire Protection District Board of 
Directors hereby approve the exemption to the specific parcels listed in Exhibit A for 
the 2006 Benefit Assessment and 2020 Special Tax (Measure F).  

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED at a duly called meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the Arcata Fire Protection District by the following polled vote: 

Ayes:  
Nays: 
Abstain: 
Absent: 

 DATED: August 10, 2021 

Signed: 

_____________________________ 

Nicole Johnson, President  

Attest: 

________________________________ 

Becky Schuette, Board Clerk/Secretary 

Attachment 

61



Resolution No. 21-241       Page 2 of 5 

020-011-009-000 US Forest Service Building 
020-023-010-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
020-081-025-000 State Highway 
020-083-001-000 State Highway 
020-084-009-000 State Highway 
020-085-002-000 State Highway 
020-086-002-000 State Highway 
020-087-001-000 State Highway 
020-087-002-000 State Highway 
020-087-003-000 State Highway 
020-087-004-000 State Highway 
020-094-001-000 State Highway 
020-094-002-000 State Highway 
020-094-003-000 State Highway 
020-094-004-000 State Highway 
020-094-005-000 State Highway 
020-095-001-000 State Highway 
020-095-002-000 State Highway 
020-095-003-000 State Highway 
020-095-004-000 State Highway 
020-121-006-000 Roadway 
020-154-040-000 Landlocked, not buildable 
020-155-007-000 State Highway 
020-156-001-000 State Highway 
020-156-003-000 State Highway 
020-156-004-000 State Highway 
020-161-014-000 State Highway 
020-163-009-000 State Highway 
020-164-005-000 State Highway 
020-164-007-000 State Highway 
020-165-001-000 State Highway 
020-165-002-000 State Highway 
020-165-022-000 State Highway 
020-165-023-000 State Highway 
020-165-025-000 State Highway 
020-165-027-000 State Highway 
020-191-001-000 State Highway 
020-191-002-000 State Highway 
020-191-003-000 State Highway 
020-191-004-000 State Highway 
020-191-006-000 State Highway 
020-191-010-000 State Highway 
020-191-013-000 State Highway 
020-191-014-000 State Highway 

020-191-015-000 State Highway 
020-191-018-000 State Highway 
020-191-019-000 State Highway 
020-191-020-000 State Highway 
021-011-003-000 Landlocked - non buildable land 
021-056-005-000 State Highway 
021-121-006-000 Landlocked - non buildable land 
021-201-006-000 Parcel split with 021-201-008  
021-291-008-000 No Charge - Airspace 
021-291-009-000 No Charge - Airspace 
400-011-022-000 Lupin Drive Roadway easement  
400-041-060-000 Sliver corner of 400-041-055-000 
400-041-061-000 Sliver corner of 400-041-055-000 
400-071-045-000 Roadway 

400-091-010-000 Split Parcel, main one billed by 
county 

400-091-027-000 Sliver corner of 400-091-024-000 
400-091-031-000 Non-buildable/beach 
400-111-010-000 Non-buildable 
405-051-008-000 Under Water 
500-021-017-000 Non-buildable 
500-132-009-000 Non-buildable 
500-141-029-000 Historic Parcel 
500-161-009-000 Landlocked, not buildable 
500-172-040-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
500-181-027-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
500-201-018-000 Roadway 
500-211-004-000 Landlocked - non buildable land 
500-221-019-000 Parcel split 
500-310-035-000 Divided by Special Districts 
501-042-010-000 Highway Patrol Office - State Owned 
501-043-003-000 Slough 
501-043-006-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
501-043-007-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
501-043-008-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
501-043-009-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
501-043-011-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
501-061-014-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
501-121-020-000 Non-buildable land 
501-181-003-000 Caltrans Hwy 101 
501-181-004-000 Caltrans Hwy 101 
501-181-006-000 Caltrans Hwy 101 
501-241-012-000 State Owned Marshes 
501-241-018-000 Humboldt Bay - Dept. of Fish & Game 
501-241-020-000 Humboldt Bay - Dept. of Fish & Game 

62



Resolution No. 21-241       Page 3 of 5 

501-241-026-000 Humboldt Bay - Dept. of Fish & Game 
501-251-008-000 Humboldt Bay - Dept. of Fish & Game 
502-021-080-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
502-031-013-000 Non-buildable land 

503-000-001-000 Historic-City of Eka, Utility Right of 
Way  

503-000-002-000 Historic-City of Eka, Utility Right of 
Way  

503-103-008-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-192-002-000 Master APN from Segregated Parcel 
503-221-006-000 Right of Way Easement 

503-224-042-000 Split Parcel, main one billed by 
county 

503-224-043-000 Split Parcel, main one billed by 
county 

503-231-022-000 Landlocked, not buildable 

503-232-009-000 Split Parcel, main one billed by 
county 

503-241-005-000 Non-buildable land 
503-241-006-000 Non-buildable land 
503-241-010-000 Under water 
503-241-011-000 Under water 
503-241-012-000 Under water 
503-241-016-000 PL to Marsh, non-buildable 
503-241-035-000 Common area easement  
503-251-002-000 Under water 
503-251-003-000 Under water 
503-251-009-000 Under water 
503-251-010-000 Under water 
503-251-012-000 Under water 
503-251-014-000 Under water 
503-271-039-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-321-034-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-352-002-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-353-012-000 State Highway 
503-354-001-000 State Highway 
503-354-003-000 State Highway 
503-354-004-000 State Highway 
503-354-005-000 State Highway 
503-354-006-000 State Highway 
503-354-007-000 State Highway 
503-354-008-000 State Highway 
503-354-009-000 State Highway 
503-371-009-000 State Highway 
503-381-017-000 State Highway 
503-381-018-000 State Highway 
503-381-050-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-392-012-000 Non-buildable land 

503-431-027-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-006-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-008-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-022-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-023-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-024-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-031-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-033-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-034-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-037-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-039-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-040-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-047-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-048-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-060-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-062-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-064-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-066-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-071-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-073-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-075-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-077-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
503-511-081-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 

504-000-001-000 Historic-City of Eka, Utility Right of 
Way  

504-031-014-000 Non-buildable strip of greenbelt 
504-101-002-000 Roadway  
504-101-026-000 Non-buildable, roadway 
504-101-027-000 Roadway 
504-101-028-000 Roadway  
504-101-029-000 Roadway  
504-221-006-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
505-032-018-000 Non-buildable land 
505-042-025-000 Todd Court - Street 
505-051-003-000 State Highway 
505-051-013-000 State Highway 
505-051-023-000 Todd Court - Street 
505-072-023-000 Non-buildable land 
505-072-027-000 Parcel Split  
505-072-028-000 Parcel Split 
505-101-006-000 State Highway 
505-141-022-000 Roadway  
505-221-016-000 Non-buildable 
505-294-009-000 Roadway 
505-303-013-000 Non-buildable 
505-311-015-000 Non-buildable land 

63



Resolution No. 21-241       Page 4 of 5 

505-322-016-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
506-011-005-000 Arcata Marsh - State owned 
506-011-006-000 Arcata Marsh - State owned 
506-011-007-000 Arcata Marsh - State owned 
506-021-003-000 Arcata Marsh - State owned 
506-021-005-000 State Owned - Will not pay 
506-021-006-000 State Owned - Will not pay 
506-021-007-000 State Owned - Will not pay 
506-021-008-000 Arcata Marsh - State owned 
506-031-003-000 Arcata Marsh - State owned 
506-031-005-000 Arcata Marsh - State owned 
506-041-002-000 Arcata Marsh - State owned 
506-051-003-000 Non-buildable 
506-051-004-000 Non-buildable 
506-051-007-000 State Owned - Will not pay 
506-061-001-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-061-002-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-061-008-000 Humboldt Bay/Marsh 
506-061-017-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-061-018-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-061-024-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-071-021-000 State Highway 
506-081-011-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
506-082-018-000 County owned, non-buildable 
506-112-002-000 Non-buildable land 
506-112-019-000 Humboldt Bay 
506-112-020-000 Non buildable, mostly underwater 
506-121-004-000 Under water 
506-121-008-000 Underwater 
506-181-001-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-181-003-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-181-005-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-191-002-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-191-008-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-191-009-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-201-004-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-201-005-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-251-002-000 Parcel Split 
506-271-001-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-271-002-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-271-003-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-281-001-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-281-004-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-281-006-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-291-008-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 

506-291-009-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-291-010-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-291-011-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-291-014-000 Lanphere - State Park 
506-311-001-000 Dunes - Federal ownership 
506-311-002-000 Dunes - Federal ownership 
506-312-007-000 Non-buildable 
506-312-016-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
506-331-006-000 Greenbelt & into the Mad River 
506-341-009-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 

507-000-001-000 Historic-City of Eka, Utility Right of 
Way  

507-000-002-000 Historic-City of Eka, Utility Right of 
Way  

507-000-003-000 Historic-City of Eka, Utility Right of 
Way  

507-000-004-000 Historic-City of Eka, Utility Right of 
Way  

507-000-005-000 Historic-City of Eka, Utility Right of 
Way  

507-011-008-000 State Highway 
507-011-021-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
507-011-038-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 

507-021-003-000 Non-buildable cul-de-sac State 
Owned 

507-021-013-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
507-061-007-000 Azalea Reserve 
507-081-047-000 Under water 
507-141-001-000 Azalea Reserve  

507-141-016-000 Non-buildable greenbelt 
embankment  

507-141-033-000 Azalea Reserve - State owned 
507-141-033-000 Mad River 
507-251-011-000 Divided by Special Districts 
507-281-003-000 Non-buildable land 
507-282-009-000 Mad River 
507-283-005-000 Mad River 
507-283-006-000 Parcel split 
507-283-007-000 Landlocked, not buildable 
507-291-069-000 Non-buildable land 
507-440-013-000 Parcel split 

507-440-014-000 Split Parcel, main one billed by 
county 

508-041-006-000 State Highway 
508-051-010-000 State Highway 
508-051-013-000 Non-buildable 
508-151-011-000 Under water 
508-191-052-000 Beach  

508-211-051-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

64



Resolution No. 21-241       Page 5 of 5 

508-211-055-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

508-211-057-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

508-224-036-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

508-224-038-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

508-224-039-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

508-224-048-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

508-251-024-000 Master APN from Segregated Parcel 
508-371-027-000 Non-buildable MCSD property 

508-401-063-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

508-401-065-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

508-401-066-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

508-402-033-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

509-021-049-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
509-032-048-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
509-041-059-000 Non-buildable land 
509-212-019-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
509-212-020-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 

510-211-079-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

510-211-081-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

510-271-018-000 Non-buildable 

510-271-077-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

510-281-023-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

510-341-044-000 Unbuildable Easement 

510-381-022-000 Split Parcel, main one billed by 
county 

510-391-038-000 Right of Way Easement 

510-451-043-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-011-015-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-011-016-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-061-001-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-061-005-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-084-001-000 Split parcel 

511-084-002-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-084-003-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-111-042-000 Non-buildable land 
511-241-008-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 

511-241-022-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
511-261-003-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
511-261-004-000 Non-buildable 
511-291-015-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
511-291-016-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
511-291-017-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
511-291-024-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
511-291-025-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
511-291-026-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
511-291-036-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
511-291-038-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 

511-331-001-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-331-002-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-341-001-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-351-001-000 Historic - County owned, non-
buildable 

511-351-007-000 Beach  
511-351-008-000 Dunes 
511-351-010-000 Feds don't pay - no/low value 
511-361-060-000 Parcel split 
516-091-070-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
516-241-027-000 Parcel split 
516-241-033-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
516-282-007-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
516-283-014-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
516-283-017-000 Parcel split 
516-283-018-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 
516-311-012-000 Divided by Special Districts 
516-331-040-000 Parcel Split - main parcel billed 

65



Page 1 of 2 

Resolution Number: 21-242 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS APPROVING DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 

WHEREAS, by adoption of and in compliance with Resolution 17-181, the Board 
authorizes for the disposal of surplus equipment and supplies; and 

WHEREAS, the Arcata Fire District (the “District) owns the items as describe on the 
attached Exhibit A (collectively, the “Equipment”); and  

WHEREAS, the Chief of the Arcata Fire Protection District hereby finds that the 
Equipment has outlived its useful life or is surplus and that it is no longer necessary, 
useful, or in the best interest of the District to retain ownership of the Equipment; 
and  

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the District if appropriate to donate any of the 
Equipment to local fire agencies as provided herein as Exhibit A.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Arcata Fire Protection District Board of 
Directors hereby declares the property listed in Exhibit A as excess to District need 
and directs the Fire Chief to donate the equipment to local fire agencies  

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED at a duly called meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the Arcata Fire Protection District by the following polled vote: 

Ayes:  
Nays: 
Abstain: 
Absent: 

DATED: August 10, 2021 

Signed: 

_____________________________ 
Nicole Johnson, President  

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Becky Schuette, Board Clerk/Secretary 

CONSENT  Item 5

66



Exhibit A 

Resolution No. 21-242       Page 2 of 2 

Arcata Fire District Surplus Equipment (08/10/21) 

ID # Description Quantity 
1595 Model 718G4-H Super Vac Ser/11477 Fan w/Honda GX200 6.5hp motor 1 
None Model GF165 Ser/1608 Turbo Ramfan Ventilator w/Honda GX160 5.5hp 1 

67



Correspondence 
& 

Communications 

68



Public Correspondence A

69



Public Correspondence B

70



Page 1 of 7 

STAFF REPORT 

Date: August 10, 2021 
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Justin McDonald, Fire Chief 
Subject: Fire Chief’s Monthly Report 

July Incident Activity 
Major Incidents 
7/3/21 Structure Fire – 1400 Block of Murray Road, McKinleyville 
7/8/21 Structure Fire – 1061 Hayes Road, McKinleyville 
7/17/21 Mutual Aid to Humboldt Bay Fire – Structure Fire 3343 N Street, Eureka 

INCIDENT COUNT

Service Call
Good Intent Call

False Alarm & False Call

15
0

98
2

7.98%Fires
Overpressure rupture, explosion, overheat - no fire

Rescue & Emergency Medical Service
Hazardous Condition (No Fire)

19
42

100.00%
Severe Weather, Natural Disaster, & Other 0 0.00%

12

0.00%
52.13%
1.06%
10.11%
22.34%
6.38%

 INCIDENT COUNT BY ZONE
188TOTAL

City of Arcata, 87, 48%

McKinleyville Area, 80, 44%

Manila Area, 1, 0%
HSU Campus, 0, 0%

Out of District, 2, 1%

Glendale/West 
End Area, 1, 1%

Arcata Bottoms 
Area, 1, 1%

Bayside Area, 5, 
3%

Fickle Hill Area, 3, 
2%

71



Page 2 of 7 

Monthly Operations Report 
July Overtime Hours - Career staff covered 321 hours of OT to cover for minimum 
staffing levels for two stations.    
Training Highlights – 282 hours of training that included EMS refresher, Auto 
Extrication, Drivers training refresher, and Hose evolutions. 

Maintenance 
• U8206 -

Heater fan control relay replaced- in house- $35.00
• E8211-

Tire Camber Inspection- Pro Pacific- $76.00
Model Q Repair- Superior Install- $150.00
Crosslay Cover Rebuild-North Coast Awning- $100.00
Crosslay Cover Removal/Install- in house- $64.00

• E8215 –
Tank fitting leak repaired- in house- $0

Arcata 0:02:52 0:06:41

AVERAGE FOR ALL CALLS 0:03:28

Mad River 0:04:22 0:05:46

McKinleyville 0:02:54 0:09:44

ANNUAL INCIDENT COUNT 2020 

PRE-INCIDENT VALUE LOSSES

Aid Received 4

$646,647.00 $142,532.00

Station Response Area EMS FIRE

OVERLAPPING CALLS
# OVERLAPPING

MUTUAL AID

% OVERLAPPING
47 25.00%

LIGHTS AND SIREN - AVERAGE RESPONSE TIME (Dispatch to Arrival)

Aid Type Total
Aid Given 0

291

242
259

278 266
294

188

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

72



Page 3 of 7 

• E8216 -
Tank fill valve leak repaired, front bumper valve replaced, compartment lights
repaired, pump panel lights repaired, arrow-stick light repaired, pump
transmission seal replaced, pump packing replaced, left intake cracked weld
repaired, new batteries installed, exhaust leak repaired, tank to pump valve
replaced- CJ Fire Pumps- $5972.00
Kussmaul Auto Eject Replaced- in house- $328.00
Air Leak repaired and EGR Sensor replaced- Pro Pacific- $1447.00

• E8217-
SCBA bracket repaired- in house- $0

• Bauer Air Compressor
Fill Valve replaced- in house- $164.00
Kunkle Valves rebuilt and certified- Bauer- $700.00
Kunkle Valves removed and reinstalled- in house- $32.00

• Generators
Arcata/MR/McKinleyville Generators Serviced- John’s Mobile Repair- $787.00
McKinleyville Generator exhaust extended- in house- $64.00

Fire Prevention Report 

Fire Marshal’s Office Hours worked – 80 hours 
Activity Count 

ARF BLFD/SPFD 
Building Projects 

• Project Referrals 3 0 
• Plan Reviews 9 0 
• Building Code Interpretations 2 2 

Inspections 
• Construction 18 1 
• Business License 4 
• State Mandated 0 

o R2, Community Care Licensing
• Cannabis Facilities 1 
• Special 4 

o Sprinkler Flush & Hydro Test
Enforcement 

• Hazard Abatement 1 
• Code Enforcement 2 
• Referrals from R1 inspector 0 

Meetings 
• Building Department Pre-app 2 
• General Meeting 0 
• Public Education 0 

Other 
• Hydrant Flow 2 

73



Page 4 of 7 

• Cannabis Tour 1 
• Misc. Other Event 1 

o Oral Board City of Eureka Code Enforcement

Inspection Program Total Hours – 90.5 hours 

R1/R2 Inspection Activity Count 
• Initial Site Inspections 45 Sites / 361 Units 

 Results: 30 compliant / 15 non-compliant
• First re-inspections – 7 locations with 7 compliant and 0 non-compliant
• Second re-inspection (fee charged) – 0 locations with 0 compliant and 0 non-

compliant

Other Inspections 
• 9 School inspections were completed
• Continuing to compile an accurate listing of sprinkled buildings

Monthly Administrative Report 

Staffing Updates – With the approval of the soft opening concept being approved at 
the July Board meeting, the District is projecting that for 18 days in August three 
stations will be staffed.  The first day projected to have all stations open is August 9th.  
This status is subject to change as crews may be sent to assist with the wildland fire in 
the north state.  A media release will be sent out to describe why and how we are able 
to soft open the third station.   Engineer Gibbs and Benelisha were appointed to interim 
Captain positions to reopen the third station.  It is also projected the Captain on injury 
leave will likely be returning to work in October.    

Hiring/Promotional Process - Staff has been working with CPS HR on the concurrent 
recruitment processes to fill the Measure F funded positions.  The team estimates the 
announcements will be released around the end of September and the 
interview/assessment process taking place during the week of November 8th.   

Measure F Citizen Advisory Committee –   During last month’s Board meeting, there 
was a question asked of staff regarding the status of the Measure F Advisory 
Committee. At the March 9, 2021, Board meeting, the Board approved the document 
“Implementation of a Citizens Advisory Committee.”  The purpose of this committee is to 
monitor and provide oversight of the voter-approved special tax.   
The purpose of the Committee shall be to inform the public at least annually, in a written 
report, concerning the expenditure of the funds received, or expected to be received, by 
the District. In carrying out this purpose the Committee shall: 

• Actively review and report on the proper expenditure of taxpayers’ money related
to the purpose and intent of Measure F, which is defined in Section 2 of
Ordinance 20-20 as: “The proceeds from this special tax shall be used

74



Page 5 of 7 

solely for the purpose of providing fire protection, rescue, and emergency 
medical services within the District. In particular, the special tax will be 
used to maintain and improve the current level of community-based fire 
protection services provided by the District. This includes annual budget 
support to maintain current firefighter positions, and provide for adequate 
firefighting equipment, apparatus, and necessary capital improvements, 
consistent with the needs of the residents of the District and the Fire 
Protection District Law of 1987.” 

• Become familiar with current and projected District revenues and expenditures;
• Participate in a public forum reviewing expenditures of funds derived from the

special tax;
• Advise the public as to whether the District is in compliance with the

requirements of Ordinance 20-20;
• Make a determination that funds are expended only for the purpose established

by Ordinance 20-20;
• Acknowledge that the Committee shall not have the authority to override, or veto,

any District determination to expend or commit funds in a particular manner;
• Ensure that an annual independent financial audit or performance audit is

performed that is satisfactory to the Committee.
• Work collaboratively with the District staff and Board and members of the public

to address potential public concerns about expenditure of funds derived from the
special tax.

• Provide an annual report of findings of the Committee of expenditures and
compliance with Ordinance 20-20.

The documentation also outlines the Committee appointment and membership process.  
Staff has not yet begun the process of recruiting for the Committee.  Since the 
Committee’s purpose is review funds received and expenditures to ensure that they are 
within the intent of Measure F, it is anticipated that the recruitment for members of this 
committee will likely after the first of the year.   

2020 Census Director Division Redistricting – Staff has received notice that the 
federal census data has been delayed numerous times.  The County anticipates the 
data to be available in late October 2021.  Once the census data is available, staff will 
be able to determine if the Director divisions remain equal in population served or have 
become unbalanced.   

Water Conservation - Given the worsening drought conditions, and most all local water 
agencies declaring drought emergencies, the District operations will need to be 
changed with regards to use water for non-firefighting activities.   

In order to reduce the amount of water used by our operations, the following restrictions 
will be immediately implemented: 

1. Drills and training using water will be restricted to avoid unnecessary use.  If any
water is to be flowed, crews will use the draft pit at Mad River to ensure that the
water runoff is collected and recycled.  There should not be any free flowing of
water into the storm drains or open land.

75



Page 6 of 7 

2. Sprinkler systems for station lawns are to be shut off and lawns and landscaping
will not be watered.

3. No washing of outdoor hard surfaces. Apparatus bays, ramps and sidewalks will
be swept as needed.

4. Engine washing will be restricted to only those times when is absolutely
necessary and a hand-held hose with a positive shut-off nozzle for quick rinses
will be used.

5. Personal vehicles will not be washed at the stations.
6. Hydrant flows will only be conducted upon request and in coordination with the

water purveyor
7. All staff shall limit or eliminate non-essential water use.

76



Page 7 of 7 

Revenue Recovery 

Insurance Claims

Inspection Fees Paid 

Billing Status Count FD Amount 
Open -30 1 $491.25 
Open -60 1 $236.00 
Open -90 0 $0 
Open -90+ 0 $0 
Sent to collections 11 $1682.00 
Accounts Receivable $2409.25 

77



District 
Business 

78



STAFF REPORT 
District Business Item 1 

Date: August 10, 2021  
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Justin McDonald, Fire Chief 
Subject: Provide Direction to Staff/ Bond Counsel Regarding UAL refinancing 

Background 
At the June Board meeting, staff was given direction to engage in the services of Weist 
Law LLP and California Municipal Advisors to refinance the District’s outstanding 
Unfunded Accrued Liability with CalPERS.  Mr. Weist has provided a memo that 
describes the differences between a private offering versus the public offering of a 
municipal bond.  Further, Mr. Weist will be seeking direction from the Board with its 
preference on which offering to pursue. 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board consider the information provided, discuss, take public 
comment, and direct staff/bond counsel on how to proceed. 
District Funds Requested/Required 
☒ No Fiscal Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Included in Budget
☐ Additional Appropriation Requested

Alternatives
Board Discretion 

Attachments 
Attachment 1 –Informational Memo - Private Placement vs. Public Offering 

79



INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 

To:  Chief Justin McDonald, Fire Chief, Arcata FPD 

From:  Cameron Weist, Weist Law LLP 
Andrew Flynn, California Municipal Advisors LLC 

Date: August 2, 2021 

Re: Private Placement vs. Public Offering 

Per the District’s request, we are providing current indicative market interest rates in relation to 
the proposed Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) refunding of the District’s outstanding Unfunded 
Accrued Liability (UAL). Neither Weist Law nor California Municipal Advisors LLC performed 
an independent verification of this information, but it such information is consistent with what we 
are experiencing with other similar transactions. 

The following table summarizes the results of the assessment. 

Arcata Fire Protection District 
Private Placement vs. Public Sale 

Indicative Interest Rate Comparison 
(Assumes 20-Year Term) 

Description  
Private 

Placement  Public Sale  Difference 

True Interest Rate Estimate[1]  3.67%  3.38% 0.29% 

Estimated Average Annual Payment[2]  $434,630  $426,540[3]  $8,090 

Estimated Total Cash Flow Savings[2][4]  $1,775,343 $1,936,918[3]  $161,575 

[1] Interest rate estimate is based on estimated current market rates and includes all costs of issuance. Actual
rates may vary. Public sale interest rate includes underwriter's discount. The following assumptions were
utilized:

- 100% refunding of remaining UAL balances
- Closing Date of September 9, 2021
- Costs of issuance estimated at $97,000 for private placement and $195,000 for public sale

[2] Annual payments include amortization of costs of issuance. Cash flow savings are shown after the costs
of issuance.

[3] Adjusted to reflect annual continuing disclosure and trustee costs (combined is approximately $3,000)
associated with public offerings.

[4] Savings are based on 7% CalPERS discount rate. PV savings depend on actual rate of return and may
be different.

Attachment 

80



Arcata Fire Protection District 
Indicative Interest Rates – Public Sale vs. Private Placement Options – 08/02/2021 

Page 2 

The following is a brief description of public offerings and private placements: 

Public Offering. Normally, when a government agency sells bonds or other types of long-term 
indebtedness, the underlying debt instruments are sold to an underwriter and ultimately made 
available and sold to private individuals and institutional investors worldwide. In other words, the 
bonds are made available to any investor (national or international) interested in purchasing the 
municipal debt. These are defined as “public offerings.” Public Offerings have the advantage of 
“serializing” the interest rate scale. This means that each annual maturity has its own interest rate, 
and underwriters are then able to create competition for the interest rate associated with each 
annual maturity. For example, a 20-year bond would have 20 different interest rates in which to 
create competition, thereby resulting in achieving the best interest rates possible for the District 
(please note that the District pays a fixed rate--not variable--which is a composition fixed interest 
rate for the life of the bonds).  

Underwriters utilizing an official statement (investor disclosure document) as its primary 
marketing tool to “offer” the bonds to their worldwide network of investors. This 
offering/disclosure document, known as a “Preliminary Official Statement” (or “POS”) requires 
an enhanced due diligence effort by all parties.  Oftentimes, a credit rating and bond insurance will 
be solicited and purchased if is determined by the Municipal Advisor that such purchase will 
reduce the overall cost of borrowing.   

Private Placement Offering. The alternative approach is referred to as a “private placement” 
offering because the underlying debt instruments would not be available for purchase by general 
investors, but rather is purchased by a single investor such as a commercial bank. In the past several 
years, such direct lending to municipalities has increased as banks seek new ways to put their 
capital to work (however, due to the complexities surrounding pensions and UAL, there are only 
about 10 commercial banks presently sophisticated enough to compete in this space). The only 
way to ensure that you are getting the best interest rate possible is to produce a detailed term sheet 
and request targeted banks submit proposals for the purchase of the UAL debt obligations. In this 
instance, the underwriting firm would instead act as a “placement agent” and be responsible for 
procuring bids from potential direct purchasers.   

With a private placement, there is no requirement to prepare a Preliminary Official Statement, or 
to solicit a bond rating or purchase bond insurance.  Additionally, many banks will permit the 
District to eliminate, or reduce the size requirement of a debt service reserve fund, thereby reducing 
amount District would need to borrow.  All-in costs of issuance are estimated at approximately 
$97,000.  A private placement is typically quicker to execute and less vulnerable to market 
movement, which can also make it more desirable. Another key difference is that a private 
placement requires less time (about 60 days instead of 100 days for a public offering) and effort 
by District staff to prepare disclosure documents that meet federal securities laws. 

Conclusion 

Based on the current market information, a public sale (issuance of municipal bonds) is expected 
to generate somewhat higher overall cash flow savings (about $160,000) for the District based 
upon a 20-year term.  

81



Arcata Fire Protection District 
Indicative Interest Rates – Public Sale vs. Private Placement Options – 08/02/2021 

Page 3 

However, in deciding on which route to pursue, the District should weigh the additional cash flow 
savings from the public sale against the longer issuance time-frame and level of staff involvement 
for public sale, post-refunding continuing disclosure requirements, and possible fluctuations of 
market interest rates. 

82



STAFF REPORT 
District Business Item 2 

Date: August 10, 2021  
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Justin McDonald, Fire Chief 
Subject: Receive Classification and Total Compensation Report from CPS HR 

Background 
In December 2020, the Board authorized CPS HR to conduct a market study of the 
District classifications and total compensation.  The study compared the District to 8 
regional fire agencies, in addition to Humboldt Bay Fire and CalFire.  This report should 
be utilized as a recommendation only, not a final approach, to assist the District with 
recruitment and retention of employees.  The CPS HR representative will be presenting 
the Board with a brief overview of the process and the results.  The Board will have an 
opportunity to ask clarifying questions regarding the process, findings, and 
recommendations.  The Board should refrain from any discussion of specific wage and 
benefit discussions related to the bargaining units.  The Board will have an 
opportunity to discuss the deployment strategy with the District’s labor 
negotiator during closed session.   
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board receive the Classification and Total Compensation Report 
from CPS HR, discuss and take public comment. This item is for information only.  
District Funds Requested/Required 
☒ No Fiscal Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Included in Budget
☐ Additional Appropriation Requested

Alternatives
Board Discretion 

Attachments 
Attachment 1 – CPS HR Classification and Total Compensation Report 

83



P a g e  | 1 

SUBMITTED BY: 
Project Manager 
Jan Bentley 
jbentley@cpshr.us 

Project Consultants 
Edie Sabia 
esabia@cpshr.us 

Igor Shegolev 
ishegolev@cpshr.us 

CPS HR Consulting 
2450 Del Paso Road, Suite 220 
Sacramento, CA 95834 
www.cpshr.us 

 August 3, 2021 

Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification  

And Total Compensation Report 

Attachment 

84

mailto:jbentley@cpshr.us
mailto:esabia@cpshr.us
mailto:ishegolev@cpshr.us
http://www.cpshr.us/


Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 1 

Contents 
I. Introduction ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

II. Project Scope and Work Plan ............................................................................................................ 4 

III. Conceptual Framework – Classification ............................................................................................ 6 

Classification Concepts and Principles .................................................................................................. 6 

Basic Classification Guidelines .............................................................................................................. 6 

Position, Class, Series, and Job Family ............................................................................................... 6 

Classification Versus Allocation ......................................................................................................... 7 

Broad Versus Narrow Classes ............................................................................................................ 7 

Preponderance .................................................................................................................................. 8 

Classification of the Position, Not the Employee .............................................................................. 8 

Level Versus Volume of Work ........................................................................................................... 8 

Using Classification Factors ................................................................................................................... 8 

Class Leveling Conventions ................................................................................................................... 9 

IV. Classification Analysis and Recommendations ................................................................................... 12 

Overview ............................................................................................................................................. 12 

V. Compensation Study Parameters ....................................................................................................... 17 

Labor Market Data Points and Position ............................................................................................... 17 

Labor Market Agencies ....................................................................................................................... 17 

Survey Classifications .......................................................................................................................... 19 

Survey Data Collection Scope .............................................................................................................. 20 

Comparable Classifications – Classification Matching ..................................................................... 20 

Comparable Classifications – Required Number of Comparable Classifications .............................. 20 

Internal Equity Considerations When Insufficient Number of Comparable Classifications ............. 20 

Labor Market Benefits and Compensation Practices ...................................................................... 20 

VI. Compensation Survey Results ............................................................................................................ 23 

Compensation Results ......................................................................................................................... 23 

Benchmark Comparable Classification Requirement .......................................................................... 23 

Labor Market Response ...................................................................................................................... 23 

Labor Market Position by Classification .............................................................................................. 23 

85



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 2 

Reporting Definitions .......................................................................................................................... 24 

Summary of Labor Market Position .................................................................................................... 26 

VII. Summary of Benefit Tables & Other Compensation ......................................................................... 28 

VIII. Salary Recommendations ................................................................................................................ 35 

IX. Recruitment and Retention Strategies ............................................................................................... 38 

Methodology ...................................................................................................................................... 38 

Agency Demographics ......................................................................................................................... 38 

Management Structures ..................................................................................................................... 38 

Hiring Level (Entry) .............................................................................................................................. 39 

Minimum Emergency Operations Staffing .......................................................................................... 39 

Apprenticeship/Internship/Part-time Programs ................................................................................. 40 

Salary Step Structure ........................................................................................................................... 40 

Tuition Reimbursement ...................................................................................................................... 40 

Incentive Pays ..................................................................................................................................... 41 

Training ............................................................................................................................................... 41 

Special Funding/Outsourcing/Consolidation ....................................................................................... 41 

Summary of Findings ........................................................................................................................... 42 

X. Conclusion ........................................................................................................................................... 44 

Appendix A: Position Description Questionnaire .................................................................................... 45 

Appendix B: Position Allocation Table .................................................................................................... 59 

Appendix C: Final Classification Specifications ........................................................................................ 61 

Appendix D: Compensation Datasheets ................................................................................................ 112 

Appendix E: Benefit and Compensation Practices Tables ..................................................................... 121 

 
 

86



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 3 

I. Introduction 

CPS HR Consulting (CPS HR) was retained by the Arcata Fire District (District) to conduct a classification and total 
compensation study of eight (8) benchmark classifications using a labor market of ten (10) comparable agencies. 
The stated study objectives were as follows: 

 Ensure that the District’s classification specifications provide an accurate description of current jobs; 

 Determine the competitiveness of the District’s compensation plan in an appropriate labor market; and 

 As part of the labor market survey, identify potential classification, compensation, and organizational 
strategies for improving District staff recruitment and retention.  

 Provide a comprehensive report outlining the methodology, results, and recommendations of the project. 

This final total classification and compensation report describes the project scope and work plan, the 
methodologies utilized throughout the project, and the results and recommendations of the project.   

The classification study results are summarized in Section IV of this report. Final updated classification 
specifications are presented in Appendix C.  Compensation study results are summarized in Section VI.  In 
addition, other benefits, and premium pay elements of interest to the District were collected and are summarized 
in Section VII with additional details presented in Appendix E.   

 

  

87



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 4 

II. Project Scope and Work Plan 

 The CPS HR team met with the District’s Fire Chief (Justin McDonald) and Business Manager (Becky 
Schuette) on January 13, 2021, to initiate the project and review the project scope and work plan.   

 CPS HR requested and reviewed the District’s background materials, including classification specifications, 
salary schedules, position control documents, policies, MOUs, and organization charts. 

 CPS HR developed a customized Position Description Questionnaire (PDQ) to be completed electronically 
by all study incumbents.  The purpose of the PDQ was to capture relevant job information from each 
incumbent. A copy of the PDQ form used for this study is provided in Appendix A. 

 CPS HR conducted an online meeting on January 26, 2021, to introduce the incumbents to the project and 
review the PDQ completion process. 

 District employees completed the online PDQ by March 22, 2021.  Supervisors completed the online PDQ 
for some of the vacant positions. 

 CPS HR conducted incumbent and supervisor interviews between March 15 and March 23, 2021, to obtain 
additional information about employees’ and subordinates’ job duties, as appropriate. 

 CPS HR researched information to propose an appropriate labor market of ten (10) labor market agencies 
(LMA’s) for the total compensation study.  This proposed market was presented to, and approved by, the 
Fire Chief on March 31, 2021. 

 CPS HR met with the Fire Chief on April 14, 2021, to propose and receive confirmation of the benefits 
elements to be gathered during the total compensation study.   

 The CPS HR project team gathered position, salary, and benefits data from the selected LMA’s during April, 
May, and June of 2021.  CPS HR determined that the most expeditious way of obtaining data was to gather 
as much information as possible from online sources and follow up with each surveyed agency to validate 
and complete missing data. This included salary schedules, classification specifications, budgets, benefits 
summaries, MOUs, organization charts, and position control documents where available. CPS HR followed 
through with agencies to request further information or clarification on job matching and/or benefits 
levels. For consistency in labor market comparisons, all salary and benefits data are represented as of 
April 15, 2021. 

 CPS HR provided preliminary job matching data to the Fire Chief on April 17, 2021, for review and approval. 

 CPS HR provided the preliminary total compensation datasheets to the Fire Chief on June 11, 2021, for 
review and approval.  The final total compensation datasheets are provided in Appendix D in this report. 

 At the request of the District Fire Chief, the CPS HR project manager contacted the LMA Fire Chiefs to seek 
their assistance in discussing selected recruitment, retention, and organizational structure issues.  Six (6) 
of the ten (10) agencies agreed to participate, and phone interviews were conducted between June 21 
and 30, 2021. 

88



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 5 

 CPS HR conducted a salary recommendation analysis and met with the District Fire Chief on July 2, 2021, 
to review the results of that analysis, in addition to the salary recommendation tables inserted into the 
body of this report. During that same meeting, CPS HR reviewed the preliminary results from the LMA Fire 
Chief interviews and confirmed the final updated class specifications included in the Final Classification 
and Total Compensation Report.  Copies of the final classification specifications are provided in Appendix 
C. 

 CPS HR prepared and delivered the Draft Classification and Total Compensation Report to the District Fire 
Chief on July 9, 2021. 

 CPS HR met with the Fire Chief on July 30, 2021 to receive feedback on the draft report. 

 CPS HR has prepared this Final Classification and Total Compensation Report which incorporates minor 
corrections and changes as requested by the Fire Chief. 

  

89



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 6 

III. Conceptual Framework – Classification 

This section of the report presents a conceptual framework for the classification plan proposed for Arcata Fire 
District.  As applied to positions included in this study, the classification analysis relies upon sound principles of 
job evaluation and job analyses.  The approach identifies distinct differences in levels and types of work 
determined by using established allocation factors and class concepts. 

Classification Concepts and Principles 

A position classification plan is a critical human resources tool. It describes the basic personnel framework within 
an organization and defines the standards and concepts used to maintain and/or change that framework.   It 
serves as the basis for organizing job assignments, developing job announcements, recruiting employees, 
evaluating qualifications for the job, developing methods for assessing performance, and identifying and making 
changes to the organizational structure. It also provides the foundation for establishing a compensation plan.  
Thus, the classification plan impacts virtually every phase of the employment process. 

Position classification is a dynamic process since the plan itself, and the class specifications must continually 
respond to the organization's changing needs. Thus, a regular and periodic review of the plan is needed to ensure 
that it accurately reflects changes in the agency’s organizational goals, organizational structure, policy, size, and 
leadership styles. The plan must also respond to changes in technology, programs, legal requirements, and 
workforce characteristics. 

Once established, the classification plan must be utilized consistently to serve its purpose as a management tool. 
If employment decisions are not consistent with the plan, then either the plan or the decisions must be amended 
to be consistent with each other. 

Basic Classification Guidelines 

Position, Class, Series, and Job Family 

A position represents a group of duties and responsibilities performed by one employee. In contrast, class refers 
to a position or group of positions that are so sufficiently similar in duties and responsibilities that they may be 
treated the same for pay, general minimum qualifications, title, and a variety of other administrative activities. 

A class series may be established when two or more classes are related in a linear or other fashion.  Typically, 
classes are placed in a series when the work performed in the classes is similar in nature but not in level. The work 
performed at the lower-level class helps develop the knowledge, skills, and abilities to perform at a higher level.  It 
should be noted, however, that the ability of an individual incumbent to promote from the lower level to the 
higher-level class in a series may still be limited by the availability of a vacant position, unless positions are “flexibly 
staffed” (see discussion later in this report). 

A job family is a group of classes and/or class series closely related in terms of the type of work being performed. 
Classes in a job family usually have similarities in their employment requirements that may support career 
progression.  However, it is common for classes in the same job family to require different levels of education, 
experience, skill, effort, or responsibility.  For example, a financial job family may include clerical, technical, 
professional/analytical, supervisory, and management classes.   

90



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 7 

Classification Versus Allocation 

Classification is the process of identifying and describing the various kinds of work in an organization and grouping 
similar positions together under the same common job title. Allocation is more specifically tied to the placement 
and/or budgeting of positions within an organization.  Thus, a recommendation to allocate a position within an 
organization is based on the results of the classification analysis for that position. 

Broad Versus Narrow Classes 

It is relatively easy to see that several positions belong to the same class when the duties are identical. In practical 
application, however, the duties and responsibilities of positions need not be identical to be placed in the same 
class.  Instead, classification plans generally place positions into classes based on a determination of “sufficient 
similarity,” or what degree of job variability is acceptable. Within an individual organization, “sufficient similarity” 
can be broadly or narrowly interpreted.  A broad interpretation classifies positions based on a shared core set of 
duties and responsibilities but accepts substantial variation between positions.  This type of broad interpretation 
results in broad classes.  In contrast, a narrow interpretation might prefer to create separate narrow classes to 
address job variations. 

The implementation of a broad versus narrow classification structure is an organizational policy decision, which is 
undertaken based upon the organization’s goals and objectives.  Both approaches have advantages and 
disadvantages that should be considered when developing a classification plan. 

The advantages of grouping sufficiently similar positions into broad classes include ease of administering the 
classification plan; the ability to add, delete or change duties of a position and still be consistent with the 
classification plan; the ability to transfer individuals laterally within the organization; and a reduced need for 
recruitment and testing to fill single position classes. Likewise, suppose an organization desires or needs to have 
the flexibility to move positions temporarily or permanently between work units. In that case, broad classes can 
allow movement to occur without creating classification or equity concerns.  Such flexibility also minimizes layoffs 
resulting from reorganization processes and allows for greater employee career mobility by broadening the 
opportunities for advancement.  For these reasons, organizations typically choose to group positions into broad 
classes whenever practical. 

On the other hand, broad classes may impact salary administration.  In determining class salaries, most 
organizations use a combination of market and internal relationship data, tempered with organizational 
philosophy and experience.  An organization with difficulty recruiting for a particular type of position may wish to 
elevate the salary for that position.  However, if such positions are part of a broad class, salary changes would 
impact the entire class.  For these reasons, organizations sometimes choose to divide a broad class because of 
salary issues.  Suppose it can be demonstrated that certain types of positions within a broad class unnecessarily 
influence the entire class's salary. In that case, the organization may prefer separate classes to establish salaries 
for each position group. 

A good classification plan seeks to balance “ease of administration” with position validity.  Complex classification 
structures with multiple job families, multiple class series, and multiple levels within each series can be difficult to 
administer.  However, when class concepts are excessively broad and/or too general, position classification 
maintenance (and responding to out-of-class complaints) is often difficult, time-consuming, and expensive. Thus, 
when the type of work assigned to different positions varies substantially, it may make sense to place them in 
separate classes and/or job families to make valid market comparisons.  Likewise, when the level of work within 

91



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 8 

a job family has clear, job-related distinctions, separate classes usually offer the most efficient way to pay for the 
work that is being done. A realistic and successful classification plan usually has both broad and narrow classes.   

Preponderance 

Some positions may have a mixture of duties related to several different occupational fields, and incumbents may 
even have various levels of responsibility. In these cases, allocation of the class is based on preponderant duties. 
Since preponderance is a measurement of importance, it is possible that the most time-consuming duties assigned 
to a position are not the most important and therefore not preponderant.  Likewise, it is possible that the most 
responsible and complex duties of a job are not the most time-consuming.  However, most of the time, 
preponderant duties are those that are both critical and performed frequently. 

Classification of the Position, Not the Employee 

The class of a position should be consistent regardless of who holds the position. As such, the classification study 
process classifies positions, not individual employees.  Positions are generally evaluated based on what they 
would require if they were vacant. 

Furthermore, the classification does not consider the capabilities of individual employees or the efficiency and 
effectiveness of an incumbent. It is not a measure of how well an individual employee performs.  Classification is 
not a tool to reward individual achievement, nor should classes be created simply to reward length of service. 

Level Versus Volume of Work 

Position classification reflects the type and level of work performed by an employee, and thus it is generally 
independent of volume. If one employee has twice the amount of work of another, yet they spend the same 
percentages of time on those tasks and other comparable duties, they will be placed in the same class. Study 
questionnaires do not ask for, and CPS HR does not consider employees' relative productivity as a classification 
factor. A classification study does not consider the volume of work produced because problems of excessive 
workload are properly solved by redistributing work or adding employees, not by reclassifying existing positions. 

Using Classification Factors 

To develop classification/allocation recommendations, each position is first analyzed based on the nature of work 
performed. Nature of work refers to the occupation, profession or subject matter field in which each position falls.  
Positions that perform work of a similar nature are considered to be in the same “job family.”  Within each job 
family, the levels of the positions are determined based on various factors such as:  

 Scope and Complexity – defines the breadth and difficulty of the assigned function or program 
responsibility inherent in the classification and the variety and nature of work performed. 

 Decision-Making/Authority – consists of (a) the decision-making responsibility and degree of authority, 
independence, or latitude that is inherent in the position, and (b) the impact of the decisions. This also 
considers the extent to which rules, regulations, manuals, procedures, prescribed work practices, 
principles, policies, or other written instruction or methods are available or required to perform the work. 

 Contact with Others Required by the Job – measures (a) the types of contacts and (b) the purpose of the 
contacts. 

92



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 9 

 Supervision Received and Exercised – describes the level of supervision received from others and the 
nature of supervision provided to other workers. It also relates to the independence of action inherent in 
a position. 

 Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities – defines the minimum requirements to qualify for the position, including 
the training, education, experience, licenses, certificates, physical demands, mental exertion, and other 
factors necessary to perform the assigned responsibilities. 

 Authority/Responsibility – defines the impact on the organization, including accountability and the 
likelihood/consequence of error. 

 Work Conditions – identifies a hazardous, dangerous, or unpleasant environment and notes any adverse 
conditions. 

This information is then used to develop a class specification (description) for each identifiable body of work.  
Individual positions are compared against the class specifications to determine how they should be allocated. 

Class Leveling Conventions 

Within any organization, the need for various class levels will be based on the organization's specific structure.  At 
the same time, certain standardized leveling conventions are commonly used when establishing classification 
plans.  The following are some of the standardized class levels that were applied to the classification of the 
positions included in this study. 

 Entry/First Working-Level – is commonly identified as the lowest class in a multi-level series.  Most entry-
level classes do not require job applicants to have substantial related work experience. Instead, they may 
serve as “trainee” classes with the expectation that, as experience is obtained, employees will perform 
the full range of duties with less immediate supervision.  Alternatively, a class may be more appropriately 
described as the “first working” level of the series if positions in the class are permanently assigned the 
most routine functions of the series.  

• For Arcata Fire District, the Firefighter class has historically been the “first working-level” in the fire 
suppression series.  Recently, the District reclassified all the Firefighter positions to Fire Engineers 
since all incumbents were performing Engineer-related duties (e.g., driving and operating the fire 
engine/apparatus).  Since the District may still want to hire new academy graduates and/or applicants 
with minimal firefighting experience but is willing to promote such individuals to Fire Engineer when 
they are fully qualified, CPS HR recommends that this class be retained with the understanding that 
Firefighter positions would be flexibly allocated (see explanation below) with Fire Engineer. 

 Journey-Level/Second Working-level – may be the class above the entry/first working-level in a multi-
level class series, but always describes the class where incumbents are fully trained to perform the full 
scope of non-specialized, non-leadership class series work. Incumbents at this level do not have “official” 
lead worker or supervisory duties but may assist in training and providing direction to others, particularly 
those at the entry level. 

• For Arcata Fire District, the proposed class of Fire Engineer is the level in the fire suppression series 
where incumbents are fully trained to perform the full scope of non-leadership firefighting work.  
Likewise, the proposed classes of Fire Inspector and Business Manager are also journey-level classes 

93



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 10 

in those functional areas (fire prevention and administration). However, those areas' current size and 
staffing do not justify developing a class “series.”    

 Supervisor – is the class level where the preponderant responsibility is to supervise subordinate positions. 
Supervisors may also perform day-to-day work similar to their subordinates in type but usually are 
responsible for the more difficult or sensitive work in addition to their supervisory duties.  Supervisory 
criteria can vary between organizations, but most supervisory classes are defined by their supervision over 
“regular” (full-time) employees because, in most public agencies, regular employees have statutory 
employment rights and personnel actions imposed on them, such as hiring/firing, corrective action, and 
performance evaluations and supervisors must comply with these legal, contractual and/or policy 
guidelines.  Furthermore, several state and federal laws define supervisors as being legally responsible for 
their employment-related actions. Thus, true supervision is a distinct, complex, and highly responsible 
duty.  

It is important to distinguish between supervision and lead work.  Incumbents that assign, direct, and 
monitor the work of subordinate staff but do not have substantial control over subordinates’ employment 
through personnel actions like hiring/firing, corrective action, and performance evaluations, are not 
“supervisors.”  Instead, such positions may be most appropriately classified to a lead worker class.  

Also, note that while managers may supervise staff, their positions are distinguished by certain other 
duties and responsibilities, as discussed below. 

•  For Arcata Fire District, the proposed supervisory-level class is Fire Captain. 

 Manager – is the class level that describes positions with complex and strategic duties and responsibilities 
that typically focus on planning, organizing, directing, staffing, and controlling their assigned programs 
and/or functions.  Managers who oversee operational divisions or units typically supervise staff through 
subordinate supervisors. However, a program-focused manager may not have significant supervisory 
duties but instead has broad, comprehensive responsibility for overseeing one or more major 
programmatic functions within the organization.   

It is common for an organization to have several management layers, depending on the size and structure 
of the organization.  

• For Arcata Fire District, the proposed manager-level classes are Fire Division Chief and Fire Chief. The 
class of Fire Division Chief will manage a major section within the District and report to the Fire Chief.  
The Fire Chief provides overall District leadership and works under policy direction from the District 
Board of Directors.  

Flexible Allocation 

Flexible allocation is an administrative and budgeting tool that assists organizations in planning for work that can 
be assigned at more than one class level.  In a flexibly allocated position, an employee may be hired at an initial 
level (e.g., the entry or first working level) and then be promoted to the next level without a competitive process 
when the qualifications for the next level are met.      

Flexible allocation is beneficial when an organization is willing to initially hire an employee with limited 
qualifications, provide the training needed for the employee to learn and eventually perform the full scope of 
journey-level duties, and then promote the employee to the next level when qualified without requiring a visible 

94



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 11 

competitive process (no vacancy is necessary).  Instead, the employee’s demonstrated performance of the higher-
level duties functions as the “test” by which promotion is justified. By flexibly allocating the position, the 
organization benefits from bringing new employees into the organization at a lower (and less costly) level while 
allowing the organization to appropriately classify their positions if/when the duties change without going through 
a cumbersome recruitment or classification process.  Thus, it is useful for both recruitment and retention.   

Since promoting from one level to the next higher level in a flexibly allocated position may be perceived as a 
promotion without an official, merit-based test, the manager/supervisor should provide written measurement of 
the employee’s performance with attention to timeliness, accuracy, and detail.  The employee’s performance 
should be at a level that demonstrates that promotion is warranted. Criteria for advancement should be based on 
an established policy decision before implementing flexible allocation and should be sufficiently understood that 
it can be articulated to all staff.  

  

95



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 12 

IV. Classification Analysis and Recommendations 

Overview 

This section of the report summarizes the findings and recommendations of this classification study. In addition, 
Appendix A provides a copy of the Position Description Questionnaire (PDQ) used in the study. Appendix B 
provides a table summarizing the allocation recommendations for all study positions sorted by incumbent name 
and including comments. Appendix C provides copies of the proposed classification specifications.  Please note 
that, for the classification specifications in Appendix C, all proposed edits and changes have been accepted.  CPS 
HR has provided the District with fully annotated versions (in Microsoft Word) separately from this report.  

Business Manager 

One (1) civilian (non-sworn) position of Business Manager was included in the study.  The incumbent works a 
standard 40 hour per week shift. The incumbent’s duties include, but are not limited to:  serving as clerk to the 
District Board of Directors; administering District financial transactions and records including payables, 
receivables, and parcel assessments; administering, processing, and reporting the biweekly payroll; directing and 
managing the District’s administrative office, including public and internal reception and communications; 
providing administrative assistance to District chief officers, including document support and technical media 
assistance; coordinating the submission of District reports to the National Fire Incident Reporting System; 
administrating District purchasing activities; administering District records management; administering technical 
human resources activities related to hiring, background checks, recordkeeping, and employee onboarding; and 
serving as the liaison to the Arcata Volunteer Firefighters Association.  Most of these duties are consistent with 
the District’s current class specification for Business Manager. However, CPS HR recommends several minor 
updates that do not alter the essential characteristics or level of the class (see Appendix C).   

CPS HR notes that the Business Manager class does not meet the definition of a manager (described above), even 
though “manager” is in the class title.  However, CPS HR does not recommend changing that class title at this time 
since this is a single position class, the incumbent’s duties are largely consistent with the current class 
specification, and the title does not create confusion with other District classes.  

Fire Engineer 

CPS HR received four (4) PDQ’s for positions in the class of Fire Engineer.  Five (5) vacant positions were also 
classified based on a stipulation by the Fire Chief that the positions would also be assigned similar duties when 
filled. 

Incumbents in this class are sworn and are work an emergency response shift (currently 72 hours on, 96 hours 
off). Historically, these positions have been classified as Firefighters rather than Fire Engineers.  However, during 
the interviews, the incumbents stated that the District recently reclassified all Firefighter positions to Fire Engineer 
in recognition that the incumbents were performing duties typically assigned at the Fire Engineer level in other 
fire agencies.  These include, but are not limited to:  responding to fire alarms, emergency medical calls, hazardous 
materials, and other incidents that require mitigation of circumstances that may threaten life or property, 
including fire suppression, emergency medical care, and rescue of victims; driving, operating, situating, and 
overseeing the use of various fire apparatus, including fire engines, ladder trucks, pumps, and other vehicles and 
equipment; performing basic life support (BLS) medical emergency procedures within the scope of licensure; 
connecting, charging, and laying hoses; placing water curtains; performing ventilating and access maneuvers; 
using foam and chemical extinguishers as required by the nature of the fire; cleaning, maintaining, and conducting 

96



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 13 

basic equipment and facilities repairs; participating in training exercises and classes; participating in public 
education and public relations activities as assigned; performing special projects and collateral duties as assigned. 

Although the District still has an existing Firefighter classification specification, it does not have a classification 
specification for Fire Engineer. Therefore, CPS HR has prepared a Fire Engineer final classification specification for 
the District based on the duties and responsibilities assigned to the incumbents (see Appendix C).  

In discussions with the Fire Chief, CPS HR noted that the District still needs a mechanism to recruit and hire 
applicants who do not have all the necessary training, certificates, and experience required to drive and operate 
fire apparatus.  While it is possible to create a single class with the minimum qualifications of a Firefighter (no 
equipment operation certifications) and require incumbents to obtain the necessary driver’s license 
endorsements and driver/operator certifications within a specified period of time (typically the probationary 
period), this approach could potentially require that an individual who fails to meet those requirements be 
terminated from employment, even if the incumbent’s performance was otherwise satisfactory.  As an alternative 
and preferred approach, CPS HR recommends that the District retain the class of Firefighter and use it as a 
recruitment level with the understanding that positions will be flexibly-staffed as Firefighter/Fire Engineer, and 
that incumbents will be promoted to Fire Engineer when they meet the established requirements (e.g., training, 
certification, experience, and performance requirements) for that class.  Therefore, CPS HR has provided an 
updated Firefighter class specification in Appendix C. 

Fire Captain 

Six (6) Fire Captain incumbents provided PDQ’s and were included in the study. An additional three (3) positions 
were classified based on the stipulation by the Fire Chief that the incumbents will perform similar duties when the 
positions are filled.  Incumbents are sworn and work an emergency response shift. 

In Arcata Fire District, Fire Captains provide supervision and leadership to crews responding to fires and other 
types of emergency calls. They also typically oversee the operations of an assigned fire station during an assigned 
shift. Specific duties include, but are not limited to:  leading and directing a fire crew’s response  to fire alarms, 
emergency medical calls, hazardous materials, and other incidents that require mitigation of circumstances that 
may threaten life or property, including fire suppression, emergency medical care, and rescue of victims; directing 
and participating in the operation of various fire apparatus, the application of water and/or chemical agents to 
control and extinguish fires, the performance of ventilating and access maneuvers, the delivery of basic life 
support (BLS) medical emergency procedures, and the performance of search and rescue, forcible entry, 
ventilation, salvage, and overhaul activities; supervising and administering daily station operations by scheduling 
personnel, assigning duties and tasks, overseeing station and equipment maintenance, directing station activities, 
maintaining records, ordering supplies, preparing correspondence, forms and reports; developing personnel by 
creating and implementing training programs and providing training as required; participating in training exercises 
and classes; conducting and attending meetings; participating in public education and public relations activities as 
assigned; performing special projects and collateral duties as assigned. 

Overall, the duties assigned to the incumbents are consistent with the District’s existing classification specification 
for Fire Captain, though CPS HR recommends minor updates that do not alter the essential characteristics or level 
of the class (see Appendix C).  CPS HR notes that several incumbents expressed concern over the volume and 
scope of their assignments, stating that some of their assigned “collateral duties” had previously been performed 
at the Battalion Chief level.  However, CPS HR did not find these collateral duties so technically complex or 
responsible that they were inappropriate for a Fire Captain.  Specifically, while some of the incumbents claimed 
that their authority to purchase items, develop training programs, conduct fire investigations, and oversee 
equipment programs are above class duties, CPS HR considers such duties to be consistent with the class of Fire 

97



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 14 

Captain.  Furthermore, the fact that incumbents frequently cited time constraints rather than lack of skills for 
performing these tasks suggests that these concerns may primarily reflect current staffing shortages rather than 
above-class responsibilities.  Finally, it should be noted that, while all the Fire Captains have collateral duties, such 
duties appear to rotate periodically and are not a preponderant aspect of their jobs based on their frequency or 
criticality. 

Fire Inspector 

Two (2) civilian positions of Fire Inspector were included in the study.  Both incumbents work part-time.  Their 
duties include, but are not limited to:  assisting with the implementation of the District’s fire inspection program, 
with an emphasis on multi-family residential unit inspections; researching property ownership; contacting owners 
and/or visiting facilities to obtain information on compliance with fire safety requirements; issuing violations as 
necessary and conducting follow up visits to assure compliance; preparing required inspection forms, documents 
and reports; and performing other tasks as assigned. 

During the interview, CPS HR noted that one of the current inspectors, Sophie Levy-Sheon, was relatively new to 
the job, whereas the other inspector, Matt Knowles, had been on the job for 1.5 years.  Mr. Knowles was helping 
to train Ms. Levy-Sheon and had been given some responsibility for leading and monitoring her work.  Mr. Knowles 
also assisted with billing activities, though such duties had not been assigned to Ms. Levy-Sheon. 

CPS HR asked the incumbents’ supervisor, the Fire Marshal, if the differences in the job duties between Mr. 
Knowles and Ms. Levy-Sheon were permanent.  The Fire Marshal said that, as Ms. Levy-Sheon gains experience, 
it is anticipated that both Fire Inspectors will perform their duties independently, and that Ms. Levy-Sheon will be 
expected to participate in activities such as billing.  Furthermore, he anticipated that both inspectors will be 
learning to do more complex business-related inspections, with neither incumbent having any more or less 
responsibility than the other. 

Based on this information and the comments from the Fire Marshal, CPS HR proposes updates to the classification 
specification for Fire Inspector (see Appendix C) and recommends that these two positions be maintained in the 
class. 

Fire Marshal 

One (1) part-time civilian position of Fire Marshal was included in the study. The incumbent works a limited 
number of hours as assigned.  The incumbent’s duties include, but are not limited to:  overseeing and 
administering the District’s fire prevention division/programs, with responsibility for ensuring fire and building 
code compliance, interpretation, and enforcement; supervising the work of two (2) part-time Fire Inspectors; 
reviewing plans for new and existing buildings for fire code compliance, including commercial, residential, and 
tenant improvements; conducting physical compliance inspections; participating in multi-agency meetings to 
review project developments; conducting fire and building code research; overseeing the residential inspection 
program, and coordinating and providing public education regarding fire prevention. 

The incumbent’s duties are largely consistent with the District’s classification specification for Fire Marshal.  
However, CPS HR has proposed minor updates that do not alter the essential characteristics or level of the class 
(see Appendix C) and recommends that this position be maintained as a Fire Marshal. 

 

Battalion Chief 

98



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 15 

CPS HR received one (1) PDQ for a Battalion Chief position.  This is a sworn position, and the incumbent is currently 
assigned to work a standard, 40 hours per week shift but also splits the on-call duty chief responsibilities with the 
Fire Chief.  

CPS HR was advised that three (3) Battalion Chief positions are currently allocated within the District.  However, 
the organizational role of the Battalion Chiefs has changed multiple times since the classification specification was 
developed in July 2016.  The duties assigned to the current incumbent of this class include, but are not limited to: 
providing complex managerial support to the Fire Chief as a member of the District command staff; participating 
in the strategic planning, directing, and development of District goals, objectives, policies, and procedures; 
participating in the development, administration, and management of the District budget; participating in the 
forecasting of funds needed for effective operation of the District; monitoring and approving expenditures; 
recommending budget corrections and implementing resulting adjustments; planning, organizing, and directing 
assigned District operations; resolving operational problems and issues; assigning work, projects, and programs 
to subordinate staff, including subordinate supervisors; monitoring work production, methods, procedures, and 
outcomes for areas of assignment; coordinating and participating in District recruitment and hiring processes; 
coordinating personnel programs, such as employee performance management, corrective action, and 
professional development; representing the District and Fire Chief to other agencies as assigned; preparing and 
presenting analytical reports and correspondence to the Fire Chief, District Board, allied agencies, and the public 
as assigned; communicating with the media, conducting interviews, and presenting information as assigned; 
responding to major emergency incidents as required and/or as the scheduled duty officer; providing senior 
management of fire prevention activities; coordinating and/or conducting complex fire origin and cause 
investigations; coordinating with the District Attorney’s Office as needed; attending professional meetings, 
conferences, and workshops, and serving on committees and task forces as authorized; serving as the District 
Safety Officer; coordinating/managing special projects and other duties as directed by the Fire Chief; and acting 
in the absence of the Fire Chief as assigned. 

The incumbent’s duties are substantially different from those described in the Battalion Chief classification 
specification.  The specification states that the incumbent performs complex journey-level mechanical work in the 
maintenance and repair of District vehicles and equipment.  It further states that Battalion Chief is a “supervisory 
class”, and incumbents may oversee and coordinate the operations and activities of an assigned shift. Although 
some of the duties listed in the specification are applicable to the incumbent, the specification does not recognize 
the incumbent’s role in providing advanced and complex senior-level managerial support to the Fire Chief, nor 
does it capture the incumbent’s participation in strategic duties related to planning, organizing, directing, staffing, 
and controlling District activities.   

During discussions with the Fire Chief, he indicated that he anticipates filling at least two (2) positions at this level, 
each responsible for overseeing a major organization division.  Although he had not yet determined the 
operational assignments given to each incumbent, he anticipates that the incumbents will share in the 
administrative management activities.  Thus, CPS HR has drafted a new classification specification of Fire Division 
Chief (see Appendix C) that broadly describes the full scope of the incumbent’s job duties, with the understanding 
that some of these duties were temporarily absorbed by the incumbent due to staffing shortages and will 
ultimately be divided between two or more positions.  We recommend deleting the existing Battalion Chief 
specification. 

 

Fire Chief 

99



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 16 

The class of Fire Chief describes a single, sworn position.  The incumbent submitted a PDQ and is currently assigned 
to work a standard, 40 hours per week shift.  However, he also splits the on-call duty chief responsibilities with 
the Battalion Chief.  

The Fire Chief serves as the highest-level executive manager responsible for all District operations, programs, and 
activities.  His duties include, but are not limited to: serving under the policy direction of the District Board of 
Directors to plan, organize, direct, staff, and control the operations, programs, and activities of the District, 
including the strategic development of District plans, goals, objectives, policies, and procedures; developing Board 
meeting agendas/staff reports, and attending Board meetings; directing and overseeing the development, 
administration, and management of the District budget; forecasting funds needed for effective operation of the 
District; authorizing expenditures; implementing budget corrections; overseeing and directing the deployment of 
technologies, including the District’s website and social media accounts; overseeing and directing all District 
operations, including apparatus, equipment, and facilities; resolving operational problems and issues; assigning 
work, projects, and programs to subordinate staff, including managers and supervisors; monitoring work 
production, methods, procedures, and outcomes; overseeing and directing District recruitment and hiring 
processes; overseeing and directing employee performance management, corrective action, and professional 
development programs; performing investigations into alleged employee disciplinary issues; representing the 
District to other agencies; preparing and presenting analytical reports and correspondence to the District Board, 
allied agencies, and the public; overseeing and directing District outreach and community relations activities; 
communicating with the media, conducting interviews, and presenting information as assigned; responding to 
major emergency incidents as required and as the scheduled duty officer; overseeing and directing fire prevention 
activities; overseeing and directing complex origin and cause investigations; coordinating with the District 
Attorney’s Office as needed; attending professional meetings, conferences, and workshops, and serving on 
committees and task forces; overseeing District safety programs; overseeing and directing special projects; 
performing other duties as required. 

The incumbent’s duties are not adequately described in the existing Fire Chief classification specification. Although 
the minimum qualifications are reasonably consistent with a Fire Chief class, the rest of the specification does not 
capture the scope and level of the position. Instead, it describes duties that are largely similar to those of a 
Firefighter. 

For these reasons, CPS HR has drafted a new classification specification, keeping the title of Fire Chief (see 
Appendix C) but substantially revising the duties and responsibilities.  We recommend deleting the current 
specification. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

100



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 17 

V. Compensation Study Parameters 

The first step in conducting a total compensation survey is to determine the basic parameters for the survey.  For 
this study, these parameters include: 

 Confirmation of the labor market data points and position 

 Selection of the labor market agencies (comparable agencies) 

 Confirmation of the survey classifications (benchmark classifications) 

 Confirmation of the survey scope (information to be collected) 

Labor Market Data Points and Position 

Unless the client specifically requests differently, CPS HR provides a labor market data analysis based on the 
market's median. The labor market median, which is described as the “middle” of the market, is the data point at 
which half of the complete range of data (excluding the District’s data) is higher, and half of the complete range 
of data (excluding the District’s data) is lower. The median is a common market position, particularly in smaller 
data sets, because the data is less likely to be skewed by high and low payers in the market.  

Once the data points are verified, the client can choose to lead the market, to meet the market, or to lag the 
market. Leading the market means aligning the pay parameters and positions higher than the market median (i.e., 
60th percentile or 70th percentile).  Lagging the market means positioning the pay parameters below the market 
median (i.e., 40th percentile). Meeting the market is positioning the pay parameters at the median of the market. 

 Arcata Fire District chose to analyze and position their pay parameters based on the median of the market 
(meeting the market). 

Labor Market Agencies 

In accordance with the parameters of this project, the District agreed to have CPS HR gather compensation data 
from ten (10) labor market agencies. To assist the District in selecting these labor market agencies, CPS HR 
provided an initial list of potentially comparable agencies based on several factors, including population, area size, 
proximity to the District, and cost of living/cost of wages, as outlined below.  This initial list of agencies included 
the following: 

*Indicates selected labor market agency. 

Potential Labor Market Agencies  
Miles 
From 

Arcata FD 
Budget FTE’s 

Average  
Cost of 
Wages 
(COW) 

Average  
Cost of 
Living 
(COL) 

Arcata Fire District 0 3,553,678 26 0.00 0.00 
Anderson Fire Protection District 149 No info 8 1.70 -30.70 
Auburn City Fire Department* 330 2,241,416 22 7.85 -33.70 
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte* 71 No info 100+ -0.05 -29.70 
City of Chico Fire Rescue Department* 211 13,739,028 62 0.45 -35.10 

101



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 18 

 

 Industry – In general, agencies that provide the same services are more likely to have similar job 
classifications and recruit from the same applicant pool.  All the above agencies are fire departments, 
though some are city or county departments, while others are special districts.  

 Competing agencies – CPS HR also considered information provided by the District’s Fire Chief regarding 
the agencies that the District frequently competes with for talent (i.e., the District has lost employees to 
or recruited employees from such agencies).   

 Geographic proximity – When considering a labor market, it is important to consider the geographic 
proximity of potential agencies since they may be competitors in the recruitment market.  If there are not 
enough agencies within the local market to conduct a study, the geographic area may be expanded to 
include agencies farther away but still similar in other aspects.   

 Budget – The size of an agency’s budget generally correlates with the size of the agency but can also 
reflect other economic factors.  Thus, it provides a useful comparative factor.  However, in selecting a 
balanced labor market, it is reasonable to include some agencies with smaller or larger budgets. 

 Agency size – In general, agencies that employ similar numbers of employees may have similar economic 
demographics.  Since it is rare to find agencies that are the same as the client agency, the goal is to provide 
a balanced mix of larger and smaller agencies, thereby minimizing the “skewing” effect when either of 
these is used exclusively. 

Potential Labor Market Agencies  
Miles 
From 

Arcata FD 
Budget FTE’s 

Average  
Cost of 
Wages 
(COW) 

Average  
Cost of 
Living 
(COL) 

City of Grass Valley Fire Department 284 2,052,638 18 4.62 -21.70 
City of Lincoln Fire Department 286 5,542,018 20 7.83 -30.60 
City of Marysville Fire Department 258 2,114,519 15 4.62 -40.70 
City of Oroville Fire Department* 233 3,325,569 26 1.37 -29.10 
City of Red Bluff Fire Department* 171 2,951,445 16 1.43 -34.20 
City of Redding Fire Department 140 21,761,750 80 2.57 -29.80 
City of Ukiah Valley Fire District 172 5,200,000 20 -0.03 -29.20 
Humboldt Bay Fire* 13 No info 60 0.20 -22.20 
Lake County Fire Protection District* 210 4,867,500 35 0.77 -34.00 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District* 289 6,963,230 23 4.62 -21.70 
Northern Sonoma County Fire  207 1,864,194 8 10.87 -1.40 
Northshore Fire Protection District 191 No info 21 0.85 -34.90 
Schell Vista Fire Protection District 259 No info 7 11.42 -8.80 
Shasta Lake Fire Protection District 146 No info 10 2.57 -29.80 
Sonoma County Fire District 221 20,450,895 66 11.70 -12.00 
Sonoma Valley Fire District 259 14,497,538 No info 11.42 -8.80 
Sutter County Fire Department* 264 3,499,902 22 3.50 -35.40 
Yuba City Fire Department* 256 9,998,871 58 3.57 -30.70 

102



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 19 

 Cost of Living/Cost of Wages – As part of the labor market analysis, CPS HR provided “cost of living” and 
“cost of wages” information about the agencies being considered. Together, these factors paint a general 
economic picture of the comparator agencies. 

 Cost of Wages is based on all the expenses paid by employers in a particular geographic area to 
employ their staff, including direct (salaries and benefits) and indirect expenses.  For purposes of 
the above table, the total wages for each comparator agency is expressed as a percentage above 
or below Arcata Fire District, which is identified as “zero”. 

 Cost of Living is based on the amount of money needed to cover basic living expenses such as 
housing, food, taxes, and healthcare for a particular geographic area.   For purposes of the above 
table, the total cost of living for each comparator agency is expressed as a percentage above or 
below Arcata Fire District, which is identified as “zero”. 

It is notable that, most of the agencies listed in the table have a lower cost of living than Arcata though their cost 
of wages is higher.  In other words, it generally costs more to live in Arcata but average wages in Arcata’s 
geographical area are lower than for the other agencies listed. 

After reviewing the recommended potential agency list, the District selected the following (10) labor market 
agencies: 

1. Auburn Fire Department 
2. Cal-Fire Humboldt/Del Norte 
3. City of Chico Fire Rescue Department 
4. City of Oroville Fire Department 
5. City of Red Bluff Fire Department 
6. Humboldt Bay Fire Authority 
7. Lake County Fire Protection District 
8. Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
9. Sutter County Fire Department 
10. Ukiah Valley Fire Authority

Survey Classifications 

The survey benchmark classifications for the study are presented below. 

1. Battalion Chief (reclassified to Fire Division Chief during the classification study) 
2. Business Manager 
3. Fire Captain 
4. Fire Chief 
5. Fire Engineer 
6. Fire Inspector  
7. Fire Marshal 
8. Firefighter 

When seeking to match these classes to comparable classes in the labor market, CPS HR based the matching 
analysis on the class concepts established in the classification analysis portion of this study. 

103



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 20 

Survey Data Collection Scope 

Comparable Classifications – Classification Matching 

When conducting a salary survey, the intent is to provide general market trends by identifying classes comparable 
to the survey benchmarks.  With a balanced labor market and the use of whole job analysis, it is reasonable to 
assume that, while some matches will have slightly higher responsibilities and some matches will have slightly 
lower responsibilities, the overall scope of duties and responsibilities of the combined matches will be balanced. 

In the process of matching the study benchmarks to comparable classifications from other agencies, CPS HR starts 
by gathering those agencies’ class specifications and comparing the span of control, the duties and responsibilities, 
and the knowledge, and skill, and ability requirements.  However, we don’t rely only on classification 
specifications. CPS HR also references position control documents, where available, to specifically identify which 
classification, and level of classification performs the duties comparable to the client’s classifications. This is 
particularly relevant to non-supervisory, non-management classifications where there may be multi-level 
classifications within a series. In addition, organizational charts, budget allocations, or other fiscal tools may help 
identify series progression through multiple levels and provide greater clarity in the use of the classification 
structure than is evident in the content of the classification specification alone. To the extent possible, CPS HR 
identifies the operational use of a classification in determining whether it is a comparable job match.  

Comparable Classifications – Required Number of Comparable Classifications 

CPS HR’s best practice is that benchmark positions must have a minimum of three (3) classification matches to be 
considered valid.  It is common to have some classes for which limited market data exists.   

There are many reasons a benchmark class may not have enough comparable data, including: 

 Differences in the delivery of services 

 Differences in the span of control 

 Differences in organizational structure 

 Differences in operational size 

 The classification is not commonly found in other agencies 

 Agency does not provide that service 

Internal Equity Considerations When Insufficient Number of Comparable Classifications 

A compensation plan considers both external market data and internal relationships. The absence of sufficient 
labor market data for a particular classification does not mean that no salary recommendation can be developed 
since many salary recommendations are ultimately based upon internal equity with other classes.  If CPS HR 
cannot find a sufficient number of comparable classifications for a valid analysis, we can use internal equity to 
develop salary recommendations. 

Labor Market Benefits and Compensation Practices   

In addition to collecting base salary and other total compensation data, CPS HR collected information about 
numerous benefits and compensation practices to provide the District with a complete and thorough total 
compensation evaluation of the District in comparison to the labor market.  When measuring the market, the goal 

104



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 21 

is to identify an agency’s competitive position in the labor market to attract and retain talent, in addition to 
promoting internal equity.  This is done by measuring those benefits and/or perquisites that new employees would 
receive upon their hire date. Reported benefits are those which all employees in an employee group would qualify 
for. This is done by measuring those benefits and/or perquisites that new employees would receive upon their 
hire date. Reported benefits are those which all employees in an employee group would qualify for. The benefit 
data and compensation practices collected for the study are presented in Table 1 below. This is not an inclusive 
list of all data collected.   

Table 1: Benefit and Compensation Practices Categories Collected 

Component Categories Description Included in Total 
Compensation 

Basic Welfare Benefits An employer provides plans to protect an employee 
and/or an employee's family from loss of income in 
the event of injury or death, commonly life insurance 
and/or long-term disability plans. 

Not included 

Defined Contribution (DC) Plans A type of retirement plan in which the employee 
and/or employer make contributions on a regular 
basis (i.e., 457 and 401 plans). 
 
**Non-matching employer contributions or matching 
employer contributions based on mandated employee 
contributions are included in total compensation 
calculations. 

Discretionary  

Employee Group 
Representation  

Lists the Employee Groups' organizational name and 
local if represented by a union or association or other 
documentation that provides conditions for 
unrepresented employment, i.e., Salary Resolution, 
Employee Agreement, or other documentation. 

Not included 

Employee Health Contributions The value of the employee’s monthly contribution for 
health benefits, which includes medical, dental, and 
vision benefits based on criteria defined for the Client 
Benchmark Plan. 

Not included 

Employer Health Contributions The value of the employer’s monthly contribution for 
health benefits, including medical, dental, and vision 
benefits, based on family coverage (employee + 2 or 
more dependents), is used to calculate total 
compensation. Includes Flex Credits. 

Included 

Employer Retirement 
Contribution 

Employer's contribution for defined benefit retirement 
plans based on a percentage of payroll as defined by 
plan's actuarial report. 

Included 

105



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 22 

Component Categories Description Included in Total 
Compensation 

Federal Insurance Contributions 
Act (FICA) 

Refers to the Federal Insurance Contributions Act 
(FICA), a United States federal payroll contribution of 
employees and employers to fund Social Security and 
Medicare.  State and local government employees may 
be covered for social security and Medicare either by 
mandatory coverage or under a Section 218 Agreement 
between the state and the Social Security 
Administration. Under some circumstances, an 
employee may be excluded from social security or 
Medicare (uncommon practice). 

Included 

General Salary Adjustment The general adjustment that applies to the entire salary 
structure (i.e., salary scale) applies to all employees at 
and below the maximum of the salary range of their 
position and is not contingent on performance or 
service in a position. 

Not included 

Health Opt-Out/In-Lieu Subsidy Employees with alternate group health insurance are 
eligible to receive a subsidy in lieu of benefits based on 
meeting the agency’s eligibility requirements. 

Not included 

Paid Leave  Paid leave practices that an agency may provide to 
eligible employees. Reporting can include annual, 
vacation and sick leave, holidays, floating holidays, 
bereavement leave, management leave.   

Not included 

Paid Leave Cash-
out/Conversion  

Leave accrual cash-out/buy-out practices to allow 
employees to receive payment in lieu of time off for 
accrued leave credits. Requirements may have a 
maximum allowable number of credited leave hours to 
be paid out, may require a minimum leave accrual to 
be maintained after payout or other eligibility and/or 
requirements. Does not include separation payouts.   

Not included 

Other Compensation Additional compensation which may include 
allowances or financial incentives that are paid in 
equal increments with the normal payroll process.    

Not included 

Other Post-Employment 
Benefits (OPEB) at Retirement 

Benefits provided to eligible retirees’ post-retirement. Not included 

Retiree Health Savings Plan 
(RHS)  

Retiree Health Savings (RHS) savings plans to allow 
contributions to put aside for post-retirement 
health care expenses.  

Not Included 

Salary Structure Identifies the pay structure, Steps or Range, used by 
the agency to determine wages, rates, and salary 
schedules. 

Not included 

106



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 23 

VI. Compensation Survey Results 

Compensation Results 

The District’s overall position compared to both the labor market medians and averages for each classification are 
presented in the datasheets provided as Appendix D.  Additional benefits information for all surveyed 
classifications is displayed in table format as Appendix E. 

 Appendix D presents all study benchmark classifications, applicable employer benefit contributions & 
premium pay with total compensation results.  

 Appendix E presents the collected benefit information for all employee groups. An analysis of these 
benefits is presented in Section VII below. 

Benchmark Comparable Classification Requirement 

Most of the classifications met the requirement of a minimum of three (3) comparable matching classifications.  
However, the classes of Fire Marshal and Fire Inspector did not meet this criteria and therefore, for purposes of 
recommending an appropriate salary, CPS HR primarily relied on internal equity (see Section VIII of this report) to 
provide salary recommendations.  

Labor Market Response 

CPS HR was able to obtain data from all labor market agencies. All (10) comparator agencies listed above 
participated in the study. 

Labor Market Position by Classification 

This section provides a summary of the District’s position within the labor market by classification. Tables 2 and 3 
below illustrates the following information for each classification.  

 The surveyed classification titles. 
 The number of comparable classifications that were matched to each benchmark classification. 
 The District’s control points of monthly salary (minimum, midpoint, maximum) for the benchmark 

classifications. 
 The labor market median and mean of the control points which is calculated using the same control point 

for each of the comparable classes; that range of data is then computed to provide the median or mean 
amount.  The agency's salary is not included in the median and mean calculation.  

 The percentage of the agency's control points are above or below the median and mean of the labor 
market; these numbers indicate what percentage of the Agencies salary is required to move it up or down 
to the market median or mean. 

 The job classifications that returned insufficient comparable classifications to compute base salary and 
total compensation market results are presented in Table 3 for reference.

107



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 24 

Reporting Definitions 

 The term “No Comparable Class” (NCC) is used if CPS HR did not find a comparable classification within an 
agency to a specific benchmark classification.  

 The term “Data Not Available” (DNA) is used when CPS HR could not obtain the required data from an 
agency after numerous attempts.   

 The term “Years of Experience” (YOE)_refers to the number of actual years of experience directly related 
to the job, including experience acquired outside of the current employer. 

 The term Years of Service (YOS) refers to the number of years of service an employee must have to be 
eligible for a benefit; YOS is based on each agency’s personnel rules and regulations and bargaining 
agreements. 

 The term Final Average Compensation (FAC) is used in the retirement formula and is used when 
determining an employee’s retirement compensation for a defined benefit plan. 

 The term “Full Time Equivalent” FTE refers the number of budgeted positions that an agency reports. 

Please note that, with regard to the data analysis, positive numbers mean that the District lags the market, e.g., 
what percentage of the current salary that the District would need to add in order to reach the market.   
Conversely, a negative number shows the percentage that the District is above the labor market.  

108



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 25 

Table 2: Arcata Fire District’s Percent (%) Above/Below Labor Market Medians by Classification  

Classification Title 
# of 

Match
es 

 

Base Salary 
Minimum 

Base Salary 
Midpoint 

Base Salary 
Maximum 

LM Base 
Salary 

Minimum 

LM Base 
Salary 

Midpoint 

LM Base 
Salary 

Maximum 

Mrkt 
Variance 

from 
Min 

Mrkt 
Variance 

from 
Mid 

Mrkt 
Variance 

from 
Max 

Agency TC Mrkt TC 
Mrkt 

Variance 
from TC 

Battalion Chief 8 $7,204.13  $7,496.63 $7,789.13  $7,125.91 $7,835.10  $8,544.30  -1.09% 4.51% 9.70% $12,320.68  $12,343.34  0.18% 
Business Manager 8 $3,511.73  $3,890.47 $4,269.20  $3,846.84 $4,268.08  $4,710.66  9.54% 9.71% 10.34% $7,535.07  $7,461.71  -0.97% 
Fire Captain 9 $3,426.80  $4,358.47 $5,290.13  $5,453.87 $6,041.54  $6,908.72  59.15% 38.62% 30.60% $9,191.67  $10,293.66  11.99% 
Fire Chief 9 $10,040.50  $10,040.50 $10,040.50  $10,273.47 $11,380.20  $12,486.93  2.32% 13.34% 24.37% $14,558.00  $17,094.22  17.42% 
Fire Engineer 9 $2,960.53  $3,764.97 $4,569.41  $4,719.16 $5,227.67  $5,882.24  59.40% 38.85% 28.73% $8,301.94  $9,155.23  10.28% 
Firefighter 8 $2,558.40  $3,253.30 $3,948.19  $4,326.58 $4,829.32  $5,396.80  69.11% 48.44% 36.69% $7,535.04  $8,466.42  12.36% 

           

 

Table 3: Arcata Fire District’s Percent (%) Above/Below Labor Market Medians by Classification – Classifications with Insufficient Matches 

   

Classification Title # of 
Matches 

Base Salary 
Minimum 

Base Salary 
Midpoint 

Base Salary 
Maximum 

LM Base 
Salary 

Minimum 

LM Base 
Salary 

Midpoint 

LM Base 
Salary 

Maximum 

Mrkt 
Variance 
from Min 

Mrkt 
Variance 
from Mid 

Mrkt 
Variance 

from 
Max 

Agency TC Mrkt TC 
Mrkt 

Variance 
from TC 

Fire Inspector 1 $2,860.00  $3,006.47 $3,152.93  $3,740.53 $4,035.20  $4,329.87  30.79% 34.22% 37.33% $6,244.17  $7,089.59  13.54% 
Fire Marshal 1 $8,418.80  $8,418.80 $8,418.80  $7,730.67 $8,454.05  $9,177.42  -8.17% 0.42% 9.01% $12,333.84  $12,857.64  4.25% 

 
 

109



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 26 

Summary of Labor Market Position 

The percentage in the labor market varies based on whether the reference is the market mean (average) or 
market median (mid-point).  The data included in this report shows that, when comparing median base salary 
and total compensation categories, the District’s job classifications are significantly below the labor market. 
The calculations applicable to each class are summarized in the charts below. Please note that positive 
numbers mean that Arcata's salaries and/or benefits are below the LM median and the indicated percentage 
is needed to reach LM median. Negative numbers mean Arcata is above the LM median.   

 

0.18%

-0.97%

11.99%

17.42%

10.28%

12.36%

-12.21%

-24.75%

-15.42%

4.79%

-17.76%

-19.07%

9.70%

10.34%

30.60%

24.37%

28.73%

36.69%

Battalion Chief

Business Manager

Fire Captain

Fire Chief

Fire Engineer

Firefighter

Percentage Needed to Reach LM Median*

Base Salary Maxium

Total ER Benefit
Expense
Total Comp

  Battalion 
Chief 

Business 
Manager 

Fire Captain Fire Chief Fire Engineer Firefighter 

 Base Salary 
Maximum 

9.70% 10.34% 30.60% 24.37% 28.73% 36.69% 

 Total ER Benefit 
Expense 

-12.21% -24.75% -15.42% 4.79% -17.76% -19.07% 

 Total 
Compensation 

0.18% -0.97% 11.99% 17.42% 10.28% 12.36% 

110



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 27 

The District’s overall base salaries are trending an average of 25.6% below labor market at midpoint and 8.5% 
below market for total compensation.  The market median tends to be a more stable representation of trends in 
the market since it eliminates high and low payers, which can skew data and outcomes. For this reason, CPS HR’s 
methodology is to use the market median for compensation considerations and salary recommendations.  

A more detailed analysis of the District’s salaries and position in the market is presented in Section VIII - Salary 
Recommendations, later in this report.   

  

111



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 28 

VII. Summary of Benefit Tables & Other Compensation 

In addition to the base salary and total compensation data presented in the datasheets provided within Appendix 
D, CPS HR presents summary benefits information for the surveyed classifications, which is displayed in table 
format in Appendix E. Summary calculations include any labor market agency with at least one employee group 
having data to report.   

A summary analysis of each table is provided below:  

 Table E-1: Employee Group Representation 

Table E-1 reports data related to the representation of employee groups. 

Employee Groups: Employee Groups can be unrepresented or represented. Represented groups are 
exclusively represented by a union or employee organization. Employee groups that a classification(s) is 
assigned to is used for reporting benefit and other compensation data throughout the report.   

The data is collected for reporting purposes only and is not included in total compensation calculations. 

• Eight (8) agencies have matched classifications that are designated as non-safety administrative  
classifications may be represented or not represented. *The District has one (1) non-safety 
unrepresented administrative classification. 

• Nine (9) of the agencies have represented fire units; One (1) agency does not have matches 
comparable to classifications that would typically be in a fire unit employee group. *The District 
does have represented fire unit. 

• One (1) agency has a management classification that is represented all other management and 
higher classifications are unrepresented. *The District management classification is represented, 
and higher classifications are unrepresented. 
 

 Table E-2: Salary Structure and Compensation Adjustments 

Table E-2 reports data related to salary structure and general compensation adjustments. 

Salary Structure: Identifies the pay structure, steps, salary ranges, flat rates etc., used by an agency to 
determine wages, rates, and salary schedules.  Reporting is based on classification groups and not labor 
market agencies. Therefore, one agency can have multiple types of salary structures. 

Salary Schedule Effective Date: Reports the effective date of the salary schedule provided by the labor market 
agency and used to report compensation for the salary survey. 

General Salary Adjustments: General salary adjustments that apply to the entire salary structure (i.e., salary 
scale) are applicable to all employees at and below the maximum salary range of their position and are not 
contingent on performance or service in a position. 

The data is collected for reporting purposes only and is not included in total compensation calculations. 

112



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 29 

• Salary Structure: Compensation for five (5) agencies structure is based on steps for all 
classifications ranging from 5 to 15 steps; three (3) agencies executive management classifications 
have a flat rate structure; one (1) agency all classifications compensation structure was based on 
a salary range.*The District’s salary structure is based on 3 employee groups that have steps 
ranging from three (3) to five (5); the executive management classification has a flat rate. 

• General Salary Adjustments: Of the reported general salary adjustments, based on positive 
percentages, for fiscal year 20/21 for all employee groups within all labor market agencies, the 
average adjustment is 2.43%, with a median of 2.6%; one (1) agency reported a (9.23%) reduction.   
*The District reported there has been no general compensation adjustment since June of 2015 
when the employees received a 5% COLA. 

 Table E-3: Retirement Contribution Practices and FICA Participation 

Table E-3 reports data about the retirement plan’s administrator, employer’s contribution rate, and each 
agency’s participation in Social Security, and it is presumed that all agencies participate in Medicare. 

Contribution Rates: The contributions are based on a percentage of payroll. Defined benefit plans contribution 
represents the annual cost of service accrual for the fiscal year for active employees as reported in the defined 
benefit plan's actuarial valuation document. Contributions to a defined contribution plan are based on 
approved plan documents. 

Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC): Refers to an employment benefit provided to Classic members 
of a Defined Benefit Retirement Plan, in which the employer agrees to pay some or all of the statutorily 
required employee contribution to the retirement system, sometimes referred to as “pick-up” contribution. 

Social Security: When an agency participates in Social Security, the contribution rate is 6.20% of taxable 
compensation. 

The Employer Contribution Rate, Social Security, if applicable, and Medicare contributions are included in 
total compensation calculations. 

• All labor market agencies and the District’s retirement plans are administered by CalPERS. 

• Safety Employer Contribution Rates: The labor market agency’s safety classification’s average rate 
is 22.1% with a median of 21.0%. *The District’s employer contribution rate for all safety 
classifications is, 22.0%, which is 0.1% below the safety average and 1.0% above the median. 

• Non-Safety Employer Contribution Rates: The labor market agency’s non-safety classification’s 
average rate is 11.6% with a median of 10.7%. *The District’s employer contribution rate for all 
non-safety classifications is, 14.19%, which is 2.6% above the non-safety average and 3.5% above 
the median. 

• Two (2) agencies reported EPMC for safety classifications; one (1) agency reported EPMC for both 
safety and non-safety classifications. *The District reported EPMC for both safety and non-safety 
classifications. 

113



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 30 

• Social Security: Two (2) agencies all classifications, safety and non-safety contribute to social 
security benefits; one (1) agency the safety classifications does not contribute while the non-
safety classification does contribute. *The District does not contribute to social security benefits. 

 Table E-4: Defined Contribution Plans 

Table E-4 reports data pertaining to deferred contribution plans which can provide a non-matching or 
matching contribution; in many cases, this is a voluntary employee benefit.  

Defined contribution plans such as 457(b), 401(k), or 401(a) allows for a portion of an employee's income or 
employer contribution to be paid out at a later date after which the income is actually earned allowing for a 
deferral of taxes. The amount(s), if any, that the agency contributes to an employee’s deferred compensation 
plan are reported; in many cases, this is a voluntary employee benefit. 

The data is collected for reporting and included in total compensation calculations. If the employer makes a 
non-matching contribution, eligibility for receiving contribution is based on participation in the plan 
mandating employee contribution, or no employee contribution is required to receive an employer 
contribution.  

• All agencies provide a 457(b) plan; one (1) agency provides a non-matching contribution of $50 
per month; one (1) agency provides a matching contribution of $25 per pay period. *The District 
provides a 457(b) plan which provides matching contributions all employee groups ranging from 
$100 to $200 per pay period. 

 Table E-5: Retiree Health Savings Plans (RHS) 

Table E-5 reports data pertaining to retiree health savings plans which allow contributions to put aside for 
post-retirement health care expenses.  

• One (1) agency, a state agency, reported providing a plan to prefund retiree health with matching 
employee and employer contributions of 4.4%. *The District does not provide a RHS plan. 

 Table: E-6: Health Plans Monthly Contributions 

Table E-6 reports data related to health benefits, including medical, dental, and vision plans offered to 
employees and their eligible dependents.  Average and median calculations are based on all employee groups 
within all reporting labor market agencies.  The benchmark plans used to determine employer and employee 
contributions of each agency was based on a High Deductible Plan (HDP) or highest premium plan if HDP is 
not an option; dental & vision the highest premium plan was reported.  

Health Benefit Contributions: The value of the employer’s and employee’s monthly contributions for health 
benefits, which include medical, dental, and vision benefits, are collected. 

Flex Credit: A “flex credit” is an employer contribution to a health plan. The employee then allocates to 
benefits that may subsidize basic health benefits and include life insurance, disability plans, and other 
voluntary health benefits.  Where Flex Credits are in addition to health plan contributions, the Flex Credits 
were used in calculating the averages and medians of employer contributions and included in total 
compensation. 

114



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 31 

Health Savings Accounts (HSA): Health savings accounts (HSAs) are tax-deductible savings plans that allow 
contributions to put aside pre-tax dollars for future health care expenses. The HSA monthly contributions 
were used in calculating the averages and medians of total employer contributions and included in total 
compensation calculations. 

The data is collected for reporting, and the total monthly employer contribution is included in the total 
compensation calculations. 

• Employer’s Total Health Benefit Contributions: The average employer’s total contribution for all 
agencies is $1,604.70, and the median is $1,723.00. *The District’s employer’s total contribution 
for all employee classifications, other than Fire Chief, which is $993.39 above the average and 
$875.09 above the median; the Fire Chief’s employer’s total contribution is $2,056.33 which is 
$541.76 below all other employee groups.  

• Employee’s Total Health Benefit Contributions: The average employee’s total contribution for all 
classifications, other than Fire Chief, is $603.97, and the median is $528.98. The District’s total 
employee contribution is $0.00 which is $603.97 below the average and $528.98 below the 
median.  The employee’s total contribution for the Fire Chief classification is $541.76.  

 Table E-7: Waived Health Benefit Subsidy  

Table E-7 reports if a subsidy is provided when an employee waives/opts out of health benefits. Employees 
with alternate group health insurance are eligible to receive a subsidy when waiving benefits based on 
meeting the agency’s eligibility requirements. 

The data are collected for reporting only and not included in the total compensation calculations.  

• Five (6) agencies reported providing a subsidy; the reported subsidies ranged from $100 to 
$827.97 per month depending on the employee/dependent coverage being waived. *The District 
does not provide a subsidy for waiving out of health insurance benefits. 

 Table E-8: Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) at Retirement 

Table E-8 reports data pertaining to other post-employment benefits (OPEB), which are benefits other than 
retirement distributions.  

The data is collected for reporting only and not included in the total compensation calculations.  

• Six (6) agencies provide post-retirement health insurance subsidies. *The District provides a subsidy 
to all classifications based on employee group. 

  

115



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 32 

 Table E-9: Basic Life Insurance and Long-Term Disability Insurance  

Table E-9 reports data pertaining to basic benefits of life insurance and long-term disability coverage that an 
agency provides to its employees.  

The data are collected for reporting only and not included in the total compensation calculations.  

• Basic Life Insurance: Nine (9) agencies provide basic life insurance ranging from $10,000 to 2 times 
annual base compensation. one (1) agency did not provide this benefit to any employee groups. 
* The District provides $50,000 basic coverage for all employee groups. 

• Basic Long Term Disability: Two agencies (2) provide basic benefits providing 66.67% of base 
compensation, with a limit ranging from $7,500 to $10,000. *The District does not provide this 
benefit. 

 Table E-10: Other Employer Paid Health Plans 

Table E-10 reports data pertaining to other paid health plans that are provided by the employer.  

The data are collected for reporting only and not included in the total compensation calculations.  
• One (1) agency provides an air medical transport through a network membership for the 

employee and household members. * The District provides insurance coverage that provides air 
transport for medical necessity for the employee and dependents. 

• One (1) agency provides counseling services for family members when a loss occurs in the line of 
duty. 

 Table E-11: Leisure Leave & Sick Paid Leave Accruals 

Table E-11  reports paid time off from work for leisure activities and time away for illness and/or injuries. 

Leisure Leave: Vacation leave is the most common leave, with annual leave combining leisure leave, sick leave, 
and/or other leaves. Accrual rates are based on years of service and are normally taken in blocks of days or 
weeks by an employee. Annual accrual credits and maximum annual carryover credits for the minimum and 
maximum years of service are reported.  

Sick Leave: Paid leave for time off for sick leave offered to employees to compensate for time away from work 
for an employee or eligible family member related to illness or injury. Accrual rates are annual and are not 
based on years of service and are normally taken in hours or days. 

The data is collected for reporting only and not included in total compensation calculations.  Data reported 
below is based on all employee groups in all labor market agencies reporting data. 

• All agencies provide vacation and sick leave; one (1) agency provides the option of electing annual 
leave. 

• The first year of service vacation annual accrual range from five (5) to 22 days *The District 
provides 13.5 to 18 days per year based on classification. 

• The annual maximum vacation accrual rate ranges from 20 to 43 days based on classification. 
*The District provides a range of 20 to 42 days per year based on classification. 

116



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 33 

• The average annual sick leave accrual provided is an average of 13.78 days per year, with a median 
of 15 days. *The District provides 8 to 22.5 days of  sick leave credits annually based on 
classification. 

 Table E-12  Other Paid Leaves 

Table E-12 reports other paid leave accruals that employee groups may or may not be eligible for; accruals 
and maximums are reported in days. 

Holidays: Holidays are days off from work on days of special religious, cultural, social, or patriotic significance 
in which work, and business ordinarily cease. 

Floating Holidays: Floating Holidays or Personal leave accruals is a general-purpose leave benefit, used for 
reasons important to the individual employee, but not otherwise provided by other forms of leave; can be 
referred to as Personal Leave. 

Management Leave: Leave awarded to employees who are FLSA exempt from recognizing additional time 
worked to perform job duties. 

Bereavement Leave: Time-off from work, paid or unpaid, due to the death of an eligible individual, usually a 
close relative. 

This data is collected for reporting only and not included in total compensation calculations. Data reported 
below is based on all employee groups in all labor market agencies reporting data. 

• Holidays: The ten (10) labor market agencies provide 10 to 18 days holiday based on 
classifications. *The District provides 11 days to all employee classifications. 

• Floating Holidays:  Eight (8) agencies provide floating holidays to at least employee group, the 
number of days ranged from one (1) to eleven (11) days. *The District provides 2 days to all 
employee groups. 

• Management Leave: All agencies provide at least one (1) employee group management leave 
ranging from two (2) to 15 days. *The District provides six (6) management leave days per year for 
unrepresented and senior management employee groups that are FLSA exempt; the Fire Chief 
receives 12 days. 

• Bereavement Leave: All agencies provide Bereavement Leave ranging from 3  to 15 days; two (2) 
agencies provide two (2) days for travel. *The District provides five (5) to nine (9) days based on 
employee group.  

 Table E-13:Paid Leave Cash Out 

Table E-13 reports practices that allow employees to receive payment instead of taking time off work by being 
“paid in place of time off” or may convert one type of leave for another.  Requirements may have a maximum 
allowable number of hours to be paid out, require a minimum leave accrual to be maintained after payout or 
other eligibility and/or requirements. 

The data is collected for reporting only and not included in the total compensation calculations. 

117



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 34 

• Nine (9) agencies provide this benefit for at least one leave type. *The District does provide this 
benefit for both vacation and floating holidays. 

 Table E-14: Other Compensation - Longevity Incentives 

Table E-14 reports a monetary payment or other incentives to an employee based on seniority or length of 
service. 

The data is collected for reporting purposes and not included in the total compensation calculations. 

• Six (6) agencies provide longevity compensation. *The District does not have this pay practice. 

 Table E-15: Other Compensation - Vehicle Allowance/Usage 

Table E-15 reports vehicle allowances which is an amount of money given or usually allotted for a specific 
purpose without accounting for its use, and if a labor market agency assigns vehicles for agency transportation 
to conduct business. 

The data are collected for reporting only and not included in the total compensation calculations. 

• All labor market agencies provide the use of a vehicle for specific classification; one (1) agency 
provides a vehicle allowance.*The District provides an assigned vehicle. 

 Table E-16: Other Compensation  

Table E-16 reports reimbursements which are the act of reimbursing an employee for an out-of-pocket 
approved expense by giving them an amount of money based on an agency’s general reimbursement policy.   

The data are collected for reporting only and not included in the total compensation calculations. 

• Four (4) agencies provide incentives for certifications, wellness, and fitness; one (1) agency 
provide reimbursement for membership fees for the state firefighter’s association. *The District 
provides for the fire unit an incentive for a physical fitness program. 

  

118



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 35 

VIII. Salary Recommendations 

Following a review and analysis of the data collected and aggregated from the relevant labor markets, CPS HR has 
determined that the client’s base compensation is below the relevant labor market. This is shown in Table 4 below.  

Table 4: Labor Market Comparison 

Classification Title # of 
matches 

Base 
Salary 

Minimum 

Base 
Salary 

Midpoint 

Base 
Salary 

Maximum 

LM Base 
Salary 

Minimum 

LM Base 
Salary 

Midpoint 

LM Base 
Salary 

Maximum 

Mrkt 
Variance 

from 
Min 

Mrkt 
Variance 

from 
Mid 

Mrkt 
Variance 

from 
Max 

Battalion Chief 8 $7,204.13 $7,496.63 $7,789.13 $7,125.91 $7,835.10 $8,544.30 -1.09% 4.51% 9.70% 

Business Manager 8 $3,511.73 $3,890.47 $4,269.20 $3,846.84 $4,268.08 $4,710.66 9.54% 9.71% 10.34% 

Fire Captain 9 $3,426.80 $4,358.47 $5,290.13 $5,453.87 $6,041.54 $6,908.72 59.15% 38.62% 30.60% 

Fire Chief 9 $10,040.50 $10,040.50 $10,040.50 $10,273.47 $11,380.20 $12,486.93 2.32% 13.34% 24.37% 

Fire Engineer 9 $2,960.53 $3,764.97 $4,569.41 $4,719.16 $5,227.67 $5,882.24 59.40% 38.85% 28.73% 

Fire Inspector 1 $2,860.00 $3,006.47 $3,152.93 $3,740.53 $4,035.20 $4,329.87 30.79% 34.22% 37.33% 

Fire Marshal 1 $8,418.80 $8,418.80 $8,418.80 $7,730.67 $8,454.05 $9,177.42 -8.17% 0.42% 9.01% 

Firefighter 8 $2,558.40 $3,253.30 $3,948.19 $4,326.58 $4,829.32 $5,396.80 69.11% 48.44% 36.69% 

All eight (8) of the studied job classifications were found to be below the relevant labor market in midpoints and 
maximums, whereas two (2) job classifications are above the labor market when comparing minimums of the 
range. Specifically, the job classification of Battalion Chief was 1.09 percent above the market when comparing 
the minimum of the range, but below the labor market in midpoint and maximum at 4.51 and 9.7 percent, 
respectively. Likewise, the job classification of Fire Marshal had a single contractual rate of $8,418. Compared to 
the market minimum, found to be 8.17 percent above market, and below market in midpoint and maximum of 
the range at 0.42 and 9.01 percent, respectively. 

However, it is notable that the Fire Inspector and Fire Marshal (both civilian classifications) each had only one 
benchmark found in the labor market. Therefore, CPS HR used the existing internal relationship between jobs in 
Arcata Fire District to determine an appropriate position within the classification system for these two 
classifications. 

To better understand the leveling and separation between job classification within the fire suppression series, CPS 
HR also calculated the separation between Firefighter and Fire Engineer and between Fire Engineer and Fire 
Captain. Both separations were consistent and showed 15.7 percent between levels. A similar separation of 16.9 
percent was found between Fire Marshal and Battalion Chief. 

CPS HR developed a proposed pay structure with the following parameters to put all classifications into organized 
and market-aligned ranges. To develop a consistent range spread (bandwidth), CPS HR used 30 percent for range 
width between minimum and maximum pay grades. This better-aligned pay grades with market pay ranges and 
created career progression for all job classifications. 

 

 

 

 

119



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 36 

Table 4a: Recommended Pay Structure (Open-Range Model) 

Recomm. 
Grade 

Recomm. 
Grade 

Minimum 

Recomm. 
Grade 

Midpoint 

Recomm. 
Grade 

Maximum 
Bandwidth 

A $4,000 $4,600 $5,200 30.0% 
B $4,320 $4,968 $5,616 30.0% 
C $4,752 $5,465 $6,178 30.0% 
D $5,465 $6,285 $7,104 30.0% 
E $7,204 $8,285 $9,365 30.0% 
F $7,780 $8,948 $10,115 30.0% 
G $10,273 $11,814 $13,356 30.0% 

To ensure systematic and organized career movements, CPS HR proposes keeping pay grades in an open-range 
format (as shown in Table 4a above) or breaking pay ranges into 10 steps (see Table 4b below). 

Table 4b: Recommended Pay Structure (Step-System Model) 

Recomm. 
Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 

A $4,000 $4,133 $4,267 $4,400 $4,533 $4,667 $4,800 $4,933 $5,067 $5,200 
B $4,320 $4,464 $4,608 $4,752 $4,896 $5,040 $5,184 $5,328 $5,472 $5,616 
C $4,752 $4,910 $5,069 $5,227 $5,386 $5,544 $5,702 $5,861 $6,019 $6,178 
D $5,465 $5,647 $5,829 $6,011 $6,193 $6,376 $6,558 $6,740 $6,922 $7,104 
E $7,204 $7,444 $7,684 $7,925 $8,165 $8,405 $8,645 $8,885 $9,125 $9,365 
F $7,780 $8,040 $8,299 $8,559 $8,818 $9,077 $9,337 $9,596 $9,855 $10,115 
G $10,273 $10,616 $10,958 $11,301 $11,643 $11,986 $12,328 $12,671 $13,013 $13,356 

Upon completion of the pay structure design, CPS HR assigned the District’s classifications to pay grades. During 
this process, the main considerations were to maintain appropriate leveling and separations between job 
classifications to alleviate pay compression, and to ensure that career progression and promotional opportunities 
exist.  In cases of insufficient market data (see Fire Marshal and Fire Inspector in Table 4), the decision of slotting 
jobs into pay grades was based on the internal equity and preserving existing internal relationships between job 
classifications.  The recommended grade assignments for each job classification are shown in Table 4c (below). 

 Table 4c: Assigning Jobs to Pay Grades 

Classification Title Recomm. 
Grade 

Recomm. 
Grade 

Minimum 

 Recomm. 
Grade 

Midpoint 

Recomm. 
Grade 

Maximum 

Firefighter A $4,000  $4,533 $5,200 

Fire Inspector B $4,320  $4,968 $5,616 

Fire Engineer C $4,752  $5,465 $6,178 

Fire Captain D $5,465  $6,285 $7,104 

Business Manager D $5,465  $6,285 $7,104 

Battalion Chief E $7,204  $8,285 $9,365 

Fire Marshal F $7,780  $8,948 $10,115 

Fire Chief G $10,273  $11,814 $13,356 

120



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 37 

While the recommendations in Table 4c above are based on valid market data analysis, CPS HR identified the 
following salary relationship trends worthy of consideration when making final salary assignments to these 
classifications. 

 While only one of the survey agencies had a stand-alone class of Fire Marshal, several assign the role to 
one of their Battalion Chiefs.  Thus, there appears to be labor market support for putting the two (2) 
classifications at the same pay level. 

 In most of the surveyed labor market agencies, Firefighters and Engineers conduct fire inspections as part 
of their jobs.  Only one agency (Humboldt Bay Fire) has a separate, civilian fire inspection class. While 
that class is paid at a higher level than Arcata, it also requires applicants to have some fire service 
experience. These factors argue for assigning a salary range to Fire Inspector that is no higher than that 
for Firefighter. 

 The use of Battalion Chief classifications varied widely between the labor market agencies.  Some 
agencies have up to three (3) Battalion Chiefs who report to the Fire Chief or Deputy Fire Chief and 
primarily oversee operations for an assigned shift. For others, the Battalion Chief roles are more similar 
to Arcata, with incumbents responsible for overseeing both operations and administrative programs and 
projects.  In all cases, compensation for the Battalion Chief appears to be influenced by their functional 
level within the organization.  If the agency has three tiers of management (e.g., Fire Chief, Deputy Fire 
Chief, Battalion Chief), then the Battalion Chief salaries are typically at the lower end of the market.  If 
the agency only has two tiers (e.g., Fire Chief plus two or more Battalion Chiefs), then the Battalion Chief 
salaries tend to be higher since duties performed by such Battalion Chiefs tend to have a stronger 
administrative management focus.  Arcata follows this latter pattern, and therefore CPS HR has 
recommended a new class of Fire Division Chief to replace the current Battalion Chief. 

 Furthermore, when determining the appropriate salary range for Fire Division Chief, we view the 
relationship to the Fire Chief class as a primary consideration. Specifically, establishing a maximum salary 
of 25-30% below the Director (and at least 15-20% above the next lower manager or supervisory level) is 
consistent with best practice for classes at this level. This would suggest that the Fire Division Chief class 
placement at salary range F above (instead of E) could be considered.  

121



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 38 

IX. Recruitment and Retention Strategies  

Methodology 

As noted in the introduction to this report, one of the District’s objectives in conducting this study was to identify 
potential classification, compensation, and organizational strategies for improving District staff recruitment and 
retention.  To meet this objective, CPS HR asked the Fire Chiefs in the labor market agencies if they would be 
willing to participate in a brief interview to discuss the strategies that have worked for them.  The CPS HR project 
manager contacted eight (8) of the ten (10) labor market agencies. CPS HR did not contact CalFire because that 
organization is a state agency with minimal local influence over recruitment and retention.  Likewise, CPS HR did 
not contact the Lake County Fire Protection District as that agency requires all of their operations staff to be 
certified paramedics.  Thus, the salary survey only matched two (2) of their classifications and found that 
organization to be very different from Arcata Fire District. 

Six (6) of the labor market Fire Chiefs agreed to participate, and the CPS HR project manager contacted each of 
them by phone.  The responding agencies/Fire Chiefs were as follows: 

 City of Auburn Fire Department (Chief Dave Spencer) 

 City of Red Bluff Fire Department (Chief Ray Barber) 

 Humboldt Bay Fire Department (Chief Sean Robertson) 

 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District (Chief Jim Turner) 

 Sutter County Fire Department (Chief John Shalowitz) 

 Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (Chief Doug Hutchison) 

During the phone calls, the CPS HR project manager asked agency demographics questions to confirm the number 
of stations operated, staff work schedules, the minimum apparatus staffing, and whether the agency used 
paramedics.  CPS HR also asked questions about the organization's structure, including the roles of staff at each 
level.  Finally, CPS HR asked what recruitment/retention strategies had worked for each agency, including such 
things as incentive pays, educational reimbursement, and special assignment pays.  The key results of these 
discussions and relevant comments gleaned from the employee classification interviews are summarized below.  
Note that this information primarily applies to sworn staff. 

Agency Demographics 

 Number of active stations: 1 - 5  

 Shift schedule:  48/96 (all) 

 Total FTE’s: 16 - 60 

Management Structures 

 Humboldt Bay:  Fire Chief (1); Deputy Fire Chief (1); Battalion Chief (3); the Deputy Fire Chief is designated 
as the Fire Marshal. 

 Red Bluff: Fire Chief (1); Division Chief (1); the Division Chief is designated as the Fire Marshal. 

 Nevada: Fire Chief (1); Battalion Chief (2); Fire Marshal (1); a Deputy Chief being considered. 

122



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 39 

 Auburn: Fire Chief (1); Battalion Chief (3); a Fire Engineer is currently being trained to perform Fire 
Marshal duties. 

 Sutter, Ukiah: Fire Chief (1); Battalion Chief (2); either the Fire Chief or one of the Battalion Chiefs serves 
as the Fire Marshal. 

 In Red Bluff, Sutter, and Ukiah, the Battalion Chiefs work 40 hours/week schedules and are typically 
responsible for managing a major section/division of the agency.  Since they do not get overtime pay (but 
are part of the duty chief schedule), these agencies offer special incentives such as paid management 
leave (40-120 hours).  Ukiah also pays “duty officer pay” of 2 hours per shift (4 hours per shift is assigned 
to a strike team).  Ukiah also offers “extraordinary circumstance pay,” which takes effect if the manager 
responds to an extended incident, generally defined as longer than 15 hours.  

 The remaining Battalion Chief positions are working as “shift managers.” Those Fire Chiefs stated that, 
while operations staff like that arrangement, it can leave the Fire Chief without sufficient management 
support.  When asked how this is resolved, most stated that communication is paramount, and careful 
selection of staff for the Battalion Chief positions is also essential.  Furthermore, to ensure that the 
Battalion Chiefs are functioning at a management level. They stated that it is important to give them 
responsibilities that have some degree of “status,” seeking opportunities to recognize their status with 
“perks” such as participation in high-level meetings, attendance at conferences and special training, and 
assignments that encourage them to “stretch.”  The Fire Chiefs also said that this type of Battalion Chief 
structure works best when the Fire Captains are given “stretch” assignments, ensuring that the Battalion 
Chiefs do not get bogged down in operations activities that prevent them from performing their 
managerial duties. 

Hiring Level (Entry) 

 Five of the agencies primarily hire staff at the Firefighter level. 

 Like Arcata, Sutter is using their Fire Engineer class as the hiring level.  However, to do that, the minimum 
qualifications for that class had to be set at the Firefighter level, e.g., requiring only Firefighter I and EMT 
certifications and a valid driver’s license.  After hire, incumbents must obtain EMT1-D within one year and 
must obtain Driver/Operator 1-A/1-B and Hazmat Technician certifications prior to the completion of 
probation. 

Minimum Emergency Operations Staffing 

 Three (3) agencies (Nevada, Red Bluff, Ukiah) staff their fire engines with a minimum of two (2) full-time 
employees.  The others (Auburn, Humboldt Bay, Sutter) have a minimum staffing level of three (3) on 
their engines. 

 All the Fire Chiefs said that ensuring minimum staffing was a priority for their agencies and a key safety 
concern.  To achieve this, all agencies utilize part-time, intern, or volunteer staff to “fill out” their staffing 
(see below). Such programs were especially active in those agencies with minimum staffing of two (2) full-
time employees.   

123



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 40 

 Minimum staffing was consistently raised as an issue by Arcata’s Fire Engineers and Fire Captains during 
their classification interviews.  They identified this as one of the primary reasons they would consider 
moving to another agency, citing safety concerns. 

Apprenticeship/Internship/Part-time Programs 

 Auburn utilizes an internship program.  Participants must have basic academy training or some field 
experience.  They receive a stipend for every shift worked. 

 Red Bluff has a part-time (reserve) program.  Participants are paid a minimum hourly wage and can only 
work a limited number of hours (within PERS rules).  The agency provides uniforms and may pay for some 
training. 

 Humboldt Bay uses some volunteers and interns (with stipends) as well.  Whenever possible, the agency 
tries to provide non-salary incentives, such as paid training.  Currently, they are paying for some interns 
to attend the academy. 

 Nevada supplements their staffing with part-time employees on a seasonal basis. 

 Sutter has an internship program that pays a stipend of $50/day. The agency does pay for their training 
whenever possible if it benefits the organization. 

 Ukiah uses volunteers to supplement their staffing, and they also operate an apprenticeship program 
(with paid stipends). 

Salary Step Structure 

 Auburn has 10 steps (A-J) within each salary range.  There is a 2.5% differential between steps.  Employees 
spend 6 months at steps A and B, and progress annually thereafter.  

 Red Bluff has 5 regular steps in each range.  Progression is annual. Longevity pay (5%) added at 10+ years. 

 Humboldt Bay has 6 steps per range. Employees advanced from step 1 to step 2 after 6 months, and 
progress annually thereafter.  

 Nevada has 5 regular steps in each range.  Progression is annual. Longevity pay tops out at 4.5%, 
depending on years of service. 

 Sutter has 11 step ranges, but steps 9-11 require 15-25 years of service (longevity). 

 Ukiah has 5 step ranges with annual progression.  Longevity is a flat amount: 7th year = $1000, 12th year = 
$2500, 20th year = $3500 (not additive). 

Tuition Reimbursement 

Most of these agencies budget generously for employee training (see below). However, their practice is to pay for 
training that is valuable to the organization rather than to reimburse employees for classes that may not be 
beneficial to the agency.  However, Auburn offers tuition reimbursement up to $1200/year, giving employees the 
flexibility to choose their priorities. 

124



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 41 

Incentive Pays 

Various incentive pays are offered by these agencies.  When asked whether such incentives play a significant role 
in recruitment/retention, the Fire Chiefs all agreed that the incentives help retain motivated employees, but not 
necessarily all employees.  They also acknowledged that financial incentives are not always sustainable from a 
budget perspective and that paying employees for certifications or personal achievements that are not beneficial 
to the agency's business operations may not be practical.  Nonetheless, the surveyed Fire Chiefs all agreed that 
incentives have a moderate impact on employee retention and encourage career development.  Typical incentives 
offered include: 

 Education/Training Incentives: most of these agencies offer additional pay for education/training above 
the minimum required for the job.  These pay supplements range from 2.5% to 12.5%, depending on the 
degree(s) or certificate(s) earned.   

 Special Assignment Incentives:  several agencies pay for special skills such as bilingual pay, but Humboldt 
Bay appears to be the most generous with special assignment incentives, offering pay for assignment to 
the Hazmat Response Team (3%); Paramedic Team (10%); as a Fire/Shift Investigator (3% + 3% more if a 
Lead); Urban Search and Rescue Team (3%); Water Rescue Team (3%); and as a Training Captain (3%). 
Employees can only earn a maximum of 6% in incentives, but many employees are getting that maximum 
given the number of special team options.  The Chief in Humboldt Bay acknowledged that because these 
special teams are rarely activated, one could question the value of the incentive pays.  However, by 
offering the expertise of his staff to other agencies, he has been able to keep these special teams 
sufficiently active to maintain their training.     

Training 

All the Fire Chiefs stated that having a generous training budget is a critical factor in retaining staff.  In the fire 
service, employees perceive training as the primary mechanism for self-improvement and career growth. Training 
can pay double dividends: employees consider training a benefit that enhances them personally and 
professionally, and the agency benefits from having better trained and knowledgeable employees.  They 
acknowledged that there is the risk that employees will stay with an agency for the training but then use that 
training to find a higher-level job elsewhere.  However, the Fire Chiefs universally said that it is a risk worth taking 
because of the overall positive impact training has on work quality and employee morale.  Several Fire Chiefs 
noted that, while it can be expensive to send employees to off-site classes, high quality but low-cost online 
programs are also available.  

 During our interviews with Arcata staff, several employees stated that the lack of training opportunities 
was a significant factor causing low staff morale and poor retention. 

Special Funding/Outsourcing/Consolidation 

Several Fire Chiefs stated that some grant funding could be found that helps address budgetary challenges.  The 
short-term nature of grants makes them largely unsuitable for adding staff, but grants can be helpful when it 
comes to adding equipment or developing certain types of training programs. 

Since most of the Fire Chiefs interviewed are affiliated with city or county governments, administrative support 
related to human resources, payroll, information technology, and finance is centrally provided.  The Fire Chiefs 

125



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 42 

for Nevada and Humboldt agreed that outsourcing some administrative services, particularly information 
technology, recruitment, and payroll, has been cost-effective. 

Some of the Fire Chiefs also referred to recruitment services and reimbursements they have received through the 
California Firefighter Joint Apprenticeship Committee (Cal-JAC).  Although a detailed analysis of such programs 
was beyond the scope of this study, CPS HR reviewed the Cal-JAC website (CA Fire Fighter Joint Apprenticeship 
Committee - California Firefighter Joint Apprenticeship Committee (cffjac.org)) and it appears that some funding 
may be available to agencies that hire from their apprenticeship programs. 

Finally, several Fire Chiefs stated that consolidation with another agency may be worth considering maintaining 
organizational viability.  Joint partnerships with cities or counties, or other fire districts, offer an opportunity to 
pool resources and avoid duplication of services. 

Summary of Findings 

In addition to the specific findings above, the Fire Chiefs offered some general comments and recommendations 
summarized below. 

 Commit to transparency and open communication. Several of the Fire Chiefs acknowledged that, like 
Arcata, they had faced severe budgetary limitations at one time or another. Complete transparency and 
constant communication with the staff were essential to maintaining employee morale during such times.  
Furthermore, the Fire Chiefs said that management must be both visible and accessible to staff. While 
good labor relations are important, it is not sufficient for management to interact only with union 
representatives.  Every Fire Chief used the word “family” to describe their organization and discussed the 
importance of ensuring that every employee sees themselves as essential.  Likewise, when presented with 
organizational challenges, employees who were fully engaged in the organization were willing to go 
“above and beyond” the minimum to solve problems.  

 Invest in employees, even if it does not seem cost-effective. As explained above, certain employee 
benefits may not seem like a good investment based on their actual costs.  However, in the end, the cost 
of staff turnover will significantly outweigh the cost of investing in staff.  Furthermore, fire service 
employees place a high value on training and interpret training opportunities as a recognition of their 
value to the organization.  

 Establish clear performance expectations and help employees succeed in meeting them. When asked 
whether it was difficult to get leadership staff (e.g., Battalion Chiefs, Captains) to take on “collateral 
duties” or special assignments, the Fire Chiefs stated that, while management must be fully aware of staff 
workloads and not make unreasonable demands, success depends on ensuring that staff is clear about 
what is being asked of them, that they have the resources needed to do the job, that they receive any 
training necessary to ensure they can succeed, and that success is rewarded.  Rewards need not be 
monetary but can be “lunch with the Chief” or assignments to a special task force.  

 Maximize hiring options. All these agencies are small and rural, and the Fire Chiefs generally agreed that 
local applicants are the most likely to stay with the organization. However, they found that placing 
unnecessary residency restrictions on the applicant pool reduced their hiring options and did not 
significantly improve staff retention. Instead, broadening their hiring options to include part-time 
employees, interns, apprentices, etc., has been most successful, and they have been able to fill most full-

126

http://www.cffjac.org/go/jac/about-jac/
http://www.cffjac.org/go/jac/about-jac/


Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 43 

time vacancies from those part-time ranks.  One agency pays for academy training to understand that 
graduates must commit to one year of employment or must pay back the funds.  The premise is that if the 
agency is a healthy and desirable place to work, staff retention will be a minimal concern. 

 Maintain the classification and compensation plans. While not specifically identified by the Fire Chiefs, 
CPS HR wishes to note that, to encourage employee growth and development, employers should 
continuously monitor their class plans for consistency with best market practices, particularly in terms of 
class titling, leveling, recruitment standards, and salary comparability. This includes transparently 
publicizing classification specifications and compensation tables to help employees see how classes are 
“related” to each other and identify what is needed to promote to the higher levels.  Also, ensuring that 
promotional standards are clearly and consistently applied is essential to avoiding claims of bias or 
favoritism.   

CPS HR was advised by the District’s Fire Chief that the Arcata Fire salary schedule has not been increased 
since 2015 and that no market surveys have been done since that time. While we have described many 
financial and non-financial incentives that can impact recruitment and retention, maintaining a market-
based compensation structure is essential to being competitive in the labor market.  Thus, CPS HR 
recommends that our clients conduct an annual base salary “spot check” of key benchmark classes in their 
labor market, with a full total compensation analysis/study at least every three (3) years.  

 

  

127



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 44 

X. Conclusion 
This Final Classification and Total Compensation Report provides detailed information concerning the scope of the 
project, the methodology used to complete the project, and the study results, including where the District is 
positioned in comparison to the labor market. Should you require any further information or have questions 
concerning this final report, do not hesitate to contact Jan Bentley at jbentley@cpshr.us.  

 
  

128

mailto:jbentley@cpshr.us


Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 45 

Appendix A: Position Description Questionnaire 

129



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 46 
130



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 47 
131



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 48 
132



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 49 
133



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 50 
134



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 51 
135



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 52 
136



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 53 
137



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 54 
138



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 55 
139



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 56 
140



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 57 
141



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 58 

  

142



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 59 

Appendix B: Position Allocation Table 

143



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 60 

Position Allocation Table (Sorted by Current Class Title) 

Incumbent Name Current Class Title Recommended Class Title 
Campbell, Sean Battalion Chief Fire Division Chief 
Schuette, Becky Business Manager Business Manager 
Evenson, John Fire Captain Fire Captain 
Hawks, Angie Fire Captain Fire Captain 
Lillard, Marcus Fire Captain Fire Captain 
Manousos, Alex Fire Captain Fire Captain 
McDonald, Ross  Fire Captain Fire Captain 
Padula, Nate Fire Captain Fire Captain 
VACANT Fire Captain Fire Captain 
VACANT Fire Captain Fire Captain 
VACANT Fire Captain Fire Captain 
McDonald, Justin Fire Chief Fire Chief 
Benelisha, Anthony Fire Engineer Fire Engineer 
Gibbs, Evan Fire Engineer Fire Engineer 
Kadle, Russell Fire Engineer Fire Engineer 
Sutter, Alex Fire Engineer Fire Engineer 
VACANT Fire Engineer Firefighter/Fire Engineer 
VACANT Fire Engineer Firefighter/Fire Engineer 
VACANT Fire Engineer Firefighter/Fire Engineer 
VACANT Fire Engineer Firefighter/Fire Engineer 
VACANT Fire Engineer Firefighter/Fire Engineer 
Knowles, Matt Fire Inspector Fire Inspector 
Leve-Sheon, Sophie Fire Inspector Fire Inspector 
Laidlaw, Ed Fire Marshal Fire Marshal 

 

144



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 61 

Appendix C: Final Classification Specifications 

145



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 62 
146



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 63 
147



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 64 
148



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 65 
149



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 66 
150



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 67 
151



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 68 
152



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 69 
153



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 70 
154



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 71 
155



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 72 
156



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 73 
157



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 74 
158



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 75 
159



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 76 
160



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 77 
161



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 78 
162



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 79 
163



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 80 
164



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 81 
165



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 82 
166



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 83 
167



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 84 
168



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 85 
169



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 86 
170



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 87 
171



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 88 
172



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 89 
173



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 90 
174



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 91 
175



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 92 
176



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 93 
177



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 94 
178



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 95 
179



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 96 
180



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 97 
181



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 98 
182



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 99 
183



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 100 
184



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 101 
185



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 102 
186



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 103 
187



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 104 
188



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 105 
189



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 106 
190



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 107 
191



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 108 
192



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 109 
193



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 110 
194



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 111 
195



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 112 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix D: Compensation Datasheets 

196



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 113 
197



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 114 
198



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 115 
199



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 116 
200



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 117 
201



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 118 
202



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 119 
203



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 120 

 

  

204



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 121 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix E: Benefit and Compensation Practices 
Tables

205



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 122 

Table E-1: Employee Group Representation 
*Original Collective Bargaining Unit (CBA) extended by side letter 
FTE – Full Time Equivalents; LT – Long Term; PT – Part Time; UF – Unfunded; Vol – Volunteer(s)s  
NS – Non-Safety; S - Safety 

Agencies 

Budgeted/ 
Allocated 

# FTEs/ 
Positions 

Employee Group(s) Representation 

Agreement/Resolution 
Term 

Document 
Type 

Begin End 

Arcata Fire District 18 FTE 
3 PT 

10 Vol 

     

Safety  Fire Unit Arcata Professional Firefighters 
Local 4981 

1/1/2018 6/2021 CBA 

  Battalion Chief Arcata Fire District Senior 
Management Group 

2/1/2017 12/31/2020* CBA 

Non-Safety  General Unit Unrepresented -- -- -- 
Safety  Fire Chief  6/1/2016 6/1/2022 Employee 

Agreement 
Auburn Fire Department 22 FTE 

7 LT FTE1 
     

Safety  Fire Unit Auburn Firefighters (IAFF), Local 
4110 

7/1/2017 6/30/2020 CBA 

  Fire Chief Unrepresented 6/17/2018 Until 
termination 

Employee 
Agreement 

CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte 100+      
  Fire Unit CAL FIRE Local 2881 1/1/2017 7/1/2021 CBA 
  Excluded Supervisory Unpresented NA NA NA 
  Excluded Management     

 
 
 
1 Auburn Fire Department: Special Fire Fund - Funds 7.0 FTE Limited-Term Fire personnel as part of Fire Wildland Urban  
Interface Strategic Plan implementation. 

206



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 123 

Agencies 

Budgeted/ 
Allocated 

# FTEs/ 
Positions 

Employee Group(s) Representation 

Agreement/Resolution 
Term 

Document 
Type 

Begin End 

City of Chico Fire Rescue Department 62 FTE 
30 Vol 

     

Non-Safety  General Unit United Public Employees of 
California, Local 792 (UPEC) 

7/1/2019 12/31/2021 CBA 

Safety  Fire Unit International Association of 
Firefighters (IAFF) 

1/1/2017 6/30/2021  

 

 

Battalion Chiefs Chico Battalion Chiefs Resolution 
(CBC) 

7/1/2020 12/31/2021 Pay & 
Benefits 
Resolution 
(PBR) 

  Fire Chief Unrepresented  1/24/2018 Until 
terminated 

Employee 
Agreement 

City of Oroville Fire Department 21 FTE 
5 UF 

     

Non-Safety  General Unit Oroville City Employees 
Association (OCEA) 

1/7/2020 1/6/2023 CBA 

Safety  Fire Unit Oroville Fire Fighters' Association 
(OFFA) 

7/1/2019 6/30/2021 CBA 

  Battalion Chief Oroville Public Safety Mid-
Manager's Association (OPSMMA) 

7/1/2020 6/30/202 CBA 

City of Red Bluff Fire Department 15 FTE 
 

     

Non-Safety 

 

Miscellaneous Unit Operating Engineers Union Local 
NO. 3 

1/1/2021 6/30/2023 CBA 

Safety  Fire Unit United Public Employees Of 
California,  

7/1/2017 6/30/2021* CBA 

207



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 124 

Agencies 

Budgeted/ 
Allocated 

# FTEs/ 
Positions 

Employee Group(s) Representation 

Agreement/Resolution 
Term 

Document 
Type 

Begin End 

Local 792, LIUNA, AFL-CIO (RBFA) 
  Fire Chief 

Management A 
Unrepresented 7/1/2020 6/30/2021 Resolution 

Humboldt Bay Fire Authority 60 FTE      
Non-Safety  Confidential Unrepresented NA NA -- 

Safety  Fire Unit Humboldt Bay Firefighters Local, 
#652 

1/1/2019 12/31/2023 CBA 

  Battalion Chief Unrepresented - Management NA NA -- 
  Fire Chief Unrepresented    
Lake County Fire Protection District 29 FTE 

 
     

Non-Safety  Administrative Unrepresented 7/1/2019 6/30/2022 Employee 
Agreement 

Safety  Fire Chief  7/1/2019 7/1/2020  
Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
District 

38 FTE      

Non-Safety  Administrative Mgmt Unrepresented NA NA -- 
Safety 

 
Fire Unit Nevada County Consolidated 

Professional Firefighters,  
(IAFF) Local 3800 

7/1/2019 6/30/2021 CBA 

Safety  Fire Marshal Unrepresented 9/19/2019 No end date Employee 
Agreement 

Safety  Fire Chief     
Sutter County Fire Department 16 FTE 

6 LT FTE 
     

Non-Safety  General Unit General Supervisory & 
Professionals, Local 1 

1/1/2020 6/30/2022 CBA 

Safety  Fire Unit Sutter Firefighters Association 7/1/2018 12/31/2019  
  Battalion Chief Management-Unrepresented NA NA Resolution 
  Fire Chief  NA NA  

208



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 125 

Agencies 

Budgeted/ 
Allocated 

# FTEs/ 
Positions 

Employee Group(s) Representation 

Agreement/Resolution 
Term 

Document 
Type 

Begin End 

Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) 19.80 FTE      
Non-Safety  Administrative Operating Engineers Local Union 

No 3 
9/19/2018 9/18/2021 CBA 

Safety  Fire Unit Ukiah Valley Fire District 
Employee Association 

  CBA 

  Battalion Chief     
  Fire Chief Department Head - 

Unrepresented 
  Agreement 

  

209



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 126 

Table E-2: Salary Structure and Compensation Adjustments 

Agencies Employee Group (s) Salary Structure 

Salary 
Schedule 
Effective 

Date 

Compensation Adjustments Compensation 
Adjustments Based 
on: Date Amount 

Arcata Fire District   4/2021 6/21/2015 5% Based on 
performance 

 Fire Unit 3 Steps     
 Management       
 Unrepresented  5 Steps     
 Fire Chief  Flat Rate     
Auburn Fire Department       
 Fire Unit 10 Steps 7/1/2019 

Range B 
7/2017 
7/2018 
7/2019 

2.0% 
2.0% 
2.0% 

Based on merit 

 Fire Chief Flat Rates 7/17/2018 
8/1/2019 

8/1/2019 
7/1/2020 

10.0% 
0.0% 

 

CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte  Salary Range 1/20/2021 7/1/2020  Based on merit 
 Fire Unit      
 Battalion Chief    2.0%  
 All Others    2.75%  
 Excluded Supervisory    (9.23%)2  
 Excluded Management      

City of Chico Fire Rescue Department      Based on 
performance 

 
 
 

• 2 CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte: Per the excluded employee pay plan for 2020-2021 fiscal year there is a two day-per month Personal Leave 
Program (PLP) reducing compensation by 9.23% and providing 16 hours of leave credit per month. General salary increases are suspended. 

210



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 127 

Agencies Employee Group (s) Salary Structure 

Salary 
Schedule 
Effective 

Date 

Compensation Adjustments Compensation 
Adjustments Based 
on: Date Amount 

 General Unit 14 Steps 9/20/2019 9/20/2019 2.5%  
 Fire Unit  6/9/2019 6/9/2019 2.7%  
 Battalion Chiefs      
 Fire Chief Flat Rate   5% Merit - not to exceed 

five percent (5%) per 
year 

City of Oroville Fire Department   9/1/2020    
 General Unit 15 Steps  1/7/2020 

7/1/2020 
7/1/2021 
7/1/2022 

3% 
3% 
3% 
3% 

Based on 
performance 

 Fire Unit 13 Steps  7/1/2018 
7/1/2019 

2% 
2% as 

lump sum 

 

 Battalion Chief  8 Steps  NA TBD  
City of Red Bluff Fire Department   5/1/2021   Unknown 

 General Unit 5 Steps  1/1/2021 
7/1/2021 
7/1/2022 

3% 
3% 
3% 

 

 Fire Unit   7/1/2017 
1/1/2018 
1/1/2019 

2% 
2% 
2% 

 

 Management A Salary Ranges  7/1/2020 
7/1/2021 
7/1/2022 

3% 
3% 
3% 

 

Humboldt Bay Fire Authority   4/14/2021   Based on 
performance 

 Confidential 5 Steps  1/1/2019 5%  
 Fire Unit 5 to 6 Steps   1/1/2020 2%  
 Battalion Chief Steps  1/1/2021 2%  
 Fire Chief   1/1/2022 3%  
    1/1/2023 3%  

211



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 128 

Agencies Employee Group (s) Salary Structure 

Salary 
Schedule 
Effective 

Date 

Compensation Adjustments Compensation 
Adjustments Based 
on: Date Amount 

       
Lake County Fire Protection District   7/1/2019   Based on 

performance 
 Administrative 3 Steps  11/1/2021 NA  
 Fire Chief Flat Rate  7/1/2020 Unknown  
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District      Based on 

performance 
 Administrative Mgmt 5 Steps 9/22/2019 6/30/2019 $1.98/hr.  
 Fire Unit  6/30/2019 6/30/2019 $1.98/hr.  
 Fire Marshal 5 Steps 9/22/2019 9/2020 2% Based on 

performance 
 Fire Chief      
Sutter County Fire Department   4/28/2021    
 Administrative Mgmt 5 Steps  4/10/2021 1.0%  
 Fire Unit 8 Steps  Unknown Unknown  
 Management 5 Steps     
Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA)  5 Steps 9/22/2019 9/18/2018 

9/19/2019 
9/19/2020 

4.0% 
3.0% 
3.0% 

 

 Administrative      
 Fire Unit      
 Battalion Chief      
 Fire Chief      

  

212



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 129 

Table E-3: Retirement Contribution Practices and FICA Participation 
Medicare: It is presumed that all agencies participate in Medicare with a 1.45% employer contribution, if not it will be noted.  

Agency 
Plan 

Administrator 

Number of Active Members 
Employer 

Normal Cost 
Blended Rate3 

Employer Paid 
Classic 

Member 
Contributions 

(EPMC)4 

Social Security  
Employee Group(s) Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 PEPRA Total 

Arcata Fire District CalPERS**        NA 
Non-Safety  1 -- -- -- 1 14.194% 8%  

Safety  12 4 -- 6 32 22.0% 9%  
Auburn Fire Department CalPERS**         

Safety  6 3 -- 3 12 22.97% -- NA 
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte CalPERS         

Safety  Not available 36.10% 9% NA 
City of Chico Fire Rescue Department CalPERS       -- NA 

Non-Safety  146 -- -- 64 210 11.91%   
Safety  52 -- -- 5 57 22.39%   

City of Oroville Fire Department CalPERS**       -- NA 
Non-Safety  27 -- -- 26 53 9.92%   

Safety5  24 -- -- 4 28 19.89%   
City of Red Bluff Fire Department CalPERS**       -- 6.2% 

Non-Safety  35 -- -- 26 61 9.62%   
Safety  8 -- -- 7 15 16.57%   

Humboldt Bay Fire Authority CalPERS**       -- NA 
Non-Safety  2 -- -- 2 4 10.96%   

Safety  24 17 -- 10 51 21.32%   

 
 
 
3 Normal Cost Blended Rate, also referred to as “All Tiers Combined” is applicable to Defined Benefit plans only.  If Normal Cost Bended Rate is not reported in a plan’s 
actuarial valuation a weighted average will be calculated. 
4 Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC) - Refers to an employment benefit provided to Classic members of a Defined Benefit Retirement Plan, in which the 
employer agrees to pay some or all of the statutorily required employee contribution to the retirement system, sometimes referred to as “pick-up” contribution. 
5 City of Oroville Fire Department – Classic plan includes fire and police members; PEPRA is fire only. 

213



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 130 

Agency 
Plan 

Administrator 

Number of Active Members 
Employer 

Normal Cost 
Blended Rate3 

Employer Paid 
Classic 

Member 
Contributions 

(EPMC)4 

Social Security  
Employee Group(s) Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 PEPRA Total 

Lake County Fire Protection District CalPERS**        NA 
Non-Safety  2 -- -- 0 2 16.50% --  

Safety  18 -- -- 7 25 20.65% 9%  
Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
District CalPERS**       -- NA 

Non-Safety  2 -- -- 1 3 10.30%   
Safety  24 -- -- 0 24 19.19%   

Sutter County Fire Department CalPERS       -- 6.2% 
Non-Safety  51 335 70 3556 811 10.518%   

Safety  6 3 -- 5 14 19.260%   
Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) CalPERS**         

Non-Safety  91 -- -- 53 144 12.764% 8% 6.2% 
Safety  15  -- 1 16 22.95% 9% NA 

  

 
 
 
6 Sutter County Fire Department: Rates and members are inclusive of all of Sutter County.  

214



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 131 

Table E-4: Defined Contribution Plans 

Agency 

Plan Type 

Employer 
Non-Matching 
Contribution 

Employee is either not required or is 
mandated to contribute to be eligible 
to participate in the plan; therefore, 
employer contribution is included in 
the total compensation calculations 
unless noted otherwise 

Employer 
Matching Contribution 

Employee contribution is required to 
receive employer contribution; 
therefore, the employer contribution is 
discretionary & is not included in the 
total compensation calculations 

Employee Group(s) 

Arcata Fire District 457(b) Not applicable  
All other employees   $100/pay period 

Fire Chief   $200/pay period 
Auburn Fire Department 457(b) -- -- 

Fire Chief  $50/month  
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte 457(b) -- -- 
City of Chico Fire Rescue Department 457(b) -- -- 
City of Oroville Fire Department 457(b) -- -- 
City of Red Bluff Fire Department 457(b) -- -- 
Humboldt Bay Fire Authority 457(b) -- -- 
Lake County Fire Protection District 457(b) -- -- 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 457(b) -- -- 
Sutter County Fire Department 457(b) -- $25/pay period 
Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) 457(b) -- -- 

  

215



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 132 

Table E-5: Retiree Health Savings Plans (RHS) 
Agency 

Retiree Health Savings Plans 
Employee Group(s) 

Arcata Fire District Benefit not provided 
Auburn Fire Department Benefit not provided 
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte State and employee will prefund retiree healthcare, 4.4% each both employer and employees  
City of Chico Fire Rescue Department Benefit not provided 
City of Oroville Fire Department Benefit not provided 
City of Red Bluff Fire Department Benefit not provided 
Humboldt Bay Fire Authority Benefit not provided 
Lake County Fire Protection District See post-retirement health 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Benefit not provided 
Sutter County Fire Department Benefit not provided 
Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) Benefit not provided 

 

  

216



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 133 

Table E-6: Health Plans Monthly Contributions 

Note: The benchmark plan for each health coverage type is based on: Medical – Preferred Provider Organization (PPO), if not offered comparable plan will 
be selected; Dental & Vision – lowest premium plan.  

Agency 
Medical 

Contribution 
Formula % 

EE/EE+1/EE+2 or 
more7 

Monthly Employer (ER) 
Contribution 

Monthly Employee (EE) Contribution 
Total Health 

Monthly 
Premiums 

Employee Group(s) Flexible 
Credit8 
& HSA* 

Medical Dental Vision 
Total 

ER 
Health 

Medical Dental Vision 
Total 

EE 
Health 

Arcata Fire District -- 2,433.18 141.91 $239 2,598.09 -- -- -- 0.00 2,598.09 
All other employee groups 100/100/100 

Fire Chief 88/88/88 1,891.42 $2,056.33 541.76 -- -- 541.76 
Auburn Fire Department 80/80/8010 -- 2,141.07 125.0011 5.60 2,271.67 292.41 0.00 0.00 292.41 2,564.08 
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte Unknown 

Fire Unit 1,709.00 -- -- -- 1,709.00 499.00 35.71 8.27 542.98 2,251.98 
Excluded Supervisory 1,723.00 1,723.00 485.00 35.71 8.27 528.98 

Excluded Management 
City of Chico Fire Rescue 
Department 

90/90/90 -- 1,093.61 56.25 5.47 1,155.33 473.39 18.75 10.24 502.38 1,657.71 

City of Oroville Fire 
Department 

Unknown -- 48.20 12.93 0.00 0.00 1,848.13 

General Unit 958.48 1,019.61 828.52 828.52 

7  **Formula does not include Flexible Credits; ^^Formula does include Flexible Credits. 
8 A “flex credit” is an employer contribution in a cafeteria plan that the employee then allocates to benefits which may include life insurance, disability plans and other 
health voluntary benefits.   
9 Arcata Fire District: Vision self-insured plan provides $280 reimbursement for each employee and family member per year.  Reported employer contribution based on 1 
participant requesting reimbursement.  
10 Auburn Fire Department: The 80% is calculated as the average premium of the CalPERS plans offered to employees, excluding the highest and lowest cost plans. 
11 Auburn Fire Department: Dental plan is self-insured; each covered person can submit expenses for a maximum 1,500/year reimbursement based on 1st $200 is paid at 
100%; next $1,000 is paid by the Dept. 80% ($800) and next $1,000 is paid at 50% ($500).  Department could not provide an employer contribution amount for family 
coverage have calculated monthly amount based on reimbursement for one person equal to $125/month . 

217



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 134 

Agency 
Medical 

Contribution 
Formula % 

EE/EE+1/EE+2 or 
more7 

Monthly Employer (ER)  
Contribution 

Monthly Employee (EE) Contribution 
Total Health 

Monthly 
Premiums 

Employee Group(s) Flexible 
Credit8 
& HSA* 

Medical Dental Vision 
Total 

ER 
Health 

Medical Dental Vision 
Total 

EE 
Health 

Fire Unit   793.48   854.61 993.52   993.52  
Battalion Chief   958.48   1,019.61 828.52   828.52  

City of Red Bluff Fire 
Department 

          2,633.83 

All other employees 79/66/63  1,724.92 -- -- 1,724.92 708.28 200.63 ** 908.91  
Fire Unit 65/66/63  1,537.68   1,547.68 895.52 200.63  1,096.15  

Humboldt Bay Fire Authority 80/80/80 233.3312 1,344.15 148.16 13.16 1,738.80 336.04 0.00 0.00 336.04 2,074.84 
Lake County Fire Protection 
District 

100/100/100  1,888.6813 -- -- 1,888.68 -- -- -- -- 1,888.68 

Nevada County Consolidated 
Fire District 

Not 
applicable14 

1,693.58 -- -- -- 1,693.58 See Footnote 1,693.58 

Sutter County Fire 
Department 

           

All other employees 83/82/81 NA 1,723.00 46.80 21.10 1,790.90 409.50 0.00 0.00 409.50 2,200.40 
Management 91/90/89  1,896.00   1,963.90 236.50   236.50  

Ukiah Valley Fire Authority 
(UVFA) 

85/85/85  1,832.00 121.72 15.47 1,969.19 323.00 21.48 2.73 347.21 2,316.40 

  

 
 
 
12 Humboldt Bay Fire Authority: The agency provides a Health Savings Account (HAS) contribution 
13 Lake County Fire Protection District: District does not have a traditional insurance plan, provides a hybrid plan which is age banded and includes a Health 
Reimbursement Account (HRA), High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) and contracts with a broker to provide a traditional POP plan once deductible of the HDHP plan is 
meant.  District contributions based plan usage; District monthly contribution reported is based on 19/20 fiscal year average of District costs per covered individual. 
14 Nevada County Consolidated Fire District: Health premiums for all plans are based on age of each covered employee and dependent(s); Average premium for all 
employees and all dependent(s) currently is $1,486.37/month; amounts over $1,693.58/month are deposited to Health Savings Account; Employee monthly contributions 
could not be calculated. 

218



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 135 

Table E-7: Waived Health Benefit Subsidy  

Agency 
Employee Group(s) 

Monthly Waived Health Benefit’s Subsidy 

Medical Dental Vision All Plans Total Comments 
Arcata Fire District -- -- -- -- -- Benefit not provided 
Auburn Fire Department -- -- -- $827.97 $827.97 -- 
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte 130 25 -- -- $155 Can opt out of medical or medical and dental but 

not dental alone. 
City of Chico Fire Rescue Department       

Fire Unit $200    $200 Subsidy deposited to Flexible Spending Account 
(FSA) or deferred compensation plan 

City of Oroville Fire Department -- -- -- -- -- Benefit not provided 
City of Red Bluff Fire Department  -- -- $100 $100 -- 
Humboldt Bay Fire Authority $300 -- -- -- $300 -- 
Lake County Fire Protection District See 

Comment 
-- -- -- -- Stipend for 50% of the average employee-only cost 

calculated using the District’s current health 
insurance provider and current rates at the time of 
opt-out. 

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District -- -- -- -- -- 
Benefit not provided 

Sutter County Fire Department -- -- -- -- -- Benefit not provided 
Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) -- -- -- -- -- Benefit not provided 

  

219



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 136 

Table E-8: Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) at Retirement 
Agency 

Retiree Health Insurance Practices Benefits 
Employee Group(s) 

Arcata Fire District  
Fire Unit Dependents may elect to be covered at the retiree’s own cost; employee subsidy difference between the 

District’s minimum contribution to PERS required by PEMHCA and he full cost of enrollment in PERS 
Choice; subsidy provided until retiree reaches age 65. 

Management 
Dependents may elect to be covered at the retiree’s own cost; employee subsidy = Ten (10) or more years 
of service - 5% of the premium cost paid for each year of service provided, including the first ten years 
retroactively (100% at 20 years of service); subsidy provided until retiree reaches age 65. 

Fire Chief 100% paid employee & eligible dependent for lifetime 
Auburn Fire Department Minimum employer contribution amount per the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act 

(PEMHCA) which is updated annually; 2021 monthly contribution is $143; contribution cease when 
employee becomes eligible for Medicare. 

CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte Employer contribution toward post-retirement health  benefits, medical & dental, will be based on credited 
years of service at retirement. Vesting schedule ranging from 15 YOS = 50% benefit to 25 YOS = 100% 
benefit. Retirees and their dependents enrolled in a basic health benefit plan will receive an employer 
contribution equal to 80 percent of the weighted average premium of the four largest basic health benefit 
plans based on state active employee enrollment. Retirees and their dependents enrolled in a Medicare 
health benefit plan will receive an employer contribution equal to 80 percent of the weighted average 
premium of the four largest Medicare health benefit plans based on state retiree enrollment. 

City of Chico Fire Rescue Department Benefit not provided 
City of Oroville Fire Department Benefit not provided 

  
City of Red Bluff Fire Department Retiree only eligible Department subsidy of $160/month 
Humboldt Bay Fire Authority No response from LMA 

  
Lake County Fire Protection District  

Fire Chief Based on Contract: District deposits into a special account, employee has no ownership of account, 
designated to provide post-retirement benefits.  Minimum of 20 YOS with District minimum of 55 years of 
age. Retiree only coverage funded 100% by District, retiree may pay for dependent coverage, subsidy paid 
until age 65. 

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Benefit not provided 
  

220



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 137 

Agency 
Retiree Health Insurance Practices Benefits 

Employee Group(s) 
Sutter County Fire Department Retiree and dependents are eligible to continue medical benefits; County provided subsidy based on years of 

service 5 to 30+ years for a subsidy ranging from $16 to $216 per month; once retiree is 65+ years of age the 
subsidy is $55/month. 

Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) An employee retiring with ten or more years of City of Ukiah service may purchase, medical, dental and/or 
vision insurance at his/her own expense 

  

221



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 138 

Table E-9: Basic Life Insurance and Long Term Disability Insurance 
Agency 

Basic Life Insurance Long Term Disability Comments Employee Group(s) 
Arcata Fire District $50,000 Benefit not provided -- 
Auburn Fire Department   -- 

Fire Unit $50,000 Benefit not provided  
Fire Chief 2 times base salary No response from LMA  

CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte  -- -- 
Fire Unit Benefit not provided   

Excluded Supervisory $150,000 Maximum benefit of 66 67% of salary 
up to $10,000 per month 

 

Excluded Management  Maximum benefit of 66 67% of salary 
up to $10,000 per month 

 

City of Chico Fire Rescue Department 1x annual compensation Benefit not provided -- 
City of Oroville Fire Department 2 times base salary $250,000 Maximum benefit of 66.67% up to 

$7,500 
 

City of Red Bluff Fire Department $50,000 Benefit not provided -- 
Humboldt Bay Fire Authority   -- 

Fire Unit $50,000 Benefit not provided  
Others No response from LMA --  

Lake County Fire Protection District  Benefit not provided -- 
Administrative $10,000   

Fire Chief $300,000   
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District $100,000 Benefit not provided -- 
Sutter County Fire Department  Benefit not provided -- 

Administrative Mgmt $150,000   

Fire Unit $75,000   
Battalion Chief 

Fire Chief 
$150,000   

Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) $10,000 Benefit not provided -- 

 

222



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 139 

Table E-10: Other Employer Paid Health Plans 
Agency 

Employee Paid Voluntary Health Plans 
Employee Group 

Arcata Fire District Life Flight – employee and dependents flight coverage when transported due to medically necessity. 
Auburn Fire Department Benefit not provided 
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte Benefit not provided 
City of Chico Fire Rescue Department Benefit not provided 
City of Oroville Fire Department Benefit not provided 
City of Red Bluff Fire Department Benefit not provided 
Humboldt Bay Fire Authority  

Air Ambulance AirMedCare network membership for employees and their entire household. AirMedCare network includes 
REACH, MedTrans, Guardian Flight & Air Evac Lifeteam. If you need medical transport and air evacuation, an 
AMCN provider can fly you to the nearest appropriate hospital and your flight is 100% covered. 

Dignity Memorial Public Servants Program No cost for career and volunteer law enforcement officers, firefighters and emergency services personnel 
who fall in the line of duty. The program also provides for extended counseling services to help family 
members deal with sudden loss of a loved one. 

Lake County Fire Protection District Benefit not provided 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Benefit not provided 
Sutter County Fire Department Benefit not provided 
Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) Benefit not provided 

  

223



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 140 

Table E-11: Leisure Leave & Sick Paid Leave Accruals 

Paid leave hours are converted to paid leave days based on 8 hours per day. 
YOS = Years of Service 

Agency 
Employee Group(s) 

Paid Leisure 
Leave  
Type 

1st Year of Service  
Accrual 

Maximum Accrual and 
Accrual Years of Service 

Sick Leave 

Days 
Accrued 
Annually 

Maximum 
Carryover 

Credits 

Days Accrued 
Annually 

Maximum 
Carryover 

Credits 

Days 
Accrued 
Annually 

Maximum 
Carryover 

Credits 

Arcata Fire District Vacation      Unlimited 
Fire Unit - Shift  18 75 42 75 18  

Management  12 50 22 @ 25 YOS 50 12  
Unrepresented   18  33   

Fire Chief  18 70 22 @ 10 YOS 70   
Auburn Fire Department Vacation 12 24   12 Unlimited 

Fire Unit    22 @ 15 YOS 44   
Fire Chief    23 @ 16 YOS 46   

CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte        
        

Fire Unit Vacation 12 80 22.5 @ 20 YOS 80 12 Unlimited 
 Annual 18  28.5 @ 20 YOS  -- -- 

Excluded Supervisory        
Excluded Management        

City of Chico Fire Rescue Department Vacation      Unlimited 
General Unit  10 40 25 @ 25 YOS 47.5 12  

Fire Unit  10.5 25 20.5 @ 25 YOS 30 16.8  
Battalion Chief  22 35 43 @ 25 YOS 62.5   

Fire Chief  15 40 25 @ 25 YOS 52.50 12  
City of Oroville Fire Department Vacation      Unlimited 

General Unit  10 20 20 @ 17 YOS 40 12  
Fire Unit    28 @ 18 YOS 56 16.8  

Battalion Chief   10 20 @17 YOS 20 12  
City of Red Bluff Fire Department Vacation      Unlimited 

        
General Unit  13.5 27 23.5 @ 15 YOS 47 12  

224



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 141 

Agency 
Employee Group(s) 

Paid Leisure 
Leave  
Type 

1st Year of Service  
Accrual 

Maximum Accrual and 
Accrual Years of Service 

Sick Leave 

Days 
Accrued 
Annually 

Maximum 
Carryover 

Credits 

Days Accrued 
Annually 

Maximum 
Carryover 

Credits 

Days 
Accrued 
Annually 

Maximum 
Carryover 

Credits 

Fire Unit  19 38 33 @ 15 YOS 66 16.8  
Fire Chief  18 36 28 @ 15 YOS 54 12  

Humboldt Bay Fire Authority Vacation       
Fire Unit  21 60 33 @ 20 YOS 60 18 Unlimited 

Unrepresented No response 
from LMA 

-- -- -- -- --  

Lake County Fire Protection District Vacation      Unlimited 
Administrative  5 10 20 @ 15 YOS15 10 12  

Fire Chief      18  
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Vacation      Unlimited 

Administrative Mgmt  11 15 21 @ 11 YOS 25 15  
Fire Unit  15 25 30 @ 11 YOS 37.5 22.5  

Fire Marshal  20 50 20 @ 1YOS 50 15  
Fire Chief        

Sutter County Fire Department Vacation       
Administrative 
Battalion Chief 

Fire Chief 

 11 40 20 @ 15 YOS 40 8 Unlimited 

Fire Unit  18 16.5 22.5 @ 10 YOS 20 21  
Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA)       Unlimited 

Administrative Vacation 13 28 26 @ 20 YOS 54 12  
Fire Unit  36.4 16 75.6 49.07 @ 16 101 18  

Battalion Chief  6      
Fire Chief  20.15 42.3 27.3 @ 15 YOS 56.6 12  

 
 
 
15 Lake County Fire Protection District: For each additional year of service in excess of 15 YOS accrual of 10 hours per YOS will be earned. 
16 Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA): Floating Holiday of 11.2 hours for Fire Unit all other Units 8 hours included in vacation accrual hours. 

225



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 142 

 

Table E-12: Other Paid Leaves Accruals 

Paid leave hours are converted to paid leave days based on 8 hours per day. 
PTO – Personnel Time Off 

Agency 

Employee Group(s) 
Holidays Floating Holidays 

(FH) 
Management 

Leave 

Total Holidays 
& Mgmt Leave 

Days 

Bereavement 
Leave17 

Basic 

Supplemental 
due to Travel or 
Other Approved 

Reason 
Arcata Fire District       

Fire Unit 11 2  13 9 1 
Unrepresented 

 
  6 

FLSA Exempt 
17 5 0 

Senior Management  4     
Fire Chief  0 12 27   

Auburn Fire Department 13    4 0 
Fire Unit  4 0 17   

Fire Chief18  2 10 25   
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte 15 1 0  5 2 

Fire Unit    16   
Excluded Supervisory 11   12   

Excluded Management       
City of Chico Fire Rescue Department   0   NA 

General Unit 11 1 FH 
10 PTO 

 22 5  

Fire Unit  1.5  12.5 12  

 
 
 
17 Presumption is reported bereavement leave days are per bereavement instance and is not an accrued leave. 
18 Auburn Fire Department: City Manager may award to Fire Chief, as a department director, based on job performance one to five days of Executive Leave. 

226



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 143 

Agency 

Employee Group(s) 
Holidays Floating Holidays 

(FH) 
Management 

Leave 

Total Holidays 
& Mgmt Leave 

Days 

Bereavement 
Leave17 

Basic 

Supplemental 
due to Travel or 
Other Approved 

Reason 
Battalion Chief  0  11   

Fire Chief   6 17 5  
City of Oroville Fire Department       

General Unit 12 1 FH 
3 PTO 

Used from 
11/1 to 1/1 

0 16 5 0 

Fire Unit  3 PTO  15 15  
Battalion Chief  0 8.63 20.63 3  

City of Red Bluff Fire Department 12.5 0 0 12.5 5 0 
All employees       

Fire Chief   10 22.50   
Humboldt Bay Fire Authority       

Fire Unit 18 0 0 18 No response 
from LMA 

-- 

All Others No response from 
LMA 

-- -- --   

Lake County Fire Protection District       
Administrative 12 3 FH 

3 PTO 
0 18 3 0 

Fire Chief 10 3 11 24 5  
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 11    0 0 

Administrative Mgmt  1 7 19   
Fire Unit 11 0 0 11   

Fire Marshal   15 26   
Fire Chief       

Sutter County Fire Department       
Administrative 13 2 0 15 5 0 

227



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 144 

Agency 

Employee Group(s) 
Holidays Floating Holidays 

(FH) 
Management 

Leave 

Total Holidays 
& Mgmt Leave 

Days 

Bereavement 
Leave17 

Basic 

Supplemental 
due to Travel or 
Other Approved 

Reason 
Fire Unit 14  2 14 7  

Battalion Chief 
Fire Chief 

13 2 2 15 5  

Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA)       
Administrative 13 3 PTO 0 16 3 2 

Fire Unit  0   4.5 0 
Battalion Chief       

Fire Chief   15 28 3 2 
  

228



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 145 

Table E-13: Paid Leave Cash Out/Conversion Practices 

Cash Out/Conversion Practices for separation of employment are excluded. 

Agency 
Leave Type Cash Out/Conversion 

Employee Group(s) 
Arcata Fire District   

All employees Vacation Cash out of overage of accruals; annually 
Safety Management 

Fire Chief  Cash out of unused accumulated vacation hour to a maximum of 20 hours 

All employees Floating Holidays Cash out in lieu of time off; 2 times per year 
Auburn Fire Department   

Fire Unit Vacation Cash out up to 56 hours per fiscal year 
Fire Chief  May receive cash out compensation, in full or in part, at any time of the year for 

unused leave 
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte   

Fire Unit Holidays 4 days per year 
Excluded Supervisory 

Excluded Management 
Leisure Leaves Maximum amount of buy back for managerial and related classes is 80 hours. 

Supervisors, confidential, and other eligible excluded employees may cash out 
up to 40 hours. 

   
City of Chico Fire Rescue Department   

Fire Unit Sick Leave Conversion Annual Sick Leave Conversion Program – Based on sick leave hours used; the 
more hours used in the previous calendar the less the maximum conversion; 
hours used range from 24 to 72 hours with the maximum conversion ranging 
from 96 to 24 hours; conversion based on hours in excessive of 480. 

City of Oroville Fire Department   
Battalion Chief Administrative Leave Cash out up to 20 hours per fiscal year 

City of Red Bluff Fire Department   
Fire Unit Holidays In lieu of holiday time off for observed City holidays, 56-hour employees  shall 

be compensated at straight time for three (3) holidays recognized by the City. 
Each 56-hour employee shall receive 11.2 hours of time for each holiday 
whether worked or not to an aggregate total of 33.6 hours per year. Such hours 
shall be paid at the current straight time wage in one check. The check shall be 
paid on the first pay period in December. 

229



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 146 

Agency 
Leave Type Cash Out/Conversion 

Employee Group(s) 
Fire Chief Severance Pay Dept. Heads who are involuntarily terminated or asked to resign may receive 

severance pay at the discretion of the City Manager in accord with their length 
of service as follows: the equivalent of one month of pay for 1-12 months of City 
service, the equivalent of two months of pay for 13-24 months of service, the 
equivalent of three months of pay for 25 or more months of service. Severance 
pay is not mandatory and will only be granted when, in the opinion of the City 
Manager, it is in the best interests of the City. Normally, severance pay, if 
offered, will be contingent on the departing Department Head’s agreement to 
waive all claims associated with City employment and the termination thereof. 

Humboldt Bay Fire Authority 
Fire Unit Vacation Cash Out Employees shall be allowed to submit unused, accumulated vacation hours for 

monetary  compensation at straight time rates. Employees may convert in 
anyone (1) fiscal year, not more than fifty percent (50%) of their annual 
accumulation of vacation time to cash payment. 

Unrepresented No response from LMA -- 
Lake County Fire Protection District 

Fire Chief Vacation Cash Out Paid compensation in lieu of vacation leave taken for accrued leave hours. 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 

All employees Vacation Cash Out Cash out of up to 150 hours per year. 
Fire Chief Management Leave Cash Out Cash out of up to 24 hours per year. 

Fire Marshal 
Fire Chief 

Severance Pay If agreement is terminated and the employee is terminated without cause and 
the employee does not remain employed by the District in another capacity, 
they will be entitled to compensation in the amount of 180 days of salary. If 
terminated for cause, no severance pay will be paid. 

Sutter County Fire Department Benefit not provided -- 
Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) 

Administrative Leave Vacation Cash Out Employees who reach their maximum vacation accrual may cash out one (1) 
week (40 hours) vacation, limited to one (1) time per fiscal year. This may be 
requested within two pay periods prior to the employee reaching their vacation 
accrual maximum. 

Fire Unit Vacation Buy Back An employee may sell back up to 120 hours of vacation to the City for the 
equivalent payment of the employee’s current salary on an hour-for-hour basis 

Fire Chief Vacation Cash Out Cash out up to two (2) weeks of vacation when they are within two pay periods 
of reaching one-half of their maximum vacation accrual, limited to two (2) times 
per fiscal year. 

230



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 147 

Agency 
Leave Type Cash Out/Conversion 

Employee Group(s) 
 Management Incentive Pay Executive Leave Pay can be taken as cash payment. 
 Separation Agreement If the City terminates the employment of a Department Head without cause, 

including but not limited to lay off or elimination of position, and the 
Department Head is willing and able to perform his/her job duties, then the 
Department Head shall be placed on administrative leave to maintain current 
pay and benefits for up to six (6) months while seeking other employment 
options. At the employee’s election any remaining balance of the 6 month 
administrative leave shall be paid in a lump sum payment within (30) days of the 
request for payment.  
For a period of six (6) months following termination, the City shall pay its share 
of costs to continue health, dental, and vision insurance for the Department 
Head and all dependents. 

  

231



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 148 

Table E-14: Other Compensation - Longevity Incentives 

YOS – Years of Service 

Agency Longevity Pay Incentives 

Employee Group(s) Paid As 5 YOS 10 YOS 15 YOS 20 YOS 25 YOS 30 YOS 35 YOS 

Arcata Fire District Benefit not provided -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
Auburn Fire Department Benefit not provided -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte         

Fire Unit 
Percentages are non-
cumulative; monthly differential   1% @ 17  

2% @ 19  

3% @ 20 
4% @ 21 
5% @ 22, 

23, 24 YOS 

7%   

City of Chico Fire Rescue Department Benefit not provided -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
City of Oroville Fire Department         

Fire Unit 
Battalion Chief 

Onetime payment -- -- $150 
15-19 yrs. $300 $300 $300 $300 

City of Red Bluff Fire Department Increase in compensation  5%      
Humboldt Bay Fire Authority Benefit not provided -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
Lake County Fire Protection District Benefit not provided -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District Increase in compensation 0.5% 1% 1% 1% 1% -- -- 
Sutter County Fire Department         

Fire Unit Steps 9-11 require 15-25 YOS; 
5% pay bonus; Onetime 
payment 

-- -- 5% 5% 5% -- -- 

Management 
Administrative 

Steps 6-10 require 10-30 YOS -- 5%  5%  5%  5%  5% -- 

Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) One time payments $1,000 
7 YOS 

$2,500 
12 YOS -- $3,500 -- -- -- 

  

232



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 149 

Table E-15: Other Compensation – Vehicle Allowance/Usage 

Agency 
Employee Group(s) Vehicle Practice Amount Comments 

Arcata Fire District Assigned vehicle to take home Not applicable -- 
Management 

Fire Chief 
   

Auburn Fire Department Assigned City vehicle in lieu of allowance Not applicable -- 
CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte Assigned vehicle Not applicable -- 
City of Chico Fire Rescue Department    

Fire Chief Allowance $400/month -- 
City of Oroville Fire Department    

Battalion Chief Assigned vehicle to take home Not applicable -- 
City of Red Bluff Fire Department    

 Assigned vehicle Not applicable -- 
Humboldt Bay Fire Authority No response from LMA -- -- 
Lake County Fire Protection District    

Fire Chief Assigned vehicle to take home Not applicable -- 
Nevada County Consolidated Fire District    

Fire Marshal Assigned vehicle to take home Not applicable -- 
Fire Chief    

Sutter County Fire Department Assigned vehicle Not applicable -- 
Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA)    

Battalion Chief 
Fire Chief 

Assigned vehicle as needed Not applicable -- 

  

233



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 150 

Table E-16: Other Compensation - Allowances 

Agency 
Employee Group(s) 

 
Types 

Amount 
(monthly unless noted 
otherwise) 

Comments 

Arcata Fire District Allowance   -- 
Fire Unit  Uniform $63  

Battalion Chief     
Fire Chief  Uniform  $42  

  Cell Phone $65  
Battalion Chief   $42  

Auburn Fire District     
Fire Unit Allowance Uniform Maintenance $30 -- 

CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte    -- 
Fire Unit  Boots 40.00  

All employee groups Allowance Uniform 137.50 -- 
City of Chico Fire Rescue Department    -- 

Fire Unit Provided by City Uniform NA  
Battalion Chief Allowance Uniform $42  

City of Oroville Fire Department     
Fire Unit 

Battalion Chief 
Allowance Uniform $68 On hire receive onetime 

payment of $750 
City of Red Bluff Fire Department    -- 

Fire Unit 
Fire Chief 

Allowance Uniform $68  

Humboldt Bay Fire Authority     
All Safety Classifications Allowance  Uniform $40 -- 

Lake County Fire Protection District     
Administrative Allowance Uniform $33 District Shirts 

Fire Chief   $63 -- 
 Provided by County Cell Phone --  

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District     
Fire Unit Allowance  Uniform and PPE  $78 District provides 6 uniform t-

shirs per fiscal year 
Upon completion of probation 
employee provided 1 standard 
Class “A” uniform 

234



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 151 

Agency 
Employee Group(s) 

 
Types 

Amount 
(monthly unless noted 
otherwise) 

Comments 

Fire Marshal 
Fire Chief 

 Uniform $67 Provide Class A uniform 

Fire Marshal  Boot $25 -- 
Sutter County Fire Department     

Fire Unit Allowance Uniform $79 -- 
Battalion Chief 

Fire Chief 
Reimbursement  Uniform Maximum of $950/year -- 

Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) Allowance Uniform $83 -- 
Fire Unit      

Battalion Chief     
Fire Chief     

 

  

235



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 152 

Table E-17: Other Compensation 

Agency 
Employee Group(s) 

Compensation Type 
Types Amount Comments 

Arcata Fire District 
Fire Unit Incentive Physical Fitness Program $400/year USFA Work Capacity Test 

Auburn Fire Department -- 
Fire Unit Incentive Employee Incentive Pay 3% of base pay to maximum of 

6%; based on City Fire Dept. 
Experience 
education/certification: 
 4yrs. exp. and Associate

Degree
 2 yrs. exp. and certified as

Driver Operator 1 by Office
of the State Fire Marshal

 4 yrs. exp. and certificated as
Company Officer by the
Office of the Fire Marshal

-- 

Fire Chief Pay for Performance Annual award for special 
performance as a one-time 
bonus not to exceed 15% of 
base salary. 

-- 

CalFire Humboldt/Del Norte Benefit not provided -- -- -- 
City of Chico Fire Rescue 
Department 

Fire Unit Incentive Health & Fitness Facilities $444/year Employees choosing to 
participate shall do so at least 
thirteen (13) times per calendar 
year quarter, or five (5) times 
per calendar month, and that 
evidence of such participation 
shall be obtained from the 
health and fitness center and 
submitted to the City. 

Wellness Program 100% City paid Consulting firm provides 
physiology, exercise and similar 

236



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 153 

Agency 
Employee Group(s) 

Compensation Type 
Types Amount Comments 

disciplines evaluation and 
monitoring program that will 
evaluate and provide 
information regarding the 
overall health and wellbeing of 
Employees. 

Battalion Chief Reimbursement Wellness/Physical Fitness Program $660/year Reimbursement cost of health 
and fitness facilities 

Fire Chief    -- 
City of Oroville Fire Department Benefit not provided -- -- -- 
City of Red Bluff Fire Department Benefit not provided -- -- -- 
Humboldt Bay Fire Authority   --  

Fire Unit Incentive Health & Wellness Program  During the working hours of 
0800 and 1700 hours one (1) 
hour of physical fitness shall be 
provided. One (1) hour of 
physical fitness training shall 
not be during the employees’ 
lunch hour break, unless the 
employee chooses to 
voluntarily work out during this 
time, 

 Incentive Licensed Paramedics 10% salary increase above base 
salary  

During the period of such 
assignment 

  Shift Fire Investigator 3% salary increase above base 
salary 

A maximum of 10 HBFL 
represented employees can be 
assigned 
Completion of fifteen (15) 
continuing education units 
(CE's) bi-annually & commit to a 
minimum pf 3 years assignment 

  Lead Fire Investigators Additional 3% incentive for a 
maximum 6% 

Completion of thirty (30) CE's 
bi-annually & commit to a 
minimum pf 3 years assignment 

237



Arcata Fire District 
Final Classification and Total Compensation Report 

P a g e  | 154 

Agency 
Employee Group(s) 

Compensation Type 
Types Amount Comments 

  Urban Search And Rescue (USAR) 
Program 

3% salary increase above base 
salary 

A maximum of 12 HBFL 
represented employees can be 
assigned 
Commit to 1 year assignment 
Must commit to required 
training 

  Water Rescue Program 3% salary increase above base 
salary 

A maximum of 15 HBFL 
represented employees can be 
assigned 
Commit to 1 year assignment 
Must commit to required 
training 

Lake County Fire Protection 
District 

Benefit not provided -- -- -- 

Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
District 

Reimbursement California State Firefighters’ 
Association (CSFA) 

Pay annual membership fee - 
$85/yr. 

All employees regardless of 
classification or safety or non-
safety 

Sutter County Fire Department Benefit not provided -- -- -- 
Ukiah Valley Fire Authority (UVFA) Benefit not provided -- -- --- 

 

 

238



STAFF REPORT 
District Business Item 3 

Date: August 10, 2021  
To: Board of Directors, Arcata Fire District 
From:  Justin McDonald, Fire Chief 
Subject: Approve the Expenditure of Funds to Repair the Mad River and 

McKinleyville Station Parking Lots  

Background 
The asphalt surfaces at the Mad River Station have deteriorated to the point that a seal 
coat will not maintain the rear lot.  Some of the asphalt will need to be removed and 
replaced with new and other areas may need an overlay.  It would also be prudent to 
reseal the McKinleyville station parking lot as the seams between the original asphalt 
and the new are now growing weeds.   
This request would normally be run through the budget committee as a planned for, 
budgeted expenditure, however, scheduling a contractor precipitates this item being 
approved prior to the final budget being adopted.  Staff has sent out a request for 
proposal to three local paving contractors, with two being responsive in producing a 
quote.  Staff is waiting on both contractors to provide further information regarding the 
project before a vendor is awarded.   
Staff is requesting that the board authorize the Chief to repair the McKinleyville and Mad 
River Station’s parking lots with the most responsive bid and set a not to exceed 
$93,000 limit.   
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board consider the information provided, discuss, take public 
comment, authorize the Chief to choose the most responsive and reasonable method 
and vendor to repair the McKinleyville and Mad River Station’s parking lots and set a 
not to exceed $93,000 limit for the bids for the combined projects. 
District Funds Requested/Required 
☐ No Fiscal Impact/Not Applicable
☐ Included in Budget
☒ Additional Appropriation Requested – Funding will be allocated from the Capital
Improvement Fund
Alternatives 

Board Discretion 
Attachments 

None 

239


	Agenda Regular Meeting August 10, 2021
	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Suspended for virtual meetings
	ATTENDANCE & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMENT/ASSOCIATION REPORTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	CORRESPONDENCE & COMMUNICATIONS
	DISTRICT BUSINESS
	CLOSED SESSIONS
	ADJOURNMENT

	Title Page - Public Comment & Assoc. Reports
	PC August 2021 AVFA Activities Report
	Title Page - Consent
	CC1 Draft Minutes Regular July 13, 2021
	CC2 July Expenses
	Balance Sheet
	cash
	P&L
	expenses

	CC3 (Staff Report) OPEB GASB 75
	CC3 (Attachment) Arcata FPD Signed FYE 2021 GASB 75 Rpt
	CC4 (Staff Note) Assessment Exemptions
	CC4 (Attachment) Resolution 21-241
	Resolution Number: 21-241

	CC5 Resolution 21-242 Surplus Equipment
	Resolution Number: 21-242

	Title Page - Correspondence
	C&Ca Thank you Sean Campbell
	C&Cb Notice of Rent Increase
	August Chiefs Report
	Title Page - District Business
	DB 1 (Staff Report) UAL
	DB 1 (Attachment) Private vs Public Refi Scenarios [Draft_08-02-21]
	DB 2 (Staff Report) C&C Study
	DB 2 (Attachment) Final C&C Report
	I. Introduction
	II. Project Scope and Work Plan
	III. Conceptual Framework – Classification
	Classification Concepts and Principles
	Basic Classification Guidelines
	Position, Class, Series, and Job Family
	Classification Versus Allocation
	Broad Versus Narrow Classes
	Preponderance
	Classification of the Position, Not the Employee
	Level Versus Volume of Work

	Using Classification Factors
	Class Leveling Conventions

	IV. Classification Analysis and Recommendations
	Overview

	V. Compensation Study Parameters
	Labor Market Data Points and Position
	Labor Market Agencies
	Survey Classifications
	Survey Data Collection Scope
	Comparable Classifications – Classification Matching
	Comparable Classifications – Required Number of Comparable Classifications
	Internal Equity Considerations When Insufficient Number of Comparable Classifications
	Labor Market Benefits and Compensation Practices


	VI. Compensation Survey Results
	Compensation Results
	Benchmark Comparable Classification Requirement
	Labor Market Response
	Labor Market Position by Classification
	Reporting Definitions
	Summary of Labor Market Position

	VII. Summary of Benefit Tables & Other Compensation
	VIII. Salary Recommendations
	IX. Recruitment and Retention Strategies
	Methodology
	Agency Demographics
	Management Structures
	Hiring Level (Entry)
	Minimum Emergency Operations Staffing
	Apprenticeship/Internship/Part-time Programs
	Salary Step Structure
	Tuition Reimbursement
	Incentive Pays
	Training
	Special Funding/Outsourcing/Consolidation
	Summary of Findings

	X. Conclusion
	Appendix A: Position Description Questionnaire
	Appendix A: Position Description Questionnaire
	Appendix B: Position Allocation Table
	Appendix C: Final Classification Specifications
	Appendix D: Compensation Datasheets
	Appendix E: Benefit and Compensation Practices Tables

	DB 3 (Staff Report) Pavement



